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LETTER OF
TRANSMITTAL

All Shareholders of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited
Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms, Bangladesh
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE)
Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE)
Central Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL)
All Other Stakeholders

Sub: Annual Report for the year ended on December 31, 
2023.

Dear Sir,

We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report 2023 
together with the Audited Financial Statements including 
Balance Sheet, Revenue Account, Cash Flow Statement and 
Notes to the Accounts for the year ended on December 31, 
2023 for your kind information and record.

Sincerely Yours,

………….......…….
Company Secretary

cÙv Bmjvgx jvBd BbwmI‡iÝ wjt
PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.
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PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.
Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited

Registered Office: Padma Life Tower
115, Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue, Bangla Motor, Dhaka-1000.

Email: info@padmaislamilife.com, Web: www.padmaislamilife.com

NOTICE OF THE 24th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (Hybrid MEETING)
OF PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.

Notice is hereby given that the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited will be 
held on Sunday, 29 September, 2024 at 11.30 am the AGM will be held through Hybrid system on the selected 
venue at registered office of the Company Padma Life Tower115, Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue, Bangla Motor, 
Dhaka-1000.Sharehoders will also connect Virtually using Digital Platform through the Link 
http://padmaislamilife.bdvirtulagm.com to transact the following businesses:

AGENDA
01. To receive, consider and adopt the Directors' and the Auditors' Report and the Audited Accounts of the Company 

for the year ended December 31, 2023.
02. To elect/re-elect Directors.
03. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year 2024 and to fix their remuneration.
04. To appoint Compliance Auditors of Corporate Governance for the year 2024 and to fix their remuneration.
By Order of the Board of Directors

Company Secretary

Date: 29 September, 2024.

Notes:
1) The "Record Date" was fixed on August 22, 2024. The Shareholders, whose names will appear in the Depository 

(CDBL) Register on that date, shall be entitled to participate in the 24th AGM through digital platform.

2)  the AGM will be held through Hybrid system on the selected venue at registered office of the Company Padma 
Life Tower115, Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue, Bangla Motor, Dhaka-1000.Sharehoders will also connect Virtually 
using Digital Platform through the Link http://padmaislamilife.bdvirtualagm.com They will be able to submit 
their questions/comments electronically before 24 (twenty-four) hours of commencement of the AGM through 
this link and during the AGM, for logging into the system the Members need to put their 16-digit Beneficiary 
Owners (BO) Account Number.

3)  A Member is entitled to attend and vote at this virtual AGM, may appoint a proxy to (such proxy will be a 
member of the Company) attend and vote on his/her behalf. The Proxy form, a specimen of which is enclosed, 
duly felted up, signed and stamped of Tk. 20 (Revenue stamp) must be sent through email to 
share@padmaislamilife.com not later than 24 hours before commencement of AGM.

4)  The Members are encouraged to login to the system prior to the meeting at 11.30 am on September 29, 2024 
(Sunday). The webcast will be opened 11.30 a.m. Members may contact Mobile No. 01324259576 for any 
information of technology related guidance and share related issues in accessing the virtual meeting.

5) Pursuant to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) Notification No. 
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/208/Admin/81 dated 20th June 2018, the soft copy of the Annual Report 2023 
has already been sent to the e-mail addresses of the members available in their Beneficiary Owner (BO) 
accounts maintained with the Depository. These are also available in the Company's website at: 
www.padmaislamilife.com
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Company Name : Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited

Year of Establishment : 2000

Authorized Capital : Tk. 1000 million

Paid-up Capital : Tk. 388.00 million

Nature of Business : Life Insurance Business

p Incorporation of the Company :  April 26, 2000

p Commencement of Business :  April 26, 2000

p License issued by Chief Controller of Insurance : April 30, 2000

p Convertion to Islami Life : 2002

p First Policy Issued  : June 12, 2000

p Initial Public Offering (IPO)

 1 Letter of Consent  : November 29, 2011

 1 Publication of Prospectus : December 01, 2011

 1 Subscription opened :  February 22, 2012

 1 Subscription Closed : February 26, 2012

 1 Lottery held for Allotment of Shares :  March 22, 2012

p Listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. :  April 08, 2012

p Listed with Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. :  March 14, 2012

p Trading of shares on Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. : April 18, 2012

p Trading of shares on Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. : April 18, 2012

p Authorized capital increased to BDT 1000 million : December 31, 2010

CORPORATE
INFORMATION
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SUPPORT
SERVICES PROVIDER
Actuarial Consultant Auditor

Re-insurer

Mr. Ahmed Imran Hasan loskor 
Actuary Bangladesh
Rainbow Valley Apartment.Flat#GG 
House#15.Fashertek Road.Notun Bazar
Vatara. Gulshan. Dhaka-1212.

Pinaki & Company.
Chartered Accountants,
Ideak Trade Center,
Uttara Fincance Shaheed,
Tajuddin Avenue, Dhaka-1208.

BARENTS REINSURANCE SA, 
Luxembourg Brance,
6 Rue du Fort Bourbon
L-1249 Luxembourg.

Dr. Abdus Salam Khan
MBBS, FCGP
STC (Medicine)

Medical Consultant

Bankers

Shahjalal Islami Bank Ltd.
Exim Bank Ltd.
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd.
The First Security Islami Bank Ltd. 
Jamuna Bank Ltd.

Social Islami Bank Ltd.
National Credit and Comm. Bank Ltd.
Premier Bank Ltd.
Bangladesh Commerce Bank Ltd.
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OUR BOARD COMPOSITION
AND ITS OPERATION

Our Board comprises renowned personalities and veteran professionals with long and diverse 
professional experience. They all have proven track records of company management. As a matter 
of fact, out of nine directors, three directors are professional Chartered Accountants, two are PhD 
Degree holders and two are renowned physicians. Rest three directors are also eminent 
personalities having tertiary level of academic qualification and corporate exposure. As on end of 
December 2023, our Board composition was as follows:

Sl.  Name of Directors Position
No.

01 Mr. AKM Shariat Ullah, FCA, ACCA (Representative of Unitex LP Gas Ltd.) Chairman

02 Mrs. Zaman Ara Begum (Representative of Affinity Assets Ltd.) Director

03 Professor Md. Sarware Alam (Representative of Crest Holdings Ltd.) Director

04 Md. Ali Hossain (Nominated by Legendary Enterprises Ltd.) Director

05 Ekramul Ameen, FCA (Nominated by Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.) Director

06 Dr. Md. Nurul Aktar Chowdhury  Independent Director

07 Dr. Mohammad Nayeem Abdullah Independent Director

08 Professor Dr. Serajul Hoque Independent Director

09 Md. Belal Hussain, FCA Independent Director

Expertise and diversity of our Board

In a rapidly changing business atmosphere, Directors’ expertise is very crucial, as the Board is 
constantly required to make strategic decisions that can have short, medium and long-term impacts.

Our rich Board diversity provides varied perspectives that enrich the quality of our decision 
making process and the decision itself. Particularly, Directors with professional background 
leverage their expertise and skills in key areas, including, core business, finance, accounts, audit, 
law, administration, human resources and ESG (environment, social and governance) to contribute 
to the Board’s informed and objective decision-making process.

Independence and transparency of our Board

Our Board makes independent judgments and decisions, with Directors appointed through a 
transparent and regulatory-compliant procedure. To enhance the independence of our Board, we 
have ensured that our Board is adequately represented by Independent Directors.

Out of nine Directors in the Board, four Directors are Independent Directors. In the spirit of 
transparency and compliance, this meets the requirements prescribed under BSEC guidelines, 
which states that Independent Directors must constitute one-fifth of the total strength of the Board 
of a publicly listed company.

Separation of supervision and execution role
As a measure of embracing enhanced transparency, we have also separated the role of the 
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer (CEO). This is in line with the provision 
of Corporate Governance Code issued by BSEC.

Sub-committees of the Board
The Board has established seven sub-committees, in accordance with BSEC guidelines and as a 
matter of transparency and openness. Each committee is mandated with the responsibility of 
stipulating its own organization, operations and authority in accordance with the regulations of the 
committees established under the Board.

Figure 1 Board and Sub-Committees

Committee Charter
All the Board Committees have a written charter that addresses the Committees’ purposes, duties 
and responsibilities, quorum and proceedings.

Meetings
The Board requires holding at least 4 (four) meetings each year. In the year 2023, 7 (Seven) Board 
meetings were held to discuss scheduled businesses of the Company. Sub-committees also held 
required nos. of meetings on a timely manner. 

Tenure and Retirement of Directors

The office of Directors is subject to retirement as per Articles. At least one-third of the Directors 
from each group shall retire by rotation in every Annual General Meeting. The Independent 
Directors are appointed for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term 
only.

Directors’ Responsibility

Each Director uses his or her best efforts to attend all the meetings of the Board and the 
Committees to which such Director is appointed. The Directors are responsible for developing and 
upgrading the Company’s Corporate Governance, Policies & Principles, Code of Business 
Conduct and the Charter of each Committee in which such Directors are engaged. For review, 
materials are provided to the members in advance of Board and various Committee meetings.

Director Compensation

None of the Director holds any position and does not receive any remuneration other than fees for 
attending the Board/Committee meetings. The maximum fees payable to Directors is Tk. 8,000 for 
attending each meeting.

Contact to Directors

Interested parties may communicate with any Director by sending letter to such Directors giving 
attention to the Company Secretary, regarding any matter related to the company affairs to the 
following address:

Padma Islami Life Insurance Ltd.
PadmaLifeTower (Lift floor-3)
115, Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue
Bangla Motor, Dhaka-1000.
E-mail:info@padmaislamilife.com
Web:www.padmaislamilife.com
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ANNUAL REPORT 2023  ||  11

Our Board comprises renowned personalities and veteran professionals with long and diverse 
professional experience. They all have proven track records of company management. As a matter 
of fact, out of nine directors, three directors are professional Chartered Accountants, two are PhD 
Degree holders and two are renowned physicians. Rest three directors are also eminent 
personalities having tertiary level of academic qualification and corporate exposure. As on end of 
December 2023, our Board composition was as follows:

Sl.  Name of Directors Position
No.

01 Mr. AKM Shariat Ullah, FCA, ACCA (Representative of Unitex LP Gas Ltd.) Chairman

02 Mrs. Zaman Ara Begum (Representative of Affinity Assets Ltd.) Director

03 Professor Md. Sarware Alam (Representative of Crest Holdings Ltd.) Director

04 Md. Ali Hossain (Nominated by Legendary Enterprises Ltd.) Director

05 Ekramul Ameen, FCA (Nominated by Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.) Director

06 Dr. Md. Nurul Aktar Chowdhury  Independent Director

07 Dr. Mohammad Nayeem Abdullah Independent Director

08 Professor Dr. Serajul Hoque Independent Director

09 Md. Belal Hussain, FCA Independent Director

Expertise and diversity of our Board

In a rapidly changing business atmosphere, Directors’ expertise is very crucial, as the Board is 
constantly required to make strategic decisions that can have short, medium and long-term impacts.

Our rich Board diversity provides varied perspectives that enrich the quality of our decision 
making process and the decision itself. Particularly, Directors with professional background 
leverage their expertise and skills in key areas, including, core business, finance, accounts, audit, 
law, administration, human resources and ESG (environment, social and governance) to contribute 
to the Board’s informed and objective decision-making process.

Independence and transparency of our Board

Our Board makes independent judgments and decisions, with Directors appointed through a 
transparent and regulatory-compliant procedure. To enhance the independence of our Board, we 
have ensured that our Board is adequately represented by Independent Directors.

Out of nine Directors in the Board, four Directors are Independent Directors. In the spirit of 
transparency and compliance, this meets the requirements prescribed under BSEC guidelines, 
which states that Independent Directors must constitute one-fifth of the total strength of the Board 
of a publicly listed company.

Separation of supervision and execution role
As a measure of embracing enhanced transparency, we have also separated the role of the 
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer (CEO). This is in line with the provision 
of Corporate Governance Code issued by BSEC.

Sub-committees of the Board
The Board has established seven sub-committees, in accordance with BSEC guidelines and as a 
matter of transparency and openness. Each committee is mandated with the responsibility of 
stipulating its own organization, operations and authority in accordance with the regulations of the 
committees established under the Board.

Figure 1 Board and Sub-Committees

Committee Charter
All the Board Committees have a written charter that addresses the Committees’ purposes, duties 
and responsibilities, quorum and proceedings.

Meetings
The Board requires holding at least 4 (four) meetings each year. In the year 2023, 7 (Seven) Board 
meetings were held to discuss scheduled businesses of the Company. Sub-committees also held 
required nos. of meetings on a timely manner. 

Tenure and Retirement of Directors

The office of Directors is subject to retirement as per Articles. At least one-third of the Directors 
from each group shall retire by rotation in every Annual General Meeting. The Independent 
Directors are appointed for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term 
only.

Directors’ Responsibility

Each Director uses his or her best efforts to attend all the meetings of the Board and the 
Committees to which such Director is appointed. The Directors are responsible for developing and 
upgrading the Company’s Corporate Governance, Policies & Principles, Code of Business 
Conduct and the Charter of each Committee in which such Directors are engaged. For review, 
materials are provided to the members in advance of Board and various Committee meetings.

Director Compensation

None of the Director holds any position and does not receive any remuneration other than fees for 
attending the Board/Committee meetings. The maximum fees payable to Directors is Tk. 8,000 for 
attending each meeting.

Contact to Directors

Interested parties may communicate with any Director by sending letter to such Directors giving 
attention to the Company Secretary, regarding any matter related to the company affairs to the 
following address:

Padma Islami Life Insurance Ltd.
PadmaLifeTower (Lift floor-3)
115, Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue
Bangla Motor, Dhaka-1000.
E-mail:info@padmaislamilife.com
Web:www.padmaislamilife.com



12  ||  ANNUAL REPORT 2023

CORPORATE
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PERFORMANCE OF THE PILIL AT A GLANCE
FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

First year Premium 36.64 142.53 75.37 90.32 131.67
Renewal Premium  75.11 71.32 187.60 332.60 459.85
Group Insurance Premium 99.42 102.85 100.66 65.66 70.59
Gross Premium 211.17 316.69 363.64 488.59 662.11
Investment Income 54.58 63.54 39.32 61.99 6965
Claims 251.19 526.66 321.61 650.40 687.52
Management Expenses     
 a) Commission 45.09 82.87 46.65 56.57 71.48
b) Admin Expenses 84.15 106.48 97.43 116.65 183.31
Assets 2677.53 2833.17 3148.76 2246.33 2238.88
Life Fund -2544.12 -2338.90 124.63 131.40 269.79
Claims to Premium (%) 118.95% 167.00% 92.71 85% 103.83
Management Expenses to Premium (%) 61.17% 59.82% 39.62% 35.49% 38.48%
Dividend on face value of share N/A
           a) Cash N/A  2%  
           b) Stock N/A

Par�culars

Business Growth

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Premium (1st year)% -728.93% 89.08% -16.54% -31.41% 59.12%
Management Expenses -31.75% 31.41% -16.82% -32.90% (-77.5)%
Maturity Claims (%) -47.55% 40.91% -38.84% -14.82% -41.70%
Life Fund (%) 8.77% -1976.66% -5.15% -37.36% -54.03%

Par�culars 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Investment Portfolio 

Fixed Deposit 3.09 2.56 3.55 9.48 4.06
Investment on Govt. Securities, 30.93 31.37 32.87 33.87 12.60
Bond & Mutual Fund 

Shares & debenture 16.33 15.49 23.10 23.18 10.96
Land, Building& others 164.23 166.50 169.08 82.55 86.07
Total 214.58 216.00 219.72 142.27 136.13

Par�culars 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
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MESSAGE
FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim

Assalamu Alaikum Wa Rahmatullah.

Dear Shareholders,
I have the pleaser to welcome you all to the 24th Annual General Meeting and present you to the 
Annual Report alongwith the Audited Financial Statements of Padma Islami Life Insurance 
Limited (PILIL) for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Valued Shareholders,
As you all know, I, the undersigned, have joined the Board of Director (BOD) of the Company on 
14 May, 2022 and have been elected as the Chairman of the BOD on 02.09.2024 in the 200th BOD 
Meeting. The Board is determined to continue the business of Padma Islami Life Insurance Ltd. 
with utmost honesty and transparency within the purview of ethical, Shariah and legal framework. 
The top priority of the Board at this time is to settle outstanding claims. We would like to assure 
everyone that we will pay off 50% of legitimate Claim within December 2025 and the rest within 
next year respctively, Inshaa-Allah. Our other priorities are to enhance business capabilities, 
recruit promising business leaders and workers, optimize operational costs and ensure control at 
all levels of the Company’s affair effectively. To this end the Board and the professional 
management team have been working tirelessly to attain a sustainable business gorwth.

Dear Friends,
It is also worth mentioning that when the present Sponsors took over in October 2018, the 
Company was facing a lot of high risks and extreme challenges at that time. Those were, among 
others, declining business, severe liquidity crisis, huge unsettled claims, overstaffing, mishandling 
of assets, mismanagement etc. which led the Company to lose its market share in the life insurance 
industry of Bangladesh.

By the grace of Almighty Allah SWT, within this short time, we have established a positive 
organizational transformation through structural changes, policy improvement, operational and 

financial control measures, rationalizing manpower requirement, closure of perennially loss 
making Branches, augmentation of agency network, implementation of online integrated 
full-featured ERP software, and above all payment of outstanding claims. The Board, in 
cooperation with management have so far been successful to implement the above mentioned steps 
substantially to bring life back to the company. Going forward, these exercises are intended to 
continue relentlessly, Insha-Allah.

Dear Shareholders,
As you know, global pandemic COVID 19 caused, without exception, havoc to the lives of people 
and economies of the entire world, particularly smaller economies like ours resulting in thousands 
of deaths and a near-total shut down of all economic activities. The whole country went under 
complete lock down for a number of months. Even after withdrawal of lock down, restrictions and 
difficulties remained. Among all other industries, the life insurance sector was affected the most.

During that time, we could not collect premium as expected, and such was the case for other 
companies. There was a growth in Group insurance business. We have earned TK. 9.94 crore in 
2023 whereas in 2022 it was Tk. 10.28 Crore. Growth rate is (.03%). We have also made a 
commendable gain in trading shares. And we continued to pay off claims even during that crucial 
time.We have paid against claim Tk.25.12 crore during 2023. We have also reduced the 
management cost by 31.74% over last year with a concerted cffort. 

My Friends,
We are determined to establish corporate governance, discipline, integrity, transparency and 
management accountability in your Company. We always welcome your prudent views, 
suggestions and guidance as owners of the Company for better management.

I would like to extend our sincere thanks and deep appreciation to Insurance Development & 
Regulatory Authority, Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Dhaka & Chittagong 
Stock Exchanges for their wisdom, continued guidance and cooperation during this critical time. 

Finally, I am endlessly grateful to Allah SWT for everything and thankful to my colleagues for 
their sincere effort and invaluable stewardship of the Company since their appointment to the 
Board.  On behalf of the Board and on my personal behalf, I would like to express my sincere 
thanks to all of our employees, clients, suppliers and other stakeholders for providing their 
continuous valuable support in achieving our corporate goals.

May Allah SWT protect us all.

Mr. AKM Shariat Ullah, FCA, ACCA
Chairman of the Board
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all levels of the Company’s affair effectively. To this end the Board and the professional 
management team have been working tirelessly to attain a sustainable business gorwth.

Dear Friends,
It is also worth mentioning that when the present Sponsors took over in October 2018, the 
Company was facing a lot of high risks and extreme challenges at that time. Those were, among 
others, declining business, severe liquidity crisis, huge unsettled claims, overstaffing, mishandling 
of assets, mismanagement etc. which led the Company to lose its market share in the life insurance 
industry of Bangladesh.

By the grace of Almighty Allah SWT, within this short time, we have established a positive 
organizational transformation through structural changes, policy improvement, operational and 

financial control measures, rationalizing manpower requirement, closure of perennially loss 
making Branches, augmentation of agency network, implementation of online integrated 
full-featured ERP software, and above all payment of outstanding claims. The Board, in 
cooperation with management have so far been successful to implement the above mentioned steps 
substantially to bring life back to the company. Going forward, these exercises are intended to 
continue relentlessly, Insha-Allah.

Dear Shareholders,
As you know, global pandemic COVID 19 caused, without exception, havoc to the lives of people 
and economies of the entire world, particularly smaller economies like ours resulting in thousands 
of deaths and a near-total shut down of all economic activities. The whole country went under 
complete lock down for a number of months. Even after withdrawal of lock down, restrictions and 
difficulties remained. Among all other industries, the life insurance sector was affected the most.

During that time, we could not collect premium as expected, and such was the case for other 
companies. There was a growth in Group insurance business. We have earned TK. 9.94 crore in 
2023 whereas in 2022 it was Tk. 10.28 Crore. Growth rate is (.03%). We have also made a 
commendable gain in trading shares. And we continued to pay off claims even during that crucial 
time.We have paid against claim Tk.25.12 crore during 2023. We have also reduced the 
management cost by 31.74% over last year with a concerted cffort. 

My Friends,
We are determined to establish corporate governance, discipline, integrity, transparency and 
management accountability in your Company. We always welcome your prudent views, 
suggestions and guidance as owners of the Company for better management.

I would like to extend our sincere thanks and deep appreciation to Insurance Development & 
Regulatory Authority, Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Dhaka & Chittagong 
Stock Exchanges for their wisdom, continued guidance and cooperation during this critical time. 

Finally, I am endlessly grateful to Allah SWT for everything and thankful to my colleagues for 
their sincere effort and invaluable stewardship of the Company since their appointment to the 
Board.  On behalf of the Board and on my personal behalf, I would like to express my sincere 
thanks to all of our employees, clients, suppliers and other stakeholders for providing their 
continuous valuable support in achieving our corporate goals.

May Allah SWT protect us all.

Mr. AKM Shariat Ullah, FCA, ACCA
Chairman of the Board
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gyL¨
wbe©vnx Kg©KZ©vi evZ©v

wemwgjøvwni ivn&gvwbi ivwng

m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvie„›`,

Avm&mvjvgy AvjvBKzg Iqvivn&gvZzjøvn&|

cÙv Bmjvgx jvBd BbwmI‡iÝ wjt Gi 24Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Avcbv‡`i‡K RvbvB AvšÍwiK ï‡f”Qv I 

Awfb›`b| cÙv Bmjvgx jvBd BbwmI‡iÝ wjwg‡UW Gi my`xN© 22 eQ‡ii c_Pjv mdjZvi mv‡_ AwZµg 

K‡i‡Q| GB `xN© c_ cvwo w`‡Z Avgv‡`i mv‡_ mve©ÿwYK wQ‡jb m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvi, exgvMÖvnK, Dbœqb 

I `vßwiK Kgx© Ges Kg©KZ©vMY| Avcbv‡`i AvšÍwiK mn‡hvwMZv I AskMÖn‡b gva¨‡g cÖwZôvbwU µgvš^‡q 

GwM‡q hv‡”Q| GRb¨ cÙv Bmjvgx jvBd BbwmI‡iÝ wjwg‡UW Gi cÿ †_‡K Avcbv‡`i‡K RvbvB A‡kl 

ab¨ev`|

Avcbviv wbðqB AeMZ Av‡Qb †h, 2018 mv‡j †Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjbv cl©‡` cwieZ©b G‡m‡Q| Avgiv AZ¨šÍ 

Avbw›`Z I Mwe©Z †h evsjv‡`‡k cÖ_g Bmjvgx exgvi mdj KY©avi, my`ÿ, cÖÁvevb, D”P wkwÿZ mdj 

e¨w³e‡M©i mgš^‡q MwVZ cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i gva¨‡g eZ©gv‡b cÙv Bmjvgx jvBd BbwmI‡iÝ wjwg‡UW 

cwiPvwjZ n‡”Q| Bmjvgx kixqvni wfwË‡Z cwiPvwjZ cÖwZôvbwU cwiPvjbvi †ÿ‡Î `~i`„wó m¤úbœ weÁ 

cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i AKzÚ mg_©‡bi Rb¨ Avwg AvšÍwiKfv‡e K…ZÁZv Ávcb KiwQ|

Bmjvgx kixqvni mKj wbqgbxwZ Abymiæc~e©K K‡i cÖwZôvb cwiPvjbvi Rb¨ †`‡ki wewkó Av‡jg‡`i wb‡q 

MVb Kiv n‡q‡Q kixqvn&& †evW©| Bmjvgx kixqvn&& †gvZv‡eK Kvh©µg cwiPvjbvi Rb¨ kixqvn&& †ev‡W©i m¤§vwbZ 

m`m¨MY wbqwgZ civgk© w`‡q Avm‡Qb|

exgv Dbœqb I wbqš¿Y KZ©…cÿ (AvBwWAviG) myôy, ̄ ^”Q I mvejxj e¨e¯’vcbvi gva¨‡g exgv wk‡íi Dbœqb Ges 

cÖmv‡ii Rb¨ bvbvg~Lx c`‡ÿc I Kg©m~Px MÖnY K‡i‡Q Ges G wkí‡K GwM‡q wb‡Z MYcÖRvZš¿x evsjv‡`k 

miKv‡ii wb‡`©kbv¸‡jv mve©ÿwYK myôz Z`viwKi gva¨‡g AZ¨šÍ Kvh©Kifv‡e ev¯Íevqb Ki‡Q|

Avcbviv mK‡j ÁvZ Av‡Qb Rv‡bb †h, ‰ewk¦K gnvgvix †KvwfW-19 Gi cÖv`yf©v‡ei ciciB  BD‡Îb ivwkqv 

hy‡×i Kvi‡Y mvivwe‡k^ A_©‰bwZK g›`v †`Lv w`‡q‡Q| cÖvq cÖwZUv Lv‡Z, we‡kl K‡i exgv wk‡í Gi †bwZevPK 

cÖfve c‡o‡Q| GB cÖwZKzj Ae¯’vi g‡a¨I cÖwZôv‡bi Dbœq‡bi Rb¨ ‰ewk¦K A_©bxwZi K_v we‡ePbvq †i‡L 

bvbvg~Lx c`‡ÿc MÖnY Kiv n‡q‡Q :
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v 1g el© wcÖwgqvg e„w×i Rb¨ bZzb bZzb msMVb ‰Zix K‡i cÖwkÿ‡Yi gva¨‡g Kg©x I Kg©KZ©vMY‡K 
†ckvMZfv‡e my`ÿ Kiv|

v bevqb wcÖwgqvg e„w× K‡i †Kv¤úvbxi Avw_©K wfZ gReyZ Kivi j‡ÿ c`‡ÿc †bqv|

v MÖvnK‡`i AvgvbZ wbwðZ Kvivi j‡ÿ B-wiwmU Pvjy Kiv n‡q‡Q|

v Bw›Uª‡MÖ‡UW md&&UIq¨v‡ii gva¨‡g Awd‡mi Kvh©µg cwiPvjbv I MÖvnK †mev wbwðZKiv|

v MÖæc exgv Z_v e¨vsKvÝy‡iÝ m¤úªmvi‡Y bvbvg~Lx c`‡ÿc MÖnY Kiv|

v AwaKZi jvfRbK Lv‡Z wewb‡qv‡Mi gva¨‡g gybvdv e„w× Kiv| 

v Zvgv`x cwjwm PvjyKi‡Yi gva¨‡g bevqb wcÖwgqvg AR©‡bi Rb¨ mivmwi MÖvn‡Ki mv‡_ Kv÷gvi †Kqvi 
Gi gva¨‡g †hvMv‡hvM mvab K‡i cwjwm Pvjyi e¨e¯’v Kiv|

v e¨q ms‡KvP‡bi me©vZ¡K cÖ‡Póv Ae¨vnZ ‡i‡L myôyfv‡e Awdm cwiPvjbv Kiv|

v `vßwiK Kg©Pvix I Kg©KZ©vMY‡K wewfbœ cÖwkÿ‡Yi gva¨‡g AwaKZi `ÿ I hy‡Mvc‡hvMx K‡i ˆZix Kiv|

v cyY©v½iƒ‡c Bmjvgx kixqvn&& †gvZv‡eK ‡Kv¤úvbx‡K cwiPvjbvi cÖ‡Póv Ae¨vnZ ivLv|

Avgiv Avkv KiwQ Avcbv‡`i AvšÍwiK mn‡hvwMZv I Avgv‡`i M„nxZ c`‡ÿc cÙv Bmjvgx jvBd BbwmI‡iÝ 
wjt Gi e¨emvwqK mvdj¨‡K AviI MwZkxj Ki‡e| e¨emv m¤úªmvi‡Yi Rb¨ Avgiv mviv ‡`‡ki cÖZ¨šÍ AÂ‡j 
byZb msMVb m„wó I Awdm ¯’vcb Kivi Kvh©µg ïiæ K‡iwQ| `ÿ I †hvM¨ Kgx© evwnbx MVb K‡i cÙv Bmjvgx 
jvBd BbwmI‡iÝ wjt ‡K ‡`‡ki cÖ_g mvwii exgv †Kv¤úvbx‡Z DbœZ Ki‡Z mÿg n‡ev, BbkvAvjøvn&|

m‡e©vcwi, †Kv¤úvbxi mvwe©K Dbœq‡bi Rb¨ †kqvi‡nvìvi, cwiPvjbv cl©` I mKj ¯Í‡ii Kg©KZ©v/Kg©PvixM‡Yi 
AKzÚ mg_©b, AK¬všÍ cwikÖg I AvšÍwiK mn‡hvwMZvi Rb¨ ab¨ev` Ávc‡bi cvkvcvwk mK‡ji my¯^v¯’¨ I ̀ xN©vqy 
Kvgbv KiwQ|

------------------
gyL¨ wbe©vnx Kg©KZ©v

Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmatullah.

The Board of Directors (BoD) of your company Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited (PILIL), 
welcome you to the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and would like to thank you for your 
continued patronage and support over the years. We are pleased to present before you the Annual 
Report along with the Auditors’ Report and audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 for kind consideration and adoption.

This Report has been prepared in compliance with the provisions of relevant Acts, Rules, Regulations, 
Notifications, etc. issued by the Regulatory Bodies wherein the Directors have made relevant 
disclosures and explanations pertaining to compliance, transparency and sound corporate governance 
along with the details of the business performance, operations and achievements of the company for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. 

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE INDUSTRY

Transitioning the Banglaesh Insurance Industry to a Smart fromewark by 2041 entails overcoming 
notable challenges. Key obstacles include the lack of robust technological infrastructure and 
digital literacy, necessitating efforts to bridge the digital divide. Addressing date security, privacy 
concerns, and integrating new digital solutions with legacy systems repuire strategic planning. 
Regulatory compliance, establishing trust in digital services, and managing implementation costs 
are additional hurdles.Overcoming resistance to organizational change and navigating 
interoperability issues are crucial for a smooth transition. Furthermore, heightened market 
competition underscores the need for strategic positioning. In tandem with these challenges, there 
is a vital need to cultivate a mindset shift among individuals, Fostering openness and adaptability 
to maximize the benefits of this technological evolution.  

The government has greenlit guideline for the introduction of insurance products through 
commercial banks, marking a singnificant move in the form of Bancassurance. This initiative is 
poised to enhance the countrys insurance sector by increasing penetrantion and revitalizing 
opportunities. Bancassurance not only contributes to improved profitability and liquidity for banks 
but also fosters a sense of responsibility towards clients, opening new doors for inclusion and 
growth in the industry.

The Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) have introduced the Regulatory 
Sandbox Guidelince-2023, fostering innovation in the insurance sector. This initiative aims to 
blend industry evolution with customer protection, encourahging the integration of technology 
into insurance services. The regulatory sandbox provides a platform insurers and startups to 
introduce novel products, contributing to a technology- driven paradigm.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE OF PILIL

The product wise break-up of premium income and management expenses with corresponding 
figure of 2023 is presented below:

YEAR-WISE PERFORMANCE FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Year-wise Performance of the company for last five years has been depicted in a separate 
statement under title ‘‘Five Years Financial Progression”. Some highlights are given in items 
below:

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA 

Life Fund:

Total life fund of the Company as at 31st December, 2023 stood at Tk. (254.41) crore as against 
Tk. 233.89 crore in the preceding year. Life Fund of the Company has been decreased due to 
maturity of significant amount of claims. The Board hopes that the life fund will increase 
gradually by virtue of building up consequential margin expected to be achieved from the 
initiatives taken so far.

Investment Portfolio:
The Investment of the Company for the year of 2023 was Tk. 216.00 crore. The comparative 
statement of the last five years’ investment is given below:

RISK AND CONCERN

Over the last decade, the business world has faced unprecedented changes and challenges. 
Specially, Insurances of all sizes are now more concerned than ever about risk and its 
management.

Importantly, risk management is a central part of the PILIL’s strategic management focus. PILIL’s 
risk management objectives ensure that strategic, operational and tactical risks are identified, 
documented, managed and controlled appropriately. 

We have employed Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework for our risk management 
system which enables us to act quickly and prudently in the event of risk occurrence, and also 
helps us create a library of our risk response initiatives developing our core competitive 
advantages. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING EXTRA-ORDINARY GAIN OR LOSS

There was no extra-ordinary gain or extra-ordinary loss during the year 2023.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In ordinary course of business, related party transactions take place with other entities that fall 
within the term ‘related party’ as defined in IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure. A statement on the 
related party transactions has been disclosed under item no. 41 of the notes to the financial 
statements.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, 
RIGHTS ISSUES AND/OR ANY OTHER INSTRUMENTS

During the year 2023, the Company did not issue any share or other instruments.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VARIANCE BETWEEN QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Quarterly Financial Statement is given separately. There were some variances in the 
financial results from quarter to quarter. But they are not very significant or material in nature.

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors including Independent Directors, all being Non-Executive Directors, are given only 
Meeting Attendance Fee. During the year 2023, a total amount of BDT 23,49,359 was given to the 
Directors as Meeting Attendance Fee. However, in 2021 the amount was BDT 8,71,200.

DISCLOSURE ON PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors places before you the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2023 for their adoption. The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge, that-

(i) The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes inequity;

(ii) Proper books and accounts of the company have been maintained;

(iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of the 
financial statements and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment;

(iv) IAS/IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements;

(v) As required by condition 6 of the guidelines, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and 
the Chief Financial Officer have jointly certified to the Board that-

(a)  They have reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 
December 2023 and to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii)  These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s 
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and 
applicable laws

(b)  There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the company’s 
code of conduct.

DISCLOSURE ON INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board states that the systems of internal control are sound in design and have been 
implemented and monitored effectively. 

PILIL follows Committee of Sponsoring Organization (COSO) framework for evaluating internal 
controls in the organization. The COSO model defines internal control as “a process, effected by 
an entity’s board of directors, management and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable 
assurance of the achievement of objectives in the following categories:

 v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
 v Reliability of financial reporting
 v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations”

However, the BoD is primarily responsible to establish and review the operational effectiveness of 
such controls in PILIL. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee of PILIL ensures through 
Internal, External, Compliance, Special and/or other Audits that the system of internal control is 
adequate and effective. 

Internal Audit Unit of PILIL does have valuable contribution towards improving the effectiveness 
of its systems of internal control. Its risk-based audit approaches provide reasonable assurance to 
the Audit Committee and the Management about the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control system in the company. 

PROTECTION OF NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Board certifies that non-controlling shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, 
or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective 
means of redress.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS

PILIL has no subsidiary and therefore, no disclosure is applicable hereto.

COMPANY’S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS GOING CONCERN

The Directors declare that there are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. For this purpose of assessment whether PILIL has ability to continue as a going 
concern, the following issues have been considered:

 v The commitment towards the claims filed and its ability to meet contractual obligations as 
they become due;

 v Liquidity-related actions and plans to stabilize the businesses and repay the outstanding 
debt; 

 v The level of PILIL’s realized and unrealized losses and the negative impact of these losses 
on shareholders’ equity, and

 v Opinion of Financial and Compliance Auditors

While considering these issues, significant judgments and estimates with respect to the potentially 
adverse financial and liquidity effects of PILIL’s risks and uncertainties have been made. 

DIVIDEND

The Company did not receive Actuarial Basis for Valuation for the year 2023 from Insurance 
Development & Regulatory Authority. Consequently, no actuarial valuation was carried out and 
recommended from the Actuary for payment of dividend to the Shareholders. Accorddingly the 
Board of Directors of the Company did not recommend any dividend to Shareholders and bonus 
to Policyhoders for the year 2023.

BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2024

Keeping in view the effect of pandemic and the above scenario, Padma Life has revised its 
business plan and strategy for survival and growth.  As, due to restricted in-person interactions on 
account of the lockdown measures etc. and grave global economic recession, we assume that 
premium income against Individual (Ekok) and Micro (DPS) insurance may not grow sufficiently 
despite all possible measures. 

Therefore, in addition to taking all necessary steps to boost up selling Individual (Ekok) and Micro 
(DPS) insurance, collecting renewal premium and reviving lapsed policies, our business plan 
redirects company’s major efforts and focus on ‘Group life Insurance’ as opposed to individual 
schemes.

Under group insurance category, every attempt will be made, in addition to employees’ life 
insurance schemes, to bring Banks’ depositors and investors of some specific categories under 
group life insurance coverage. In this regard, considerable progress has already been made. 

Our business plan also encompasses elimination of unnecessary costs and optimal use of 
resources. We are committed to continue our efforts as mentioned above to reduce excessive cost 
and make the business profitable.

We are hopeful, by the grace of Allah SWT, through implementing our well-crafted and pragmatic 
business and action plans we will be able to make PILIL one of the country’s best life insurance 
company, Insha-Allah. 

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of PILIL meet on a regular basis. A detail statement showing attendance of the 
Directors in the Board Meetings is placed as under:

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shareholding position of Directors and other related parties at the end of 2023 is as under:

Shares held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children, Executives & 
shareholders holding 10% or more 

RETIREMENT AND ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Sponsor Directors:
In accordance with the Articles 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company, two directors 
shall retire by rotation from office at the 24th Annual General Meeting. The retiring directors are:

 i.  Md. Ali Hossain Nominted by Legendary Enterprises Ltd.
 ii. Mr. Ekramul Ameen FCA Nominted by Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.

Being eligible they offered themselves for re-election.

Public Shareholder Directors:
In accordance with the provision under Article 96 of the Article of Association of the Company and as 
provided under Insurance Act & Rules, Public notification with regard to election of Public Subscribers’ 
Director has been published in the 2 (two) national Dailies (The Daily Sonali Barta & The Daily 
Morning Observer), but no nomination papers were received from the shareholders for election.

Independent Directors:
As per the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 03 June 2018, (i) At least one fifth (1/5) 
of the total number of directors in the company’s board shall be independent directors, (ii) 
Independent Director(s) shall be appointment by the Board of Directors and approved by the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting(AGM), and (iii) the tenure of office of an independent 
director shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Financial Auditor:
Pursuant to section 210 of company Act, 1994, the Company’s statutory auditors M/S Pinaki & 
Company, Chartered Accountants, shall retire & expired in the 24th Annual General Meeting. 

M/S Pinaki & Company, Chartered Accountants have expressed their interest as a statutory 
auditors for the year December 31, 2024 of the Company. The BoD has endorsed the 
recommendation for appointment M/S Pinaki & Company,Chartered Accountants at a 
remuneration of BDT 250,000.00 including income tax. As such the matter is placed before the 
24th  AGM for kind approval. 

Compliance Auditor:
Anil Salam Idris & Co.Chartered Accountants was the Corporate Governance Auditors for the 
year 2023. Since the said auditor is interested for reappointment as compliance auditor for the year 
2024, the BoD has endorsed the recommendation for reappointment at a fee of Tk. 30,000.00 
including income tax and the matter is placed before the 24th  AGM for kind approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of PILIL are committed in adopting the highest governance standard and 
implementing them in protecting the interests of shareholders, policy holders and all other 

stakeholders. The Company has complied with all necessary guidelines under BSEC notification 
no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. A certificate of Compliance 
required under the said Guidelines, as provided by Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants, is 
annexed in the Annual Report 2024. 

Audit Committee:
The Committee plays an important role to ensure transparency, accountability in the operations of 
the Company and confirming that the activities are conducted within the framework of principles 
and policies as laid down by the Board, as well as the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated June 03, 2018. 
The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024 audited by the External Auditors stressing on the importance of the successful 
compliance within the company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):
In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin and dated June 03, 
2018 issued by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Padma Islami Life Insurance 
Ltd. formed a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The NRC is responsible or 
accountable to the Board and to the Shareholders of the Company. Two meeting of NRC was held 
during the year 2023.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE CEO AND THE CFO TO THE BOARD

The Details of discussion of declaration by the CEO and Finance Controller is appended 
separately.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE SHARIAH BOARD

A declaration by the Shariah Committee on compliance with Islamic Shariah is appended separately.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ON THE COMPANY’S POSITION AND 
OPERATION

Services to Policyholders:
The reputation and progress of the company largely depend on rendering prompt and quality 
service to the policyholders. Keeping this in view, we have further strengthened our Services and 
launched a One-stop Service center during the year, the Company has settled Maturity sarvial 
benefit surrenden claim & death Claims of significant amount totaling to Tk. 52.97 crores.

Human Resource Practices:
PILIL is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees, irrespective of their gender, 
race, nationality, ethnic origin, or religion. PILIL is an inclusive employer and values diversity in 
its employees. 

These extend to recruitment and selection, training, career development, flexible working 
arrangements, promotion and performance appraisal. Our corporate goal is to improve staff 

engagement by measuring and responding to staff members’ views and willingness to exert extra 
effort to achieve business success. 

We provide necessary support to staff in order to manage change effectively. We credit the strength 
of our people for our organization’s success, their understanding of strategy and goals, as well as 
their satisfaction with the work they do and how it contributes, are of critical importance.

We continue our efforts to create and maintain a highly skilled and motivated workforce. Through 
our succession planning initiatives, leadership capacity is identified and developed to ensure 
ongoing success through adequate training and motivation. The Manpower strength of the 
company at the end of 2023 was 280.

Information Technology:
Information and Communication Technology (ICT) has become indispensable for Insurance 
Companies in ensuring smooth operation and providing efficient services. Recognized this fact the 
Board has adopted a comprehensive ICT policy for the company.

ICT system of PILIL has been revamped by strengthening and securing the automation of services. 
The highly experienced and trained ICT professionals are working on implementing and developing 
the company’s online integrated full-featured ERP System and other ICT infrastructure and constantly 
innovating and writing in-house programs to meet the needs of the company. Local Area Network 
(LAN) and other technologies have been in operation in the Head office and Branch offices.

Corporate Social Responsibility:
The Directors are sincere to discharge corporate responsibilities to the society. As a part of 
discharging corporate social responsibilities, PILIL has initiated a number programs and has been 
sponsoring various welfare activit, besides patronizing cultural activities in the country since its 
inception. 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmatullah.

The Board of Directors (BoD) of your company Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited (PILIL), 
welcome you to the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and would like to thank you for your 
continued patronage and support over the years. We are pleased to present before you the Annual 
Report along with the Auditors’ Report and audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 for kind consideration and adoption.

This Report has been prepared in compliance with the provisions of relevant Acts, Rules, Regulations, 
Notifications, etc. issued by the Regulatory Bodies wherein the Directors have made relevant 
disclosures and explanations pertaining to compliance, transparency and sound corporate governance 
along with the details of the business performance, operations and achievements of the company for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. 

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE INDUSTRY

Transitioning the Banglaesh Insurance Industry to a Smart fromewark by 2041 entails overcoming 
notable challenges. Key obstacles include the lack of robust technological infrastructure and 
digital literacy, necessitating efforts to bridge the digital divide. Addressing date security, privacy 
concerns, and integrating new digital solutions with legacy systems repuire strategic planning. 
Regulatory compliance, establishing trust in digital services, and managing implementation costs 
are additional hurdles.Overcoming resistance to organizational change and navigating 
interoperability issues are crucial for a smooth transition. Furthermore, heightened market 
competition underscores the need for strategic positioning. In tandem with these challenges, there 
is a vital need to cultivate a mindset shift among individuals, Fostering openness and adaptability 
to maximize the benefits of this technological evolution.  

The government has greenlit guideline for the introduction of insurance products through 
commercial banks, marking a singnificant move in the form of Bancassurance. This initiative is 
poised to enhance the countrys insurance sector by increasing penetrantion and revitalizing 
opportunities. Bancassurance not only contributes to improved profitability and liquidity for banks 
but also fosters a sense of responsibility towards clients, opening new doors for inclusion and 
growth in the industry.

The Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) have introduced the Regulatory 
Sandbox Guidelince-2023, fostering innovation in the insurance sector. This initiative aims to 
blend industry evolution with customer protection, encourahging the integration of technology 
into insurance services. The regulatory sandbox provides a platform insurers and startups to 
introduce novel products, contributing to a technology- driven paradigm.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE OF PILIL

The product wise break-up of premium income and management expenses with corresponding 
figure of 2023 is presented below:

YEAR-WISE PERFORMANCE FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Year-wise Performance of the company for last five years has been depicted in a separate 
statement under title ‘‘Five Years Financial Progression”. Some highlights are given in items 
below:

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA 

Life Fund:

Total life fund of the Company as at 31st December, 2023 stood at Tk. (254.41) crore as against 
Tk. 233.89 crore in the preceding year. Life Fund of the Company has been decreased due to 
maturity of significant amount of claims. The Board hopes that the life fund will increase 
gradually by virtue of building up consequential margin expected to be achieved from the 
initiatives taken so far.

Investment Portfolio:
The Investment of the Company for the year of 2023 was Tk. 216.00 crore. The comparative 
statement of the last five years’ investment is given below:

RISK AND CONCERN

Over the last decade, the business world has faced unprecedented changes and challenges. 
Specially, Insurances of all sizes are now more concerned than ever about risk and its 
management.

Importantly, risk management is a central part of the PILIL’s strategic management focus. PILIL’s 
risk management objectives ensure that strategic, operational and tactical risks are identified, 
documented, managed and controlled appropriately. 

We have employed Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework for our risk management 
system which enables us to act quickly and prudently in the event of risk occurrence, and also 
helps us create a library of our risk response initiatives developing our core competitive 
advantages. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING EXTRA-ORDINARY GAIN OR LOSS

There was no extra-ordinary gain or extra-ordinary loss during the year 2023.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In ordinary course of business, related party transactions take place with other entities that fall 
within the term ‘related party’ as defined in IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure. A statement on the 
related party transactions has been disclosed under item no. 41 of the notes to the financial 
statements.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, 
RIGHTS ISSUES AND/OR ANY OTHER INSTRUMENTS

During the year 2023, the Company did not issue any share or other instruments.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VARIANCE BETWEEN QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Quarterly Financial Statement is given separately. There were some variances in the 
financial results from quarter to quarter. But they are not very significant or material in nature.

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors including Independent Directors, all being Non-Executive Directors, are given only 
Meeting Attendance Fee. During the year 2023, a total amount of BDT 23,49,359 was given to the 
Directors as Meeting Attendance Fee. However, in 2021 the amount was BDT 8,71,200.

DISCLOSURE ON PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors places before you the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2023 for their adoption. The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge, that-

(i) The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes inequity;

(ii) Proper books and accounts of the company have been maintained;

(iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of the 
financial statements and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment;

(iv) IAS/IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements;

(v) As required by condition 6 of the guidelines, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and 
the Chief Financial Officer have jointly certified to the Board that-

(a)  They have reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 
December 2023 and to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii)  These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s 
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and 
applicable laws

(b)  There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the company’s 
code of conduct.

DISCLOSURE ON INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board states that the systems of internal control are sound in design and have been 
implemented and monitored effectively. 

PILIL follows Committee of Sponsoring Organization (COSO) framework for evaluating internal 
controls in the organization. The COSO model defines internal control as “a process, effected by 
an entity’s board of directors, management and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable 
assurance of the achievement of objectives in the following categories:

 v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
 v Reliability of financial reporting
 v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations”

However, the BoD is primarily responsible to establish and review the operational effectiveness of 
such controls in PILIL. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee of PILIL ensures through 
Internal, External, Compliance, Special and/or other Audits that the system of internal control is 
adequate and effective. 

Internal Audit Unit of PILIL does have valuable contribution towards improving the effectiveness 
of its systems of internal control. Its risk-based audit approaches provide reasonable assurance to 
the Audit Committee and the Management about the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control system in the company. 

PROTECTION OF NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Board certifies that non-controlling shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, 
or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective 
means of redress.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS

PILIL has no subsidiary and therefore, no disclosure is applicable hereto.

COMPANY’S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS GOING CONCERN

The Directors declare that there are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. For this purpose of assessment whether PILIL has ability to continue as a going 
concern, the following issues have been considered:

 v The commitment towards the claims filed and its ability to meet contractual obligations as 
they become due;

 v Liquidity-related actions and plans to stabilize the businesses and repay the outstanding 
debt; 

 v The level of PILIL’s realized and unrealized losses and the negative impact of these losses 
on shareholders’ equity, and

 v Opinion of Financial and Compliance Auditors

While considering these issues, significant judgments and estimates with respect to the potentially 
adverse financial and liquidity effects of PILIL’s risks and uncertainties have been made. 

DIVIDEND

The Company did not receive Actuarial Basis for Valuation for the year 2023 from Insurance 
Development & Regulatory Authority. Consequently, no actuarial valuation was carried out and 
recommended from the Actuary for payment of dividend to the Shareholders. Accorddingly the 
Board of Directors of the Company did not recommend any dividend to Shareholders and bonus 
to Policyhoders for the year 2023.

BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2024

Keeping in view the effect of pandemic and the above scenario, Padma Life has revised its 
business plan and strategy for survival and growth.  As, due to restricted in-person interactions on 
account of the lockdown measures etc. and grave global economic recession, we assume that 
premium income against Individual (Ekok) and Micro (DPS) insurance may not grow sufficiently 
despite all possible measures. 

Therefore, in addition to taking all necessary steps to boost up selling Individual (Ekok) and Micro 
(DPS) insurance, collecting renewal premium and reviving lapsed policies, our business plan 
redirects company’s major efforts and focus on ‘Group life Insurance’ as opposed to individual 
schemes.

Under group insurance category, every attempt will be made, in addition to employees’ life 
insurance schemes, to bring Banks’ depositors and investors of some specific categories under 
group life insurance coverage. In this regard, considerable progress has already been made. 

Our business plan also encompasses elimination of unnecessary costs and optimal use of 
resources. We are committed to continue our efforts as mentioned above to reduce excessive cost 
and make the business profitable.

We are hopeful, by the grace of Allah SWT, through implementing our well-crafted and pragmatic 
business and action plans we will be able to make PILIL one of the country’s best life insurance 
company, Insha-Allah. 

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of PILIL meet on a regular basis. A detail statement showing attendance of the 
Directors in the Board Meetings is placed as under:

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shareholding position of Directors and other related parties at the end of 2023 is as under:

Shares held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children, Executives & 
shareholders holding 10% or more 

RETIREMENT AND ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Sponsor Directors:
In accordance with the Articles 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company, two directors 
shall retire by rotation from office at the 24th Annual General Meeting. The retiring directors are:

 i.  Md. Ali Hossain Nominted by Legendary Enterprises Ltd.
 ii. Mr. Ekramul Ameen FCA Nominted by Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.

Being eligible they offered themselves for re-election.

Public Shareholder Directors:
In accordance with the provision under Article 96 of the Article of Association of the Company and as 
provided under Insurance Act & Rules, Public notification with regard to election of Public Subscribers’ 
Director has been published in the 2 (two) national Dailies (The Daily Sonali Barta & The Daily 
Morning Observer), but no nomination papers were received from the shareholders for election.

Independent Directors:
As per the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 03 June 2018, (i) At least one fifth (1/5) 
of the total number of directors in the company’s board shall be independent directors, (ii) 
Independent Director(s) shall be appointment by the Board of Directors and approved by the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting(AGM), and (iii) the tenure of office of an independent 
director shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Financial Auditor:
Pursuant to section 210 of company Act, 1994, the Company’s statutory auditors M/S Pinaki & 
Company, Chartered Accountants, shall retire & expired in the 24th Annual General Meeting. 

M/S Pinaki & Company, Chartered Accountants have expressed their interest as a statutory 
auditors for the year December 31, 2024 of the Company. The BoD has endorsed the 
recommendation for appointment M/S Pinaki & Company,Chartered Accountants at a 
remuneration of BDT 250,000.00 including income tax. As such the matter is placed before the 
24th  AGM for kind approval. 

Compliance Auditor:
Anil Salam Idris & Co.Chartered Accountants was the Corporate Governance Auditors for the 
year 2023. Since the said auditor is interested for reappointment as compliance auditor for the year 
2024, the BoD has endorsed the recommendation for reappointment at a fee of Tk. 30,000.00 
including income tax and the matter is placed before the 24th  AGM for kind approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of PILIL are committed in adopting the highest governance standard and 
implementing them in protecting the interests of shareholders, policy holders and all other 

stakeholders. The Company has complied with all necessary guidelines under BSEC notification 
no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. A certificate of Compliance 
required under the said Guidelines, as provided by Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants, is 
annexed in the Annual Report 2024. 

Audit Committee:
The Committee plays an important role to ensure transparency, accountability in the operations of 
the Company and confirming that the activities are conducted within the framework of principles 
and policies as laid down by the Board, as well as the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated June 03, 2018. 
The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024 audited by the External Auditors stressing on the importance of the successful 
compliance within the company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):
In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin and dated June 03, 
2018 issued by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Padma Islami Life Insurance 
Ltd. formed a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The NRC is responsible or 
accountable to the Board and to the Shareholders of the Company. Two meeting of NRC was held 
during the year 2023.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE CEO AND THE CFO TO THE BOARD

The Details of discussion of declaration by the CEO and Finance Controller is appended 
separately.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE SHARIAH BOARD

A declaration by the Shariah Committee on compliance with Islamic Shariah is appended separately.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ON THE COMPANY’S POSITION AND 
OPERATION

Services to Policyholders:
The reputation and progress of the company largely depend on rendering prompt and quality 
service to the policyholders. Keeping this in view, we have further strengthened our Services and 
launched a One-stop Service center during the year, the Company has settled Maturity sarvial 
benefit surrenden claim & death Claims of significant amount totaling to Tk. 52.97 crores.

Human Resource Practices:
PILIL is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees, irrespective of their gender, 
race, nationality, ethnic origin, or religion. PILIL is an inclusive employer and values diversity in 
its employees. 

These extend to recruitment and selection, training, career development, flexible working 
arrangements, promotion and performance appraisal. Our corporate goal is to improve staff 

engagement by measuring and responding to staff members’ views and willingness to exert extra 
effort to achieve business success. 

We provide necessary support to staff in order to manage change effectively. We credit the strength 
of our people for our organization’s success, their understanding of strategy and goals, as well as 
their satisfaction with the work they do and how it contributes, are of critical importance.

We continue our efforts to create and maintain a highly skilled and motivated workforce. Through 
our succession planning initiatives, leadership capacity is identified and developed to ensure 
ongoing success through adequate training and motivation. The Manpower strength of the 
company at the end of 2023 was 280.

Information Technology:
Information and Communication Technology (ICT) has become indispensable for Insurance 
Companies in ensuring smooth operation and providing efficient services. Recognized this fact the 
Board has adopted a comprehensive ICT policy for the company.

ICT system of PILIL has been revamped by strengthening and securing the automation of services. 
The highly experienced and trained ICT professionals are working on implementing and developing 
the company’s online integrated full-featured ERP System and other ICT infrastructure and constantly 
innovating and writing in-house programs to meet the needs of the company. Local Area Network 
(LAN) and other technologies have been in operation in the Head office and Branch offices.

Corporate Social Responsibility:
The Directors are sincere to discharge corporate responsibilities to the society. As a part of 
discharging corporate social responsibilities, PILIL has initiated a number programs and has been 
sponsoring various welfare activit, besides patronizing cultural activities in the country since its 
inception. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I take this unique opportunity to thank all our honorable 
Shareholders, Directors, our valued policyholders and CEO, all employees of our Company for 
their continued support & co-operation. I also express my sincere gratitude to our Members of 
Shariah Board, the Office of the Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority, Concerned 
Ministries, Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission, Office of Dhaka & Chittagong Stock Exchanges, our Bankers and other esteemed 
well-wishers for their tremendous co-operation, support & confidence.

On behalf of Board of Directors,

AKM Shariat Ullah, FCA, ACCA 
Chairman, Board of Directors
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Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmatullah.

The Board of Directors (BoD) of your company Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited (PILIL), 
welcome you to the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and would like to thank you for your 
continued patronage and support over the years. We are pleased to present before you the Annual 
Report along with the Auditors’ Report and audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 for kind consideration and adoption.

This Report has been prepared in compliance with the provisions of relevant Acts, Rules, Regulations, 
Notifications, etc. issued by the Regulatory Bodies wherein the Directors have made relevant 
disclosures and explanations pertaining to compliance, transparency and sound corporate governance 
along with the details of the business performance, operations and achievements of the company for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. 

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE INDUSTRY

Transitioning the Banglaesh Insurance Industry to a Smart fromewark by 2041 entails overcoming 
notable challenges. Key obstacles include the lack of robust technological infrastructure and 
digital literacy, necessitating efforts to bridge the digital divide. Addressing date security, privacy 
concerns, and integrating new digital solutions with legacy systems repuire strategic planning. 
Regulatory compliance, establishing trust in digital services, and managing implementation costs 
are additional hurdles.Overcoming resistance to organizational change and navigating 
interoperability issues are crucial for a smooth transition. Furthermore, heightened market 
competition underscores the need for strategic positioning. In tandem with these challenges, there 
is a vital need to cultivate a mindset shift among individuals, Fostering openness and adaptability 
to maximize the benefits of this technological evolution.  

The government has greenlit guideline for the introduction of insurance products through 
commercial banks, marking a singnificant move in the form of Bancassurance. This initiative is 
poised to enhance the countrys insurance sector by increasing penetrantion and revitalizing 
opportunities. Bancassurance not only contributes to improved profitability and liquidity for banks 
but also fosters a sense of responsibility towards clients, opening new doors for inclusion and 
growth in the industry.

The Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) have introduced the Regulatory 
Sandbox Guidelince-2023, fostering innovation in the insurance sector. This initiative aims to 
blend industry evolution with customer protection, encourahging the integration of technology 
into insurance services. The regulatory sandbox provides a platform insurers and startups to 
introduce novel products, contributing to a technology- driven paradigm.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE OF PILIL

The product wise break-up of premium income and management expenses with corresponding 
figure of 2023 is presented below:

YEAR-WISE PERFORMANCE FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Year-wise Performance of the company for last five years has been depicted in a separate 
statement under title ‘‘Five Years Financial Progression”. Some highlights are given in items 
below:

Particulars
2023

 (In crore
Taka)

2022
 (In crore

Taka)

Increase/Decrease
over 2021

First year premium: 3.66 14.25 -74.32%

Ekok Bima 3.45 13.66 -74.74%

DPS (Khudra Bima) 0.21 0.59 -64.40%

Renewal Premium 7.51 7.13 5.33%

Ekok Bima 6.11 4.94 23.68%

DPS (Khudra Bima) 1.40 2.19 -36.07%

Group Insurance Premium: 9.94 10.28 -3.31%

Gross Premium 21.12 31.67 33.31%

Life Fund -254.41 -233.89 8.77%

Claims settlement 25.12 52.97 -52.58%

Management Expenses 12.92 18.53 30.28%

Commission to Insurance Agents 3.63 7.52 51.73%

Allowances & Commission

(Other than Commission included above) 0.88 0.76 15.79%

Administrative & other expenses 8.41 10.64 -20.96%

Particulars 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

First year Premium 3.66 14.25 7.54 9.03 13.17

Renewal Premium  7.51 7.13 18.76 33.26 45.98

Group Insurance Premium 9.24 10.28 10.06 6.57 7.06

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA 

Life Fund:

Total life fund of the Company as at 31st December, 2023 stood at Tk. (254.41) crore as against 
Tk. 233.89 crore in the preceding year. Life Fund of the Company has been decreased due to 
maturity of significant amount of claims. The Board hopes that the life fund will increase 
gradually by virtue of building up consequential margin expected to be achieved from the 
initiatives taken so far.

Investment Portfolio:
The Investment of the Company for the year of 2023 was Tk. 216.00 crore. The comparative 
statement of the last five years’ investment is given below:

RISK AND CONCERN

Over the last decade, the business world has faced unprecedented changes and challenges. 
Specially, Insurances of all sizes are now more concerned than ever about risk and its 
management.

Importantly, risk management is a central part of the PILIL’s strategic management focus. PILIL’s 
risk management objectives ensure that strategic, operational and tactical risks are identified, 
documented, managed and controlled appropriately. 

We have employed Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework for our risk management 
system which enables us to act quickly and prudently in the event of risk occurrence, and also 
helps us create a library of our risk response initiatives developing our core competitive 
advantages. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING EXTRA-ORDINARY GAIN OR LOSS

There was no extra-ordinary gain or extra-ordinary loss during the year 2023.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In ordinary course of business, related party transactions take place with other entities that fall 
within the term ‘related party’ as defined in IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure. A statement on the 
related party transactions has been disclosed under item no. 41 of the notes to the financial 
statements.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, 
RIGHTS ISSUES AND/OR ANY OTHER INSTRUMENTS

During the year 2023, the Company did not issue any share or other instruments.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VARIANCE BETWEEN QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Quarterly Financial Statement is given separately. There were some variances in the 
financial results from quarter to quarter. But they are not very significant or material in nature.

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors including Independent Directors, all being Non-Executive Directors, are given only 
Meeting Attendance Fee. During the year 2023, a total amount of BDT 23,49,359 was given to the 
Directors as Meeting Attendance Fee. However, in 2021 the amount was BDT 8,71,200.

DISCLOSURE ON PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors places before you the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2023 for their adoption. The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge, that-

(i) The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes inequity;

(ii) Proper books and accounts of the company have been maintained;

(iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of the 
financial statements and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment;

(iv) IAS/IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements;

(v) As required by condition 6 of the guidelines, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and 
the Chief Financial Officer have jointly certified to the Board that-

(a)  They have reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 
December 2023 and to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii)  These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s 
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and 
applicable laws

(b)  There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the company’s 
code of conduct.

DISCLOSURE ON INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board states that the systems of internal control are sound in design and have been 
implemented and monitored effectively. 

PILIL follows Committee of Sponsoring Organization (COSO) framework for evaluating internal 
controls in the organization. The COSO model defines internal control as “a process, effected by 
an entity’s board of directors, management and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable 
assurance of the achievement of objectives in the following categories:

 v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
 v Reliability of financial reporting
 v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations”

However, the BoD is primarily responsible to establish and review the operational effectiveness of 
such controls in PILIL. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee of PILIL ensures through 
Internal, External, Compliance, Special and/or other Audits that the system of internal control is 
adequate and effective. 

Internal Audit Unit of PILIL does have valuable contribution towards improving the effectiveness 
of its systems of internal control. Its risk-based audit approaches provide reasonable assurance to 
the Audit Committee and the Management about the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control system in the company. 

PROTECTION OF NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Board certifies that non-controlling shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, 
or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective 
means of redress.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS

PILIL has no subsidiary and therefore, no disclosure is applicable hereto.

COMPANY’S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS GOING CONCERN

The Directors declare that there are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. For this purpose of assessment whether PILIL has ability to continue as a going 
concern, the following issues have been considered:

 v The commitment towards the claims filed and its ability to meet contractual obligations as 
they become due;

 v Liquidity-related actions and plans to stabilize the businesses and repay the outstanding 
debt; 

 v The level of PILIL’s realized and unrealized losses and the negative impact of these losses 
on shareholders’ equity, and

 v Opinion of Financial and Compliance Auditors

While considering these issues, significant judgments and estimates with respect to the potentially 
adverse financial and liquidity effects of PILIL’s risks and uncertainties have been made. 

DIVIDEND

The Company did not receive Actuarial Basis for Valuation for the year 2023 from Insurance 
Development & Regulatory Authority. Consequently, no actuarial valuation was carried out and 
recommended from the Actuary for payment of dividend to the Shareholders. Accorddingly the 
Board of Directors of the Company did not recommend any dividend to Shareholders and bonus 
to Policyhoders for the year 2023.

BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2024

Keeping in view the effect of pandemic and the above scenario, Padma Life has revised its 
business plan and strategy for survival and growth.  As, due to restricted in-person interactions on 
account of the lockdown measures etc. and grave global economic recession, we assume that 
premium income against Individual (Ekok) and Micro (DPS) insurance may not grow sufficiently 
despite all possible measures. 

Therefore, in addition to taking all necessary steps to boost up selling Individual (Ekok) and Micro 
(DPS) insurance, collecting renewal premium and reviving lapsed policies, our business plan 
redirects company’s major efforts and focus on ‘Group life Insurance’ as opposed to individual 
schemes.

Under group insurance category, every attempt will be made, in addition to employees’ life 
insurance schemes, to bring Banks’ depositors and investors of some specific categories under 
group life insurance coverage. In this regard, considerable progress has already been made. 

Our business plan also encompasses elimination of unnecessary costs and optimal use of 
resources. We are committed to continue our efforts as mentioned above to reduce excessive cost 
and make the business profitable.

We are hopeful, by the grace of Allah SWT, through implementing our well-crafted and pragmatic 
business and action plans we will be able to make PILIL one of the country’s best life insurance 
company, Insha-Allah. 

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of PILIL meet on a regular basis. A detail statement showing attendance of the 
Directors in the Board Meetings is placed as under:

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shareholding position of Directors and other related parties at the end of 2023 is as under:

Shares held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children, Executives & 
shareholders holding 10% or more 

RETIREMENT AND ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Sponsor Directors:
In accordance with the Articles 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company, two directors 
shall retire by rotation from office at the 24th Annual General Meeting. The retiring directors are:

 i.  Md. Ali Hossain Nominted by Legendary Enterprises Ltd.
 ii. Mr. Ekramul Ameen FCA Nominted by Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.

Being eligible they offered themselves for re-election.

Public Shareholder Directors:
In accordance with the provision under Article 96 of the Article of Association of the Company and as 
provided under Insurance Act & Rules, Public notification with regard to election of Public Subscribers’ 
Director has been published in the 2 (two) national Dailies (The Daily Sonali Barta & The Daily 
Morning Observer), but no nomination papers were received from the shareholders for election.

Independent Directors:
As per the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 03 June 2018, (i) At least one fifth (1/5) 
of the total number of directors in the company’s board shall be independent directors, (ii) 
Independent Director(s) shall be appointment by the Board of Directors and approved by the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting(AGM), and (iii) the tenure of office of an independent 
director shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Financial Auditor:
Pursuant to section 210 of company Act, 1994, the Company’s statutory auditors M/S Pinaki & 
Company, Chartered Accountants, shall retire & expired in the 24th Annual General Meeting. 

M/S Pinaki & Company, Chartered Accountants have expressed their interest as a statutory 
auditors for the year December 31, 2024 of the Company. The BoD has endorsed the 
recommendation for appointment M/S Pinaki & Company,Chartered Accountants at a 
remuneration of BDT 250,000.00 including income tax. As such the matter is placed before the 
24th  AGM for kind approval. 

Compliance Auditor:
Anil Salam Idris & Co.Chartered Accountants was the Corporate Governance Auditors for the 
year 2023. Since the said auditor is interested for reappointment as compliance auditor for the year 
2024, the BoD has endorsed the recommendation for reappointment at a fee of Tk. 30,000.00 
including income tax and the matter is placed before the 24th  AGM for kind approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of PILIL are committed in adopting the highest governance standard and 
implementing them in protecting the interests of shareholders, policy holders and all other 

stakeholders. The Company has complied with all necessary guidelines under BSEC notification 
no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. A certificate of Compliance 
required under the said Guidelines, as provided by Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants, is 
annexed in the Annual Report 2024. 

Audit Committee:
The Committee plays an important role to ensure transparency, accountability in the operations of 
the Company and confirming that the activities are conducted within the framework of principles 
and policies as laid down by the Board, as well as the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated June 03, 2018. 
The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024 audited by the External Auditors stressing on the importance of the successful 
compliance within the company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):
In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin and dated June 03, 
2018 issued by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Padma Islami Life Insurance 
Ltd. formed a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The NRC is responsible or 
accountable to the Board and to the Shareholders of the Company. Two meeting of NRC was held 
during the year 2023.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE CEO AND THE CFO TO THE BOARD

The Details of discussion of declaration by the CEO and Finance Controller is appended 
separately.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE SHARIAH BOARD

A declaration by the Shariah Committee on compliance with Islamic Shariah is appended separately.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ON THE COMPANY’S POSITION AND 
OPERATION

Services to Policyholders:
The reputation and progress of the company largely depend on rendering prompt and quality 
service to the policyholders. Keeping this in view, we have further strengthened our Services and 
launched a One-stop Service center during the year, the Company has settled Maturity sarvial 
benefit surrenden claim & death Claims of significant amount totaling to Tk. 52.97 crores.

Human Resource Practices:
PILIL is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees, irrespective of their gender, 
race, nationality, ethnic origin, or religion. PILIL is an inclusive employer and values diversity in 
its employees. 

These extend to recruitment and selection, training, career development, flexible working 
arrangements, promotion and performance appraisal. Our corporate goal is to improve staff 

engagement by measuring and responding to staff members’ views and willingness to exert extra 
effort to achieve business success. 

We provide necessary support to staff in order to manage change effectively. We credit the strength 
of our people for our organization’s success, their understanding of strategy and goals, as well as 
their satisfaction with the work they do and how it contributes, are of critical importance.

We continue our efforts to create and maintain a highly skilled and motivated workforce. Through 
our succession planning initiatives, leadership capacity is identified and developed to ensure 
ongoing success through adequate training and motivation. The Manpower strength of the 
company at the end of 2023 was 280.

Information Technology:
Information and Communication Technology (ICT) has become indispensable for Insurance 
Companies in ensuring smooth operation and providing efficient services. Recognized this fact the 
Board has adopted a comprehensive ICT policy for the company.

ICT system of PILIL has been revamped by strengthening and securing the automation of services. 
The highly experienced and trained ICT professionals are working on implementing and developing 
the company’s online integrated full-featured ERP System and other ICT infrastructure and constantly 
innovating and writing in-house programs to meet the needs of the company. Local Area Network 
(LAN) and other technologies have been in operation in the Head office and Branch offices.

Corporate Social Responsibility:
The Directors are sincere to discharge corporate responsibilities to the society. As a part of 
discharging corporate social responsibilities, PILIL has initiated a number programs and has been 
sponsoring various welfare activit, besides patronizing cultural activities in the country since its 
inception. 
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Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmatullah.

The Board of Directors (BoD) of your company Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited (PILIL), 
welcome you to the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and would like to thank you for your 
continued patronage and support over the years. We are pleased to present before you the Annual 
Report along with the Auditors’ Report and audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 for kind consideration and adoption.

This Report has been prepared in compliance with the provisions of relevant Acts, Rules, Regulations, 
Notifications, etc. issued by the Regulatory Bodies wherein the Directors have made relevant 
disclosures and explanations pertaining to compliance, transparency and sound corporate governance 
along with the details of the business performance, operations and achievements of the company for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. 

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE INDUSTRY

Transitioning the Banglaesh Insurance Industry to a Smart fromewark by 2041 entails overcoming 
notable challenges. Key obstacles include the lack of robust technological infrastructure and 
digital literacy, necessitating efforts to bridge the digital divide. Addressing date security, privacy 
concerns, and integrating new digital solutions with legacy systems repuire strategic planning. 
Regulatory compliance, establishing trust in digital services, and managing implementation costs 
are additional hurdles.Overcoming resistance to organizational change and navigating 
interoperability issues are crucial for a smooth transition. Furthermore, heightened market 
competition underscores the need for strategic positioning. In tandem with these challenges, there 
is a vital need to cultivate a mindset shift among individuals, Fostering openness and adaptability 
to maximize the benefits of this technological evolution.  

The government has greenlit guideline for the introduction of insurance products through 
commercial banks, marking a singnificant move in the form of Bancassurance. This initiative is 
poised to enhance the countrys insurance sector by increasing penetrantion and revitalizing 
opportunities. Bancassurance not only contributes to improved profitability and liquidity for banks 
but also fosters a sense of responsibility towards clients, opening new doors for inclusion and 
growth in the industry.

The Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) have introduced the Regulatory 
Sandbox Guidelince-2023, fostering innovation in the insurance sector. This initiative aims to 
blend industry evolution with customer protection, encourahging the integration of technology 
into insurance services. The regulatory sandbox provides a platform insurers and startups to 
introduce novel products, contributing to a technology- driven paradigm.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE OF PILIL

The product wise break-up of premium income and management expenses with corresponding 
figure of 2023 is presented below:

YEAR-WISE PERFORMANCE FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Year-wise Performance of the company for last five years has been depicted in a separate 
statement under title ‘‘Five Years Financial Progression”. Some highlights are given in items 
below:

Particulars 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Gross Premium 21.12 31.66 36.36 48.86 66.21

Investment Income 5.46 6.35 3.93 6.20 6.97

Claims 25.12 52.66 33.71 41.63 68.75

Management Expenses:     

a) Commission 4.51 8.29 4.67 5.66 7.15

  b) Admin Expenses 8.41 10.65 9.74 11.66 18.33

Assets 267.75 283.32 314.88 224.63 223.89

Life Fund (254.41) (233.89) 12.46 13.14 20.98

Claims to Premium (%) 118.94% 167% 92.71% 85% 103.83%

Management Expenses to  61.17% 59.82% 39.62% 35.49% 38.48%
Premium (%)

Net Operating Cash Flows  (3.46) (9.83) 9.78 8.13 (13.13)
per share

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA 

Life Fund:

Total life fund of the Company as at 31st December, 2023 stood at Tk. (254.41) crore as against 
Tk. 233.89 crore in the preceding year. Life Fund of the Company has been decreased due to 
maturity of significant amount of claims. The Board hopes that the life fund will increase 
gradually by virtue of building up consequential margin expected to be achieved from the 
initiatives taken so far.

Investment Portfolio:
The Investment of the Company for the year of 2023 was Tk. 216.00 crore. The comparative 
statement of the last five years’ investment is given below:

RISK AND CONCERN

Over the last decade, the business world has faced unprecedented changes and challenges. 
Specially, Insurances of all sizes are now more concerned than ever about risk and its 
management.

Importantly, risk management is a central part of the PILIL’s strategic management focus. PILIL’s 
risk management objectives ensure that strategic, operational and tactical risks are identified, 
documented, managed and controlled appropriately. 

We have employed Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework for our risk management 
system which enables us to act quickly and prudently in the event of risk occurrence, and also 
helps us create a library of our risk response initiatives developing our core competitive 
advantages. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING EXTRA-ORDINARY GAIN OR LOSS

There was no extra-ordinary gain or extra-ordinary loss during the year 2023.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In ordinary course of business, related party transactions take place with other entities that fall 
within the term ‘related party’ as defined in IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure. A statement on the 
related party transactions has been disclosed under item no. 41 of the notes to the financial 
statements.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, 
RIGHTS ISSUES AND/OR ANY OTHER INSTRUMENTS

During the year 2023, the Company did not issue any share or other instruments.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VARIANCE BETWEEN QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Quarterly Financial Statement is given separately. There were some variances in the 
financial results from quarter to quarter. But they are not very significant or material in nature.

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors including Independent Directors, all being Non-Executive Directors, are given only 
Meeting Attendance Fee. During the year 2023, a total amount of BDT 23,49,359 was given to the 
Directors as Meeting Attendance Fee. However, in 2021 the amount was BDT 8,71,200.

DISCLOSURE ON PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors places before you the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2023 for their adoption. The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge, that-

(i) The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes inequity;

(ii) Proper books and accounts of the company have been maintained;

(iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of the 
financial statements and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment;

(iv) IAS/IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements;

(v) As required by condition 6 of the guidelines, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and 
the Chief Financial Officer have jointly certified to the Board that-

(a)  They have reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 
December 2023 and to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii)  These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s 
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and 
applicable laws

(b)  There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the company’s 
code of conduct.

DISCLOSURE ON INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board states that the systems of internal control are sound in design and have been 
implemented and monitored effectively. 

PILIL follows Committee of Sponsoring Organization (COSO) framework for evaluating internal 
controls in the organization. The COSO model defines internal control as “a process, effected by 
an entity’s board of directors, management and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable 
assurance of the achievement of objectives in the following categories:

 v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
 v Reliability of financial reporting
 v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations”

However, the BoD is primarily responsible to establish and review the operational effectiveness of 
such controls in PILIL. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee of PILIL ensures through 
Internal, External, Compliance, Special and/or other Audits that the system of internal control is 
adequate and effective. 

Internal Audit Unit of PILIL does have valuable contribution towards improving the effectiveness 
of its systems of internal control. Its risk-based audit approaches provide reasonable assurance to 
the Audit Committee and the Management about the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control system in the company. 

PROTECTION OF NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Board certifies that non-controlling shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, 
or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective 
means of redress.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS

PILIL has no subsidiary and therefore, no disclosure is applicable hereto.

COMPANY’S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS GOING CONCERN

The Directors declare that there are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. For this purpose of assessment whether PILIL has ability to continue as a going 
concern, the following issues have been considered:

 v The commitment towards the claims filed and its ability to meet contractual obligations as 
they become due;

 v Liquidity-related actions and plans to stabilize the businesses and repay the outstanding 
debt; 

 v The level of PILIL’s realized and unrealized losses and the negative impact of these losses 
on shareholders’ equity, and

 v Opinion of Financial and Compliance Auditors

While considering these issues, significant judgments and estimates with respect to the potentially 
adverse financial and liquidity effects of PILIL’s risks and uncertainties have been made. 

DIVIDEND

The Company did not receive Actuarial Basis for Valuation for the year 2023 from Insurance 
Development & Regulatory Authority. Consequently, no actuarial valuation was carried out and 
recommended from the Actuary for payment of dividend to the Shareholders. Accorddingly the 
Board of Directors of the Company did not recommend any dividend to Shareholders and bonus 
to Policyhoders for the year 2023.

BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2024

Keeping in view the effect of pandemic and the above scenario, Padma Life has revised its 
business plan and strategy for survival and growth.  As, due to restricted in-person interactions on 
account of the lockdown measures etc. and grave global economic recession, we assume that 
premium income against Individual (Ekok) and Micro (DPS) insurance may not grow sufficiently 
despite all possible measures. 

Therefore, in addition to taking all necessary steps to boost up selling Individual (Ekok) and Micro 
(DPS) insurance, collecting renewal premium and reviving lapsed policies, our business plan 
redirects company’s major efforts and focus on ‘Group life Insurance’ as opposed to individual 
schemes.

Under group insurance category, every attempt will be made, in addition to employees’ life 
insurance schemes, to bring Banks’ depositors and investors of some specific categories under 
group life insurance coverage. In this regard, considerable progress has already been made. 

Our business plan also encompasses elimination of unnecessary costs and optimal use of 
resources. We are committed to continue our efforts as mentioned above to reduce excessive cost 
and make the business profitable.

We are hopeful, by the grace of Allah SWT, through implementing our well-crafted and pragmatic 
business and action plans we will be able to make PILIL one of the country’s best life insurance 
company, Insha-Allah. 

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of PILIL meet on a regular basis. A detail statement showing attendance of the 
Directors in the Board Meetings is placed as under:

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shareholding position of Directors and other related parties at the end of 2023 is as under:

Shares held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children, Executives & 
shareholders holding 10% or more 

RETIREMENT AND ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Sponsor Directors:
In accordance with the Articles 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company, two directors 
shall retire by rotation from office at the 24th Annual General Meeting. The retiring directors are:

 i.  Md. Ali Hossain Nominted by Legendary Enterprises Ltd.
 ii. Mr. Ekramul Ameen FCA Nominted by Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.

Being eligible they offered themselves for re-election.

Public Shareholder Directors:
In accordance with the provision under Article 96 of the Article of Association of the Company and as 
provided under Insurance Act & Rules, Public notification with regard to election of Public Subscribers’ 
Director has been published in the 2 (two) national Dailies (The Daily Sonali Barta & The Daily 
Morning Observer), but no nomination papers were received from the shareholders for election.

Independent Directors:
As per the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 03 June 2018, (i) At least one fifth (1/5) 
of the total number of directors in the company’s board shall be independent directors, (ii) 
Independent Director(s) shall be appointment by the Board of Directors and approved by the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting(AGM), and (iii) the tenure of office of an independent 
director shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Financial Auditor:
Pursuant to section 210 of company Act, 1994, the Company’s statutory auditors M/S Pinaki & 
Company, Chartered Accountants, shall retire & expired in the 24th Annual General Meeting. 

M/S Pinaki & Company, Chartered Accountants have expressed their interest as a statutory 
auditors for the year December 31, 2024 of the Company. The BoD has endorsed the 
recommendation for appointment M/S Pinaki & Company,Chartered Accountants at a 
remuneration of BDT 250,000.00 including income tax. As such the matter is placed before the 
24th  AGM for kind approval. 

Compliance Auditor:
Anil Salam Idris & Co.Chartered Accountants was the Corporate Governance Auditors for the 
year 2023. Since the said auditor is interested for reappointment as compliance auditor for the year 
2024, the BoD has endorsed the recommendation for reappointment at a fee of Tk. 30,000.00 
including income tax and the matter is placed before the 24th  AGM for kind approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of PILIL are committed in adopting the highest governance standard and 
implementing them in protecting the interests of shareholders, policy holders and all other 

stakeholders. The Company has complied with all necessary guidelines under BSEC notification 
no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. A certificate of Compliance 
required under the said Guidelines, as provided by Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants, is 
annexed in the Annual Report 2024. 

Audit Committee:
The Committee plays an important role to ensure transparency, accountability in the operations of 
the Company and confirming that the activities are conducted within the framework of principles 
and policies as laid down by the Board, as well as the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated June 03, 2018. 
The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024 audited by the External Auditors stressing on the importance of the successful 
compliance within the company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):
In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin and dated June 03, 
2018 issued by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Padma Islami Life Insurance 
Ltd. formed a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The NRC is responsible or 
accountable to the Board and to the Shareholders of the Company. Two meeting of NRC was held 
during the year 2023.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE CEO AND THE CFO TO THE BOARD

The Details of discussion of declaration by the CEO and Finance Controller is appended 
separately.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE SHARIAH BOARD

A declaration by the Shariah Committee on compliance with Islamic Shariah is appended separately.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ON THE COMPANY’S POSITION AND 
OPERATION

Services to Policyholders:
The reputation and progress of the company largely depend on rendering prompt and quality 
service to the policyholders. Keeping this in view, we have further strengthened our Services and 
launched a One-stop Service center during the year, the Company has settled Maturity sarvial 
benefit surrenden claim & death Claims of significant amount totaling to Tk. 52.97 crores.

Human Resource Practices:
PILIL is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees, irrespective of their gender, 
race, nationality, ethnic origin, or religion. PILIL is an inclusive employer and values diversity in 
its employees. 

These extend to recruitment and selection, training, career development, flexible working 
arrangements, promotion and performance appraisal. Our corporate goal is to improve staff 

engagement by measuring and responding to staff members’ views and willingness to exert extra 
effort to achieve business success. 

We provide necessary support to staff in order to manage change effectively. We credit the strength 
of our people for our organization’s success, their understanding of strategy and goals, as well as 
their satisfaction with the work they do and how it contributes, are of critical importance.

We continue our efforts to create and maintain a highly skilled and motivated workforce. Through 
our succession planning initiatives, leadership capacity is identified and developed to ensure 
ongoing success through adequate training and motivation. The Manpower strength of the 
company at the end of 2023 was 280.

Information Technology:
Information and Communication Technology (ICT) has become indispensable for Insurance 
Companies in ensuring smooth operation and providing efficient services. Recognized this fact the 
Board has adopted a comprehensive ICT policy for the company.

ICT system of PILIL has been revamped by strengthening and securing the automation of services. 
The highly experienced and trained ICT professionals are working on implementing and developing 
the company’s online integrated full-featured ERP System and other ICT infrastructure and constantly 
innovating and writing in-house programs to meet the needs of the company. Local Area Network 
(LAN) and other technologies have been in operation in the Head office and Branch offices.

Corporate Social Responsibility:
The Directors are sincere to discharge corporate responsibilities to the society. As a part of 
discharging corporate social responsibilities, PILIL has initiated a number programs and has been 
sponsoring various welfare activit, besides patronizing cultural activities in the country since its 
inception. 
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Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmatullah.

The Board of Directors (BoD) of your company Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited (PILIL), 
welcome you to the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and would like to thank you for your 
continued patronage and support over the years. We are pleased to present before you the Annual 
Report along with the Auditors’ Report and audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 for kind consideration and adoption.

This Report has been prepared in compliance with the provisions of relevant Acts, Rules, Regulations, 
Notifications, etc. issued by the Regulatory Bodies wherein the Directors have made relevant 
disclosures and explanations pertaining to compliance, transparency and sound corporate governance 
along with the details of the business performance, operations and achievements of the company for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. 

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE INDUSTRY

Transitioning the Banglaesh Insurance Industry to a Smart fromewark by 2041 entails overcoming 
notable challenges. Key obstacles include the lack of robust technological infrastructure and 
digital literacy, necessitating efforts to bridge the digital divide. Addressing date security, privacy 
concerns, and integrating new digital solutions with legacy systems repuire strategic planning. 
Regulatory compliance, establishing trust in digital services, and managing implementation costs 
are additional hurdles.Overcoming resistance to organizational change and navigating 
interoperability issues are crucial for a smooth transition. Furthermore, heightened market 
competition underscores the need for strategic positioning. In tandem with these challenges, there 
is a vital need to cultivate a mindset shift among individuals, Fostering openness and adaptability 
to maximize the benefits of this technological evolution.  

The government has greenlit guideline for the introduction of insurance products through 
commercial banks, marking a singnificant move in the form of Bancassurance. This initiative is 
poised to enhance the countrys insurance sector by increasing penetrantion and revitalizing 
opportunities. Bancassurance not only contributes to improved profitability and liquidity for banks 
but also fosters a sense of responsibility towards clients, opening new doors for inclusion and 
growth in the industry.

The Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) have introduced the Regulatory 
Sandbox Guidelince-2023, fostering innovation in the insurance sector. This initiative aims to 
blend industry evolution with customer protection, encourahging the integration of technology 
into insurance services. The regulatory sandbox provides a platform insurers and startups to 
introduce novel products, contributing to a technology- driven paradigm.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE OF PILIL

The product wise break-up of premium income and management expenses with corresponding 
figure of 2023 is presented below:

YEAR-WISE PERFORMANCE FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Year-wise Performance of the company for last five years has been depicted in a separate 
statement under title ‘‘Five Years Financial Progression”. Some highlights are given in items 
below:

Particulars 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Fixed Deposit 3.09 2.56 3.55 9.48 4.06

Investment on Govt. Securities,  30.93 23.77 29.77 29.77 30.77
Bond & Mutual Fund

Share& Debenture 19.09 23.17 23.32 20.47 10.96

Land, Building & others 164.23 166.50 169.08 82.55 90.34

Total: 217.34 216.00 225.72 142.27 136.13

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA 

Life Fund:

Total life fund of the Company as at 31st December, 2023 stood at Tk. (254.41) crore as against 
Tk. 233.89 crore in the preceding year. Life Fund of the Company has been decreased due to 
maturity of significant amount of claims. The Board hopes that the life fund will increase 
gradually by virtue of building up consequential margin expected to be achieved from the 
initiatives taken so far.

Investment Portfolio:
The Investment of the Company for the year of 2023 was Tk. 216.00 crore. The comparative 
statement of the last five years’ investment is given below:

RISK AND CONCERN

Over the last decade, the business world has faced unprecedented changes and challenges. 
Specially, Insurances of all sizes are now more concerned than ever about risk and its 
management.

Importantly, risk management is a central part of the PILIL’s strategic management focus. PILIL’s 
risk management objectives ensure that strategic, operational and tactical risks are identified, 
documented, managed and controlled appropriately. 

We have employed Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework for our risk management 
system which enables us to act quickly and prudently in the event of risk occurrence, and also 
helps us create a library of our risk response initiatives developing our core competitive 
advantages. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING EXTRA-ORDINARY GAIN OR LOSS

There was no extra-ordinary gain or extra-ordinary loss during the year 2023.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In ordinary course of business, related party transactions take place with other entities that fall 
within the term ‘related party’ as defined in IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure. A statement on the 
related party transactions has been disclosed under item no. 41 of the notes to the financial 
statements.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, 
RIGHTS ISSUES AND/OR ANY OTHER INSTRUMENTS

During the year 2023, the Company did not issue any share or other instruments.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VARIANCE BETWEEN QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Quarterly Financial Statement is given separately. There were some variances in the 
financial results from quarter to quarter. But they are not very significant or material in nature.

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors including Independent Directors, all being Non-Executive Directors, are given only 
Meeting Attendance Fee. During the year 2023, a total amount of BDT 23,49,359 was given to the 
Directors as Meeting Attendance Fee. However, in 2021 the amount was BDT 8,71,200.

DISCLOSURE ON PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors places before you the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2023 for their adoption. The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge, that-

(i) The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes inequity;

(ii) Proper books and accounts of the company have been maintained;

(iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of the 
financial statements and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment;

(iv) IAS/IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements;

(v) As required by condition 6 of the guidelines, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and 
the Chief Financial Officer have jointly certified to the Board that-

(a)  They have reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 
December 2023 and to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii)  These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s 
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and 
applicable laws

(b)  There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the company’s 
code of conduct.

DISCLOSURE ON INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board states that the systems of internal control are sound in design and have been 
implemented and monitored effectively. 

PILIL follows Committee of Sponsoring Organization (COSO) framework for evaluating internal 
controls in the organization. The COSO model defines internal control as “a process, effected by 
an entity’s board of directors, management and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable 
assurance of the achievement of objectives in the following categories:

 v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
 v Reliability of financial reporting
 v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations”

However, the BoD is primarily responsible to establish and review the operational effectiveness of 
such controls in PILIL. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee of PILIL ensures through 
Internal, External, Compliance, Special and/or other Audits that the system of internal control is 
adequate and effective. 

Internal Audit Unit of PILIL does have valuable contribution towards improving the effectiveness 
of its systems of internal control. Its risk-based audit approaches provide reasonable assurance to 
the Audit Committee and the Management about the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control system in the company. 

PROTECTION OF NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Board certifies that non-controlling shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, 
or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective 
means of redress.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS

PILIL has no subsidiary and therefore, no disclosure is applicable hereto.

COMPANY’S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS GOING CONCERN

The Directors declare that there are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. For this purpose of assessment whether PILIL has ability to continue as a going 
concern, the following issues have been considered:

 v The commitment towards the claims filed and its ability to meet contractual obligations as 
they become due;

 v Liquidity-related actions and plans to stabilize the businesses and repay the outstanding 
debt; 

 v The level of PILIL’s realized and unrealized losses and the negative impact of these losses 
on shareholders’ equity, and

 v Opinion of Financial and Compliance Auditors

While considering these issues, significant judgments and estimates with respect to the potentially 
adverse financial and liquidity effects of PILIL’s risks and uncertainties have been made. 

DIVIDEND

The Company did not receive Actuarial Basis for Valuation for the year 2023 from Insurance 
Development & Regulatory Authority. Consequently, no actuarial valuation was carried out and 
recommended from the Actuary for payment of dividend to the Shareholders. Accorddingly the 
Board of Directors of the Company did not recommend any dividend to Shareholders and bonus 
to Policyhoders for the year 2023.

BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2024

Keeping in view the effect of pandemic and the above scenario, Padma Life has revised its 
business plan and strategy for survival and growth.  As, due to restricted in-person interactions on 
account of the lockdown measures etc. and grave global economic recession, we assume that 
premium income against Individual (Ekok) and Micro (DPS) insurance may not grow sufficiently 
despite all possible measures. 

Therefore, in addition to taking all necessary steps to boost up selling Individual (Ekok) and Micro 
(DPS) insurance, collecting renewal premium and reviving lapsed policies, our business plan 
redirects company’s major efforts and focus on ‘Group life Insurance’ as opposed to individual 
schemes.

Under group insurance category, every attempt will be made, in addition to employees’ life 
insurance schemes, to bring Banks’ depositors and investors of some specific categories under 
group life insurance coverage. In this regard, considerable progress has already been made. 

Our business plan also encompasses elimination of unnecessary costs and optimal use of 
resources. We are committed to continue our efforts as mentioned above to reduce excessive cost 
and make the business profitable.

We are hopeful, by the grace of Allah SWT, through implementing our well-crafted and pragmatic 
business and action plans we will be able to make PILIL one of the country’s best life insurance 
company, Insha-Allah. 

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of PILIL meet on a regular basis. A detail statement showing attendance of the 
Directors in the Board Meetings is placed as under:

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shareholding position of Directors and other related parties at the end of 2023 is as under:

Shares held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children, Executives & 
shareholders holding 10% or more 

RETIREMENT AND ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Sponsor Directors:
In accordance with the Articles 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company, two directors 
shall retire by rotation from office at the 24th Annual General Meeting. The retiring directors are:

 i.  Md. Ali Hossain Nominted by Legendary Enterprises Ltd.
 ii. Mr. Ekramul Ameen FCA Nominted by Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.

Being eligible they offered themselves for re-election.

Public Shareholder Directors:
In accordance with the provision under Article 96 of the Article of Association of the Company and as 
provided under Insurance Act & Rules, Public notification with regard to election of Public Subscribers’ 
Director has been published in the 2 (two) national Dailies (The Daily Sonali Barta & The Daily 
Morning Observer), but no nomination papers were received from the shareholders for election.

Independent Directors:
As per the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 03 June 2018, (i) At least one fifth (1/5) 
of the total number of directors in the company’s board shall be independent directors, (ii) 
Independent Director(s) shall be appointment by the Board of Directors and approved by the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting(AGM), and (iii) the tenure of office of an independent 
director shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Financial Auditor:
Pursuant to section 210 of company Act, 1994, the Company’s statutory auditors M/S Pinaki & 
Company, Chartered Accountants, shall retire & expired in the 24th Annual General Meeting. 

M/S Pinaki & Company, Chartered Accountants have expressed their interest as a statutory 
auditors for the year December 31, 2024 of the Company. The BoD has endorsed the 
recommendation for appointment M/S Pinaki & Company,Chartered Accountants at a 
remuneration of BDT 250,000.00 including income tax. As such the matter is placed before the 
24th  AGM for kind approval. 

Compliance Auditor:
Anil Salam Idris & Co.Chartered Accountants was the Corporate Governance Auditors for the 
year 2023. Since the said auditor is interested for reappointment as compliance auditor for the year 
2024, the BoD has endorsed the recommendation for reappointment at a fee of Tk. 30,000.00 
including income tax and the matter is placed before the 24th  AGM for kind approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of PILIL are committed in adopting the highest governance standard and 
implementing them in protecting the interests of shareholders, policy holders and all other 

stakeholders. The Company has complied with all necessary guidelines under BSEC notification 
no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. A certificate of Compliance 
required under the said Guidelines, as provided by Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants, is 
annexed in the Annual Report 2024. 

Audit Committee:
The Committee plays an important role to ensure transparency, accountability in the operations of 
the Company and confirming that the activities are conducted within the framework of principles 
and policies as laid down by the Board, as well as the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated June 03, 2018. 
The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024 audited by the External Auditors stressing on the importance of the successful 
compliance within the company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):
In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin and dated June 03, 
2018 issued by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Padma Islami Life Insurance 
Ltd. formed a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The NRC is responsible or 
accountable to the Board and to the Shareholders of the Company. Two meeting of NRC was held 
during the year 2023.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE CEO AND THE CFO TO THE BOARD

The Details of discussion of declaration by the CEO and Finance Controller is appended 
separately.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE SHARIAH BOARD

A declaration by the Shariah Committee on compliance with Islamic Shariah is appended separately.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ON THE COMPANY’S POSITION AND 
OPERATION

Services to Policyholders:
The reputation and progress of the company largely depend on rendering prompt and quality 
service to the policyholders. Keeping this in view, we have further strengthened our Services and 
launched a One-stop Service center during the year, the Company has settled Maturity sarvial 
benefit surrenden claim & death Claims of significant amount totaling to Tk. 52.97 crores.

Human Resource Practices:
PILIL is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees, irrespective of their gender, 
race, nationality, ethnic origin, or religion. PILIL is an inclusive employer and values diversity in 
its employees. 

These extend to recruitment and selection, training, career development, flexible working 
arrangements, promotion and performance appraisal. Our corporate goal is to improve staff 

engagement by measuring and responding to staff members’ views and willingness to exert extra 
effort to achieve business success. 

We provide necessary support to staff in order to manage change effectively. We credit the strength 
of our people for our organization’s success, their understanding of strategy and goals, as well as 
their satisfaction with the work they do and how it contributes, are of critical importance.

We continue our efforts to create and maintain a highly skilled and motivated workforce. Through 
our succession planning initiatives, leadership capacity is identified and developed to ensure 
ongoing success through adequate training and motivation. The Manpower strength of the 
company at the end of 2023 was 280.

Information Technology:
Information and Communication Technology (ICT) has become indispensable for Insurance 
Companies in ensuring smooth operation and providing efficient services. Recognized this fact the 
Board has adopted a comprehensive ICT policy for the company.

ICT system of PILIL has been revamped by strengthening and securing the automation of services. 
The highly experienced and trained ICT professionals are working on implementing and developing 
the company’s online integrated full-featured ERP System and other ICT infrastructure and constantly 
innovating and writing in-house programs to meet the needs of the company. Local Area Network 
(LAN) and other technologies have been in operation in the Head office and Branch offices.

Corporate Social Responsibility:
The Directors are sincere to discharge corporate responsibilities to the society. As a part of 
discharging corporate social responsibilities, PILIL has initiated a number programs and has been 
sponsoring various welfare activit, besides patronizing cultural activities in the country since its 
inception. 
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Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmatullah.

The Board of Directors (BoD) of your company Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited (PILIL), 
welcome you to the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and would like to thank you for your 
continued patronage and support over the years. We are pleased to present before you the Annual 
Report along with the Auditors’ Report and audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 for kind consideration and adoption.

This Report has been prepared in compliance with the provisions of relevant Acts, Rules, Regulations, 
Notifications, etc. issued by the Regulatory Bodies wherein the Directors have made relevant 
disclosures and explanations pertaining to compliance, transparency and sound corporate governance 
along with the details of the business performance, operations and achievements of the company for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. 

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE INDUSTRY

Transitioning the Banglaesh Insurance Industry to a Smart fromewark by 2041 entails overcoming 
notable challenges. Key obstacles include the lack of robust technological infrastructure and 
digital literacy, necessitating efforts to bridge the digital divide. Addressing date security, privacy 
concerns, and integrating new digital solutions with legacy systems repuire strategic planning. 
Regulatory compliance, establishing trust in digital services, and managing implementation costs 
are additional hurdles.Overcoming resistance to organizational change and navigating 
interoperability issues are crucial for a smooth transition. Furthermore, heightened market 
competition underscores the need for strategic positioning. In tandem with these challenges, there 
is a vital need to cultivate a mindset shift among individuals, Fostering openness and adaptability 
to maximize the benefits of this technological evolution.  

The government has greenlit guideline for the introduction of insurance products through 
commercial banks, marking a singnificant move in the form of Bancassurance. This initiative is 
poised to enhance the countrys insurance sector by increasing penetrantion and revitalizing 
opportunities. Bancassurance not only contributes to improved profitability and liquidity for banks 
but also fosters a sense of responsibility towards clients, opening new doors for inclusion and 
growth in the industry.

The Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) have introduced the Regulatory 
Sandbox Guidelince-2023, fostering innovation in the insurance sector. This initiative aims to 
blend industry evolution with customer protection, encourahging the integration of technology 
into insurance services. The regulatory sandbox provides a platform insurers and startups to 
introduce novel products, contributing to a technology- driven paradigm.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE OF PILIL

The product wise break-up of premium income and management expenses with corresponding 
figure of 2023 is presented below:

YEAR-WISE PERFORMANCE FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Year-wise Performance of the company for last five years has been depicted in a separate 
statement under title ‘‘Five Years Financial Progression”. Some highlights are given in items 
below:

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA 

Life Fund:

Total life fund of the Company as at 31st December, 2023 stood at Tk. (254.41) crore as against 
Tk. 233.89 crore in the preceding year. Life Fund of the Company has been decreased due to 
maturity of significant amount of claims. The Board hopes that the life fund will increase 
gradually by virtue of building up consequential margin expected to be achieved from the 
initiatives taken so far.

Investment Portfolio:
The Investment of the Company for the year of 2023 was Tk. 216.00 crore. The comparative 
statement of the last five years’ investment is given below:

RISK AND CONCERN

Over the last decade, the business world has faced unprecedented changes and challenges. 
Specially, Insurances of all sizes are now more concerned than ever about risk and its 
management.

Importantly, risk management is a central part of the PILIL’s strategic management focus. PILIL’s 
risk management objectives ensure that strategic, operational and tactical risks are identified, 
documented, managed and controlled appropriately. 

We have employed Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework for our risk management 
system which enables us to act quickly and prudently in the event of risk occurrence, and also 
helps us create a library of our risk response initiatives developing our core competitive 
advantages. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING EXTRA-ORDINARY GAIN OR LOSS

There was no extra-ordinary gain or extra-ordinary loss during the year 2023.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In ordinary course of business, related party transactions take place with other entities that fall 
within the term ‘related party’ as defined in IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure. A statement on the 
related party transactions has been disclosed under item no. 41 of the notes to the financial 
statements.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, 
RIGHTS ISSUES AND/OR ANY OTHER INSTRUMENTS

During the year 2023, the Company did not issue any share or other instruments.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VARIANCE BETWEEN QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Quarterly Financial Statement is given separately. There were some variances in the 
financial results from quarter to quarter. But they are not very significant or material in nature.

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors including Independent Directors, all being Non-Executive Directors, are given only 
Meeting Attendance Fee. During the year 2023, a total amount of BDT 23,49,359 was given to the 
Directors as Meeting Attendance Fee. However, in 2021 the amount was BDT 8,71,200.

DISCLOSURE ON PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors places before you the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2023 for their adoption. The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge, that-

(i) The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes inequity;

(ii) Proper books and accounts of the company have been maintained;

(iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of the 
financial statements and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment;

(iv) IAS/IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements;

(v) As required by condition 6 of the guidelines, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and 
the Chief Financial Officer have jointly certified to the Board that-

(a)  They have reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 
December 2023 and to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii)  These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s 
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and 
applicable laws

(b)  There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the company’s 
code of conduct.

DISCLOSURE ON INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board states that the systems of internal control are sound in design and have been 
implemented and monitored effectively. 

PILIL follows Committee of Sponsoring Organization (COSO) framework for evaluating internal 
controls in the organization. The COSO model defines internal control as “a process, effected by 
an entity’s board of directors, management and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable 
assurance of the achievement of objectives in the following categories:

 v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
 v Reliability of financial reporting
 v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations”

However, the BoD is primarily responsible to establish and review the operational effectiveness of 
such controls in PILIL. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee of PILIL ensures through 
Internal, External, Compliance, Special and/or other Audits that the system of internal control is 
adequate and effective. 

Internal Audit Unit of PILIL does have valuable contribution towards improving the effectiveness 
of its systems of internal control. Its risk-based audit approaches provide reasonable assurance to 
the Audit Committee and the Management about the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control system in the company. 

PROTECTION OF NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Board certifies that non-controlling shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, 
or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective 
means of redress.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS

PILIL has no subsidiary and therefore, no disclosure is applicable hereto.

COMPANY’S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS GOING CONCERN

The Directors declare that there are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. For this purpose of assessment whether PILIL has ability to continue as a going 
concern, the following issues have been considered:

 v The commitment towards the claims filed and its ability to meet contractual obligations as 
they become due;

 v Liquidity-related actions and plans to stabilize the businesses and repay the outstanding 
debt; 

 v The level of PILIL’s realized and unrealized losses and the negative impact of these losses 
on shareholders’ equity, and

 v Opinion of Financial and Compliance Auditors

While considering these issues, significant judgments and estimates with respect to the potentially 
adverse financial and liquidity effects of PILIL’s risks and uncertainties have been made. 

DIVIDEND

The Company did not receive Actuarial Basis for Valuation for the year 2023 from Insurance 
Development & Regulatory Authority. Consequently, no actuarial valuation was carried out and 
recommended from the Actuary for payment of dividend to the Shareholders. Accorddingly the 
Board of Directors of the Company did not recommend any dividend to Shareholders and bonus 
to Policyhoders for the year 2023.

BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2024

Keeping in view the effect of pandemic and the above scenario, Padma Life has revised its 
business plan and strategy for survival and growth.  As, due to restricted in-person interactions on 
account of the lockdown measures etc. and grave global economic recession, we assume that 
premium income against Individual (Ekok) and Micro (DPS) insurance may not grow sufficiently 
despite all possible measures. 

Therefore, in addition to taking all necessary steps to boost up selling Individual (Ekok) and Micro 
(DPS) insurance, collecting renewal premium and reviving lapsed policies, our business plan 
redirects company’s major efforts and focus on ‘Group life Insurance’ as opposed to individual 
schemes.

Under group insurance category, every attempt will be made, in addition to employees’ life 
insurance schemes, to bring Banks’ depositors and investors of some specific categories under 
group life insurance coverage. In this regard, considerable progress has already been made. 

Our business plan also encompasses elimination of unnecessary costs and optimal use of 
resources. We are committed to continue our efforts as mentioned above to reduce excessive cost 
and make the business profitable.

We are hopeful, by the grace of Allah SWT, through implementing our well-crafted and pragmatic 
business and action plans we will be able to make PILIL one of the country’s best life insurance 
company, Insha-Allah. 

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of PILIL meet on a regular basis. A detail statement showing attendance of the 
Directors in the Board Meetings is placed as under:

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shareholding position of Directors and other related parties at the end of 2023 is as under:

Shares held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children, Executives & 
shareholders holding 10% or more 

RETIREMENT AND ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Sponsor Directors:
In accordance with the Articles 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company, two directors 
shall retire by rotation from office at the 24th Annual General Meeting. The retiring directors are:

 i.  Md. Ali Hossain Nominted by Legendary Enterprises Ltd.
 ii. Mr. Ekramul Ameen FCA Nominted by Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.

Being eligible they offered themselves for re-election.

Public Shareholder Directors:
In accordance with the provision under Article 96 of the Article of Association of the Company and as 
provided under Insurance Act & Rules, Public notification with regard to election of Public Subscribers’ 
Director has been published in the 2 (two) national Dailies (The Daily Sonali Barta & The Daily 
Morning Observer), but no nomination papers were received from the shareholders for election.

Independent Directors:
As per the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 03 June 2018, (i) At least one fifth (1/5) 
of the total number of directors in the company’s board shall be independent directors, (ii) 
Independent Director(s) shall be appointment by the Board of Directors and approved by the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting(AGM), and (iii) the tenure of office of an independent 
director shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Financial Auditor:
Pursuant to section 210 of company Act, 1994, the Company’s statutory auditors M/S Pinaki & 
Company, Chartered Accountants, shall retire & expired in the 24th Annual General Meeting. 

M/S Pinaki & Company, Chartered Accountants have expressed their interest as a statutory 
auditors for the year December 31, 2024 of the Company. The BoD has endorsed the 
recommendation for appointment M/S Pinaki & Company,Chartered Accountants at a 
remuneration of BDT 250,000.00 including income tax. As such the matter is placed before the 
24th  AGM for kind approval. 

Compliance Auditor:
Anil Salam Idris & Co.Chartered Accountants was the Corporate Governance Auditors for the 
year 2023. Since the said auditor is interested for reappointment as compliance auditor for the year 
2024, the BoD has endorsed the recommendation for reappointment at a fee of Tk. 30,000.00 
including income tax and the matter is placed before the 24th  AGM for kind approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of PILIL are committed in adopting the highest governance standard and 
implementing them in protecting the interests of shareholders, policy holders and all other 

stakeholders. The Company has complied with all necessary guidelines under BSEC notification 
no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. A certificate of Compliance 
required under the said Guidelines, as provided by Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants, is 
annexed in the Annual Report 2024. 

Audit Committee:
The Committee plays an important role to ensure transparency, accountability in the operations of 
the Company and confirming that the activities are conducted within the framework of principles 
and policies as laid down by the Board, as well as the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated June 03, 2018. 
The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024 audited by the External Auditors stressing on the importance of the successful 
compliance within the company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):
In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin and dated June 03, 
2018 issued by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Padma Islami Life Insurance 
Ltd. formed a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The NRC is responsible or 
accountable to the Board and to the Shareholders of the Company. Two meeting of NRC was held 
during the year 2023.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE CEO AND THE CFO TO THE BOARD

The Details of discussion of declaration by the CEO and Finance Controller is appended 
separately.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE SHARIAH BOARD

A declaration by the Shariah Committee on compliance with Islamic Shariah is appended separately.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ON THE COMPANY’S POSITION AND 
OPERATION

Services to Policyholders:
The reputation and progress of the company largely depend on rendering prompt and quality 
service to the policyholders. Keeping this in view, we have further strengthened our Services and 
launched a One-stop Service center during the year, the Company has settled Maturity sarvial 
benefit surrenden claim & death Claims of significant amount totaling to Tk. 52.97 crores.

Human Resource Practices:
PILIL is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees, irrespective of their gender, 
race, nationality, ethnic origin, or religion. PILIL is an inclusive employer and values diversity in 
its employees. 

These extend to recruitment and selection, training, career development, flexible working 
arrangements, promotion and performance appraisal. Our corporate goal is to improve staff 

engagement by measuring and responding to staff members’ views and willingness to exert extra 
effort to achieve business success. 

We provide necessary support to staff in order to manage change effectively. We credit the strength 
of our people for our organization’s success, their understanding of strategy and goals, as well as 
their satisfaction with the work they do and how it contributes, are of critical importance.

We continue our efforts to create and maintain a highly skilled and motivated workforce. Through 
our succession planning initiatives, leadership capacity is identified and developed to ensure 
ongoing success through adequate training and motivation. The Manpower strength of the 
company at the end of 2023 was 280.

Information Technology:
Information and Communication Technology (ICT) has become indispensable for Insurance 
Companies in ensuring smooth operation and providing efficient services. Recognized this fact the 
Board has adopted a comprehensive ICT policy for the company.

ICT system of PILIL has been revamped by strengthening and securing the automation of services. 
The highly experienced and trained ICT professionals are working on implementing and developing 
the company’s online integrated full-featured ERP System and other ICT infrastructure and constantly 
innovating and writing in-house programs to meet the needs of the company. Local Area Network 
(LAN) and other technologies have been in operation in the Head office and Branch offices.

Corporate Social Responsibility:
The Directors are sincere to discharge corporate responsibilities to the society. As a part of 
discharging corporate social responsibilities, PILIL has initiated a number programs and has been 
sponsoring various welfare activit, besides patronizing cultural activities in the country since its 
inception. 
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Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmatullah.

The Board of Directors (BoD) of your company Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited (PILIL), 
welcome you to the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and would like to thank you for your 
continued patronage and support over the years. We are pleased to present before you the Annual 
Report along with the Auditors’ Report and audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 for kind consideration and adoption.

This Report has been prepared in compliance with the provisions of relevant Acts, Rules, Regulations, 
Notifications, etc. issued by the Regulatory Bodies wherein the Directors have made relevant 
disclosures and explanations pertaining to compliance, transparency and sound corporate governance 
along with the details of the business performance, operations and achievements of the company for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. 

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE INDUSTRY

Transitioning the Banglaesh Insurance Industry to a Smart fromewark by 2041 entails overcoming 
notable challenges. Key obstacles include the lack of robust technological infrastructure and 
digital literacy, necessitating efforts to bridge the digital divide. Addressing date security, privacy 
concerns, and integrating new digital solutions with legacy systems repuire strategic planning. 
Regulatory compliance, establishing trust in digital services, and managing implementation costs 
are additional hurdles.Overcoming resistance to organizational change and navigating 
interoperability issues are crucial for a smooth transition. Furthermore, heightened market 
competition underscores the need for strategic positioning. In tandem with these challenges, there 
is a vital need to cultivate a mindset shift among individuals, Fostering openness and adaptability 
to maximize the benefits of this technological evolution.  

The government has greenlit guideline for the introduction of insurance products through 
commercial banks, marking a singnificant move in the form of Bancassurance. This initiative is 
poised to enhance the countrys insurance sector by increasing penetrantion and revitalizing 
opportunities. Bancassurance not only contributes to improved profitability and liquidity for banks 
but also fosters a sense of responsibility towards clients, opening new doors for inclusion and 
growth in the industry.

The Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) have introduced the Regulatory 
Sandbox Guidelince-2023, fostering innovation in the insurance sector. This initiative aims to 
blend industry evolution with customer protection, encourahging the integration of technology 
into insurance services. The regulatory sandbox provides a platform insurers and startups to 
introduce novel products, contributing to a technology- driven paradigm.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE OF PILIL

The product wise break-up of premium income and management expenses with corresponding 
figure of 2023 is presented below:

YEAR-WISE PERFORMANCE FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Year-wise Performance of the company for last five years has been depicted in a separate 
statement under title ‘‘Five Years Financial Progression”. Some highlights are given in items 
below:

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA 

Life Fund:

Total life fund of the Company as at 31st December, 2023 stood at Tk. (254.41) crore as against 
Tk. 233.89 crore in the preceding year. Life Fund of the Company has been decreased due to 
maturity of significant amount of claims. The Board hopes that the life fund will increase 
gradually by virtue of building up consequential margin expected to be achieved from the 
initiatives taken so far.

Investment Portfolio:
The Investment of the Company for the year of 2023 was Tk. 216.00 crore. The comparative 
statement of the last five years’ investment is given below:

RISK AND CONCERN

Over the last decade, the business world has faced unprecedented changes and challenges. 
Specially, Insurances of all sizes are now more concerned than ever about risk and its 
management.

Importantly, risk management is a central part of the PILIL’s strategic management focus. PILIL’s 
risk management objectives ensure that strategic, operational and tactical risks are identified, 
documented, managed and controlled appropriately. 

We have employed Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework for our risk management 
system which enables us to act quickly and prudently in the event of risk occurrence, and also 
helps us create a library of our risk response initiatives developing our core competitive 
advantages. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING EXTRA-ORDINARY GAIN OR LOSS

There was no extra-ordinary gain or extra-ordinary loss during the year 2023.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In ordinary course of business, related party transactions take place with other entities that fall 
within the term ‘related party’ as defined in IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure. A statement on the 
related party transactions has been disclosed under item no. 41 of the notes to the financial 
statements.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, 
RIGHTS ISSUES AND/OR ANY OTHER INSTRUMENTS

During the year 2023, the Company did not issue any share or other instruments.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VARIANCE BETWEEN QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Quarterly Financial Statement is given separately. There were some variances in the 
financial results from quarter to quarter. But they are not very significant or material in nature.

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors including Independent Directors, all being Non-Executive Directors, are given only 
Meeting Attendance Fee. During the year 2023, a total amount of BDT 23,49,359 was given to the 
Directors as Meeting Attendance Fee. However, in 2021 the amount was BDT 8,71,200.

DISCLOSURE ON PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors places before you the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2023 for their adoption. The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge, that-

(i) The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes inequity;

(ii) Proper books and accounts of the company have been maintained;

(iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of the 
financial statements and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment;

(iv) IAS/IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements;

(v) As required by condition 6 of the guidelines, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and 
the Chief Financial Officer have jointly certified to the Board that-

(a)  They have reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 
December 2023 and to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii)  These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s 
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and 
applicable laws

(b)  There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the company’s 
code of conduct.

DISCLOSURE ON INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board states that the systems of internal control are sound in design and have been 
implemented and monitored effectively. 

PILIL follows Committee of Sponsoring Organization (COSO) framework for evaluating internal 
controls in the organization. The COSO model defines internal control as “a process, effected by 
an entity’s board of directors, management and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable 
assurance of the achievement of objectives in the following categories:

 v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
 v Reliability of financial reporting
 v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations”

However, the BoD is primarily responsible to establish and review the operational effectiveness of 
such controls in PILIL. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee of PILIL ensures through 
Internal, External, Compliance, Special and/or other Audits that the system of internal control is 
adequate and effective. 

Internal Audit Unit of PILIL does have valuable contribution towards improving the effectiveness 
of its systems of internal control. Its risk-based audit approaches provide reasonable assurance to 
the Audit Committee and the Management about the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control system in the company. 

PROTECTION OF NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Board certifies that non-controlling shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, 
or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective 
means of redress.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS

PILIL has no subsidiary and therefore, no disclosure is applicable hereto.

COMPANY’S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS GOING CONCERN

The Directors declare that there are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. For this purpose of assessment whether PILIL has ability to continue as a going 
concern, the following issues have been considered:

 v The commitment towards the claims filed and its ability to meet contractual obligations as 
they become due;

 v Liquidity-related actions and plans to stabilize the businesses and repay the outstanding 
debt; 

 v The level of PILIL’s realized and unrealized losses and the negative impact of these losses 
on shareholders’ equity, and

 v Opinion of Financial and Compliance Auditors

While considering these issues, significant judgments and estimates with respect to the potentially 
adverse financial and liquidity effects of PILIL’s risks and uncertainties have been made. 

DIVIDEND

The Company did not receive Actuarial Basis for Valuation for the year 2023 from Insurance 
Development & Regulatory Authority. Consequently, no actuarial valuation was carried out and 
recommended from the Actuary for payment of dividend to the Shareholders. Accorddingly the 
Board of Directors of the Company did not recommend any dividend to Shareholders and bonus 
to Policyhoders for the year 2023.

BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2024

Keeping in view the effect of pandemic and the above scenario, Padma Life has revised its 
business plan and strategy for survival and growth.  As, due to restricted in-person interactions on 
account of the lockdown measures etc. and grave global economic recession, we assume that 
premium income against Individual (Ekok) and Micro (DPS) insurance may not grow sufficiently 
despite all possible measures. 

Therefore, in addition to taking all necessary steps to boost up selling Individual (Ekok) and Micro 
(DPS) insurance, collecting renewal premium and reviving lapsed policies, our business plan 
redirects company’s major efforts and focus on ‘Group life Insurance’ as opposed to individual 
schemes.

Under group insurance category, every attempt will be made, in addition to employees’ life 
insurance schemes, to bring Banks’ depositors and investors of some specific categories under 
group life insurance coverage. In this regard, considerable progress has already been made. 

Our business plan also encompasses elimination of unnecessary costs and optimal use of 
resources. We are committed to continue our efforts as mentioned above to reduce excessive cost 
and make the business profitable.

We are hopeful, by the grace of Allah SWT, through implementing our well-crafted and pragmatic 
business and action plans we will be able to make PILIL one of the country’s best life insurance 
company, Insha-Allah. 

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of PILIL meet on a regular basis. A detail statement showing attendance of the 
Directors in the Board Meetings is placed as under:

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shareholding position of Directors and other related parties at the end of 2023 is as under:

Shares held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children, Executives & 
shareholders holding 10% or more 

RETIREMENT AND ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Sponsor Directors:
In accordance with the Articles 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company, two directors 
shall retire by rotation from office at the 24th Annual General Meeting. The retiring directors are:

 i.  Md. Ali Hossain Nominted by Legendary Enterprises Ltd.
 ii. Mr. Ekramul Ameen FCA Nominted by Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.

Being eligible they offered themselves for re-election.

Public Shareholder Directors:
In accordance with the provision under Article 96 of the Article of Association of the Company and as 
provided under Insurance Act & Rules, Public notification with regard to election of Public Subscribers’ 
Director has been published in the 2 (two) national Dailies (The Daily Sonali Barta & The Daily 
Morning Observer), but no nomination papers were received from the shareholders for election.

Independent Directors:
As per the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 03 June 2018, (i) At least one fifth (1/5) 
of the total number of directors in the company’s board shall be independent directors, (ii) 
Independent Director(s) shall be appointment by the Board of Directors and approved by the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting(AGM), and (iii) the tenure of office of an independent 
director shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Financial Auditor:
Pursuant to section 210 of company Act, 1994, the Company’s statutory auditors M/S Pinaki & 
Company, Chartered Accountants, shall retire & expired in the 24th Annual General Meeting. 

M/S Pinaki & Company, Chartered Accountants have expressed their interest as a statutory 
auditors for the year December 31, 2024 of the Company. The BoD has endorsed the 
recommendation for appointment M/S Pinaki & Company,Chartered Accountants at a 
remuneration of BDT 250,000.00 including income tax. As such the matter is placed before the 
24th  AGM for kind approval. 

Compliance Auditor:
Anil Salam Idris & Co.Chartered Accountants was the Corporate Governance Auditors for the 
year 2023. Since the said auditor is interested for reappointment as compliance auditor for the year 
2024, the BoD has endorsed the recommendation for reappointment at a fee of Tk. 30,000.00 
including income tax and the matter is placed before the 24th  AGM for kind approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of PILIL are committed in adopting the highest governance standard and 
implementing them in protecting the interests of shareholders, policy holders and all other 

stakeholders. The Company has complied with all necessary guidelines under BSEC notification 
no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. A certificate of Compliance 
required under the said Guidelines, as provided by Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants, is 
annexed in the Annual Report 2024. 

Audit Committee:
The Committee plays an important role to ensure transparency, accountability in the operations of 
the Company and confirming that the activities are conducted within the framework of principles 
and policies as laid down by the Board, as well as the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated June 03, 2018. 
The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024 audited by the External Auditors stressing on the importance of the successful 
compliance within the company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):
In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin and dated June 03, 
2018 issued by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Padma Islami Life Insurance 
Ltd. formed a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The NRC is responsible or 
accountable to the Board and to the Shareholders of the Company. Two meeting of NRC was held 
during the year 2023.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE CEO AND THE CFO TO THE BOARD

The Details of discussion of declaration by the CEO and Finance Controller is appended 
separately.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE SHARIAH BOARD

A declaration by the Shariah Committee on compliance with Islamic Shariah is appended separately.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ON THE COMPANY’S POSITION AND 
OPERATION

Services to Policyholders:
The reputation and progress of the company largely depend on rendering prompt and quality 
service to the policyholders. Keeping this in view, we have further strengthened our Services and 
launched a One-stop Service center during the year, the Company has settled Maturity sarvial 
benefit surrenden claim & death Claims of significant amount totaling to Tk. 52.97 crores.

Human Resource Practices:
PILIL is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees, irrespective of their gender, 
race, nationality, ethnic origin, or religion. PILIL is an inclusive employer and values diversity in 
its employees. 

These extend to recruitment and selection, training, career development, flexible working 
arrangements, promotion and performance appraisal. Our corporate goal is to improve staff 

engagement by measuring and responding to staff members’ views and willingness to exert extra 
effort to achieve business success. 

We provide necessary support to staff in order to manage change effectively. We credit the strength 
of our people for our organization’s success, their understanding of strategy and goals, as well as 
their satisfaction with the work they do and how it contributes, are of critical importance.

We continue our efforts to create and maintain a highly skilled and motivated workforce. Through 
our succession planning initiatives, leadership capacity is identified and developed to ensure 
ongoing success through adequate training and motivation. The Manpower strength of the 
company at the end of 2023 was 280.

Information Technology:
Information and Communication Technology (ICT) has become indispensable for Insurance 
Companies in ensuring smooth operation and providing efficient services. Recognized this fact the 
Board has adopted a comprehensive ICT policy for the company.

ICT system of PILIL has been revamped by strengthening and securing the automation of services. 
The highly experienced and trained ICT professionals are working on implementing and developing 
the company’s online integrated full-featured ERP System and other ICT infrastructure and constantly 
innovating and writing in-house programs to meet the needs of the company. Local Area Network 
(LAN) and other technologies have been in operation in the Head office and Branch offices.

Corporate Social Responsibility:
The Directors are sincere to discharge corporate responsibilities to the society. As a part of 
discharging corporate social responsibilities, PILIL has initiated a number programs and has been 
sponsoring various welfare activit, besides patronizing cultural activities in the country since its 
inception. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
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Shareholders, Directors, our valued policyholders and CEO, all employees of our Company for 
their continued support & co-operation. I also express my sincere gratitude to our Members of 
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On behalf of Board of Directors,
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Chairman, Board of Directors
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Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmatullah.

The Board of Directors (BoD) of your company Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited (PILIL), 
welcome you to the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and would like to thank you for your 
continued patronage and support over the years. We are pleased to present before you the Annual 
Report along with the Auditors’ Report and audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 for kind consideration and adoption.

This Report has been prepared in compliance with the provisions of relevant Acts, Rules, Regulations, 
Notifications, etc. issued by the Regulatory Bodies wherein the Directors have made relevant 
disclosures and explanations pertaining to compliance, transparency and sound corporate governance 
along with the details of the business performance, operations and achievements of the company for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. 

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE INDUSTRY

Transitioning the Banglaesh Insurance Industry to a Smart fromewark by 2041 entails overcoming 
notable challenges. Key obstacles include the lack of robust technological infrastructure and 
digital literacy, necessitating efforts to bridge the digital divide. Addressing date security, privacy 
concerns, and integrating new digital solutions with legacy systems repuire strategic planning. 
Regulatory compliance, establishing trust in digital services, and managing implementation costs 
are additional hurdles.Overcoming resistance to organizational change and navigating 
interoperability issues are crucial for a smooth transition. Furthermore, heightened market 
competition underscores the need for strategic positioning. In tandem with these challenges, there 
is a vital need to cultivate a mindset shift among individuals, Fostering openness and adaptability 
to maximize the benefits of this technological evolution.  

The government has greenlit guideline for the introduction of insurance products through 
commercial banks, marking a singnificant move in the form of Bancassurance. This initiative is 
poised to enhance the countrys insurance sector by increasing penetrantion and revitalizing 
opportunities. Bancassurance not only contributes to improved profitability and liquidity for banks 
but also fosters a sense of responsibility towards clients, opening new doors for inclusion and 
growth in the industry.

The Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) have introduced the Regulatory 
Sandbox Guidelince-2023, fostering innovation in the insurance sector. This initiative aims to 
blend industry evolution with customer protection, encourahging the integration of technology 
into insurance services. The regulatory sandbox provides a platform insurers and startups to 
introduce novel products, contributing to a technology- driven paradigm.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE OF PILIL

The product wise break-up of premium income and management expenses with corresponding 
figure of 2023 is presented below:

YEAR-WISE PERFORMANCE FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Year-wise Performance of the company for last five years has been depicted in a separate 
statement under title ‘‘Five Years Financial Progression”. Some highlights are given in items 
below:

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA 

Life Fund:

Total life fund of the Company as at 31st December, 2023 stood at Tk. (254.41) crore as against 
Tk. 233.89 crore in the preceding year. Life Fund of the Company has been decreased due to 
maturity of significant amount of claims. The Board hopes that the life fund will increase 
gradually by virtue of building up consequential margin expected to be achieved from the 
initiatives taken so far.

Investment Portfolio:
The Investment of the Company for the year of 2023 was Tk. 216.00 crore. The comparative 
statement of the last five years’ investment is given below:

RISK AND CONCERN

Over the last decade, the business world has faced unprecedented changes and challenges. 
Specially, Insurances of all sizes are now more concerned than ever about risk and its 
management.

Importantly, risk management is a central part of the PILIL’s strategic management focus. PILIL’s 
risk management objectives ensure that strategic, operational and tactical risks are identified, 
documented, managed and controlled appropriately. 

We have employed Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework for our risk management 
system which enables us to act quickly and prudently in the event of risk occurrence, and also 
helps us create a library of our risk response initiatives developing our core competitive 
advantages. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING EXTRA-ORDINARY GAIN OR LOSS

There was no extra-ordinary gain or extra-ordinary loss during the year 2023.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In ordinary course of business, related party transactions take place with other entities that fall 
within the term ‘related party’ as defined in IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure. A statement on the 
related party transactions has been disclosed under item no. 41 of the notes to the financial 
statements.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, 
RIGHTS ISSUES AND/OR ANY OTHER INSTRUMENTS

During the year 2023, the Company did not issue any share or other instruments.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VARIANCE BETWEEN QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Quarterly Financial Statement is given separately. There were some variances in the 
financial results from quarter to quarter. But they are not very significant or material in nature.

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors including Independent Directors, all being Non-Executive Directors, are given only 
Meeting Attendance Fee. During the year 2023, a total amount of BDT 23,49,359 was given to the 
Directors as Meeting Attendance Fee. However, in 2021 the amount was BDT 8,71,200.

DISCLOSURE ON PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors places before you the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2023 for their adoption. The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge, that-

(i) The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes inequity;

(ii) Proper books and accounts of the company have been maintained;

(iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of the 
financial statements and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment;

(iv) IAS/IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements;

(v) As required by condition 6 of the guidelines, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and 
the Chief Financial Officer have jointly certified to the Board that-

(a)  They have reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 
December 2023 and to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii)  These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s 
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and 
applicable laws

(b)  There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the company’s 
code of conduct.

DISCLOSURE ON INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board states that the systems of internal control are sound in design and have been 
implemented and monitored effectively. 

PILIL follows Committee of Sponsoring Organization (COSO) framework for evaluating internal 
controls in the organization. The COSO model defines internal control as “a process, effected by 
an entity’s board of directors, management and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable 
assurance of the achievement of objectives in the following categories:

 v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
 v Reliability of financial reporting
 v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations”

However, the BoD is primarily responsible to establish and review the operational effectiveness of 
such controls in PILIL. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee of PILIL ensures through 
Internal, External, Compliance, Special and/or other Audits that the system of internal control is 
adequate and effective. 

Internal Audit Unit of PILIL does have valuable contribution towards improving the effectiveness 
of its systems of internal control. Its risk-based audit approaches provide reasonable assurance to 
the Audit Committee and the Management about the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control system in the company. 

PROTECTION OF NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Board certifies that non-controlling shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, 
or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective 
means of redress.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS

PILIL has no subsidiary and therefore, no disclosure is applicable hereto.

COMPANY’S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS GOING CONCERN

The Directors declare that there are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. For this purpose of assessment whether PILIL has ability to continue as a going 
concern, the following issues have been considered:

 v The commitment towards the claims filed and its ability to meet contractual obligations as 
they become due;

 v Liquidity-related actions and plans to stabilize the businesses and repay the outstanding 
debt; 

 v The level of PILIL’s realized and unrealized losses and the negative impact of these losses 
on shareholders’ equity, and

 v Opinion of Financial and Compliance Auditors

While considering these issues, significant judgments and estimates with respect to the potentially 
adverse financial and liquidity effects of PILIL’s risks and uncertainties have been made. 

DIVIDEND

The Company did not receive Actuarial Basis for Valuation for the year 2023 from Insurance 
Development & Regulatory Authority. Consequently, no actuarial valuation was carried out and 
recommended from the Actuary for payment of dividend to the Shareholders. Accorddingly the 
Board of Directors of the Company did not recommend any dividend to Shareholders and bonus 
to Policyhoders for the year 2023.

BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2024

Keeping in view the effect of pandemic and the above scenario, Padma Life has revised its 
business plan and strategy for survival and growth.  As, due to restricted in-person interactions on 
account of the lockdown measures etc. and grave global economic recession, we assume that 
premium income against Individual (Ekok) and Micro (DPS) insurance may not grow sufficiently 
despite all possible measures. 

Therefore, in addition to taking all necessary steps to boost up selling Individual (Ekok) and Micro 
(DPS) insurance, collecting renewal premium and reviving lapsed policies, our business plan 
redirects company’s major efforts and focus on ‘Group life Insurance’ as opposed to individual 
schemes.

Under group insurance category, every attempt will be made, in addition to employees’ life 
insurance schemes, to bring Banks’ depositors and investors of some specific categories under 
group life insurance coverage. In this regard, considerable progress has already been made. 

Our business plan also encompasses elimination of unnecessary costs and optimal use of 
resources. We are committed to continue our efforts as mentioned above to reduce excessive cost 
and make the business profitable.

We are hopeful, by the grace of Allah SWT, through implementing our well-crafted and pragmatic 
business and action plans we will be able to make PILIL one of the country’s best life insurance 
company, Insha-Allah. 

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of PILIL meet on a regular basis. A detail statement showing attendance of the 
Directors in the Board Meetings is placed as under:

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shareholding position of Directors and other related parties at the end of 2023 is as under:

Shares held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children, Executives & 
shareholders holding 10% or more 

RETIREMENT AND ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Sponsor Directors:
In accordance with the Articles 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company, two directors 
shall retire by rotation from office at the 24th Annual General Meeting. The retiring directors are:

 i.  Md. Ali Hossain Nominted by Legendary Enterprises Ltd.
 ii. Mr. Ekramul Ameen FCA Nominted by Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.

Being eligible they offered themselves for re-election.

Public Shareholder Directors:
In accordance with the provision under Article 96 of the Article of Association of the Company and as 
provided under Insurance Act & Rules, Public notification with regard to election of Public Subscribers’ 
Director has been published in the 2 (two) national Dailies (The Daily Sonali Barta & The Daily 
Morning Observer), but no nomination papers were received from the shareholders for election.

Independent Directors:
As per the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 03 June 2018, (i) At least one fifth (1/5) 
of the total number of directors in the company’s board shall be independent directors, (ii) 
Independent Director(s) shall be appointment by the Board of Directors and approved by the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting(AGM), and (iii) the tenure of office of an independent 
director shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Financial Auditor:
Pursuant to section 210 of company Act, 1994, the Company’s statutory auditors M/S Pinaki & 
Company, Chartered Accountants, shall retire & expired in the 24th Annual General Meeting. 

M/S Pinaki & Company, Chartered Accountants have expressed their interest as a statutory 
auditors for the year December 31, 2024 of the Company. The BoD has endorsed the 
recommendation for appointment M/S Pinaki & Company,Chartered Accountants at a 
remuneration of BDT 250,000.00 including income tax. As such the matter is placed before the 
24th  AGM for kind approval. 

Compliance Auditor:
Anil Salam Idris & Co.Chartered Accountants was the Corporate Governance Auditors for the 
year 2023. Since the said auditor is interested for reappointment as compliance auditor for the year 
2024, the BoD has endorsed the recommendation for reappointment at a fee of Tk. 30,000.00 
including income tax and the matter is placed before the 24th  AGM for kind approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of PILIL are committed in adopting the highest governance standard and 
implementing them in protecting the interests of shareholders, policy holders and all other 

stakeholders. The Company has complied with all necessary guidelines under BSEC notification 
no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. A certificate of Compliance 
required under the said Guidelines, as provided by Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants, is 
annexed in the Annual Report 2024. 

Audit Committee:
The Committee plays an important role to ensure transparency, accountability in the operations of 
the Company and confirming that the activities are conducted within the framework of principles 
and policies as laid down by the Board, as well as the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated June 03, 2018. 
The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024 audited by the External Auditors stressing on the importance of the successful 
compliance within the company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):
In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin and dated June 03, 
2018 issued by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Padma Islami Life Insurance 
Ltd. formed a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The NRC is responsible or 
accountable to the Board and to the Shareholders of the Company. Two meeting of NRC was held 
during the year 2023.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE CEO AND THE CFO TO THE BOARD

The Details of discussion of declaration by the CEO and Finance Controller is appended 
separately.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE SHARIAH BOARD

A declaration by the Shariah Committee on compliance with Islamic Shariah is appended separately.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ON THE COMPANY’S POSITION AND 
OPERATION

Services to Policyholders:
The reputation and progress of the company largely depend on rendering prompt and quality 
service to the policyholders. Keeping this in view, we have further strengthened our Services and 
launched a One-stop Service center during the year, the Company has settled Maturity sarvial 
benefit surrenden claim & death Claims of significant amount totaling to Tk. 52.97 crores.

Human Resource Practices:
PILIL is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees, irrespective of their gender, 
race, nationality, ethnic origin, or religion. PILIL is an inclusive employer and values diversity in 
its employees. 

These extend to recruitment and selection, training, career development, flexible working 
arrangements, promotion and performance appraisal. Our corporate goal is to improve staff 

engagement by measuring and responding to staff members’ views and willingness to exert extra 
effort to achieve business success. 

We provide necessary support to staff in order to manage change effectively. We credit the strength 
of our people for our organization’s success, their understanding of strategy and goals, as well as 
their satisfaction with the work they do and how it contributes, are of critical importance.

We continue our efforts to create and maintain a highly skilled and motivated workforce. Through 
our succession planning initiatives, leadership capacity is identified and developed to ensure 
ongoing success through adequate training and motivation. The Manpower strength of the 
company at the end of 2023 was 280.

Information Technology:
Information and Communication Technology (ICT) has become indispensable for Insurance 
Companies in ensuring smooth operation and providing efficient services. Recognized this fact the 
Board has adopted a comprehensive ICT policy for the company.

ICT system of PILIL has been revamped by strengthening and securing the automation of services. 
The highly experienced and trained ICT professionals are working on implementing and developing 
the company’s online integrated full-featured ERP System and other ICT infrastructure and constantly 
innovating and writing in-house programs to meet the needs of the company. Local Area Network 
(LAN) and other technologies have been in operation in the Head office and Branch offices.

Corporate Social Responsibility:
The Directors are sincere to discharge corporate responsibilities to the society. As a part of 
discharging corporate social responsibilities, PILIL has initiated a number programs and has been 
sponsoring various welfare activit, besides patronizing cultural activities in the country since its 
inception. 
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Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmatullah.

The Board of Directors (BoD) of your company Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited (PILIL), 
welcome you to the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and would like to thank you for your 
continued patronage and support over the years. We are pleased to present before you the Annual 
Report along with the Auditors’ Report and audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 for kind consideration and adoption.

This Report has been prepared in compliance with the provisions of relevant Acts, Rules, Regulations, 
Notifications, etc. issued by the Regulatory Bodies wherein the Directors have made relevant 
disclosures and explanations pertaining to compliance, transparency and sound corporate governance 
along with the details of the business performance, operations and achievements of the company for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. 

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE INDUSTRY

Transitioning the Banglaesh Insurance Industry to a Smart fromewark by 2041 entails overcoming 
notable challenges. Key obstacles include the lack of robust technological infrastructure and 
digital literacy, necessitating efforts to bridge the digital divide. Addressing date security, privacy 
concerns, and integrating new digital solutions with legacy systems repuire strategic planning. 
Regulatory compliance, establishing trust in digital services, and managing implementation costs 
are additional hurdles.Overcoming resistance to organizational change and navigating 
interoperability issues are crucial for a smooth transition. Furthermore, heightened market 
competition underscores the need for strategic positioning. In tandem with these challenges, there 
is a vital need to cultivate a mindset shift among individuals, Fostering openness and adaptability 
to maximize the benefits of this technological evolution.  

The government has greenlit guideline for the introduction of insurance products through 
commercial banks, marking a singnificant move in the form of Bancassurance. This initiative is 
poised to enhance the countrys insurance sector by increasing penetrantion and revitalizing 
opportunities. Bancassurance not only contributes to improved profitability and liquidity for banks 
but also fosters a sense of responsibility towards clients, opening new doors for inclusion and 
growth in the industry.

The Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) have introduced the Regulatory 
Sandbox Guidelince-2023, fostering innovation in the insurance sector. This initiative aims to 
blend industry evolution with customer protection, encourahging the integration of technology 
into insurance services. The regulatory sandbox provides a platform insurers and startups to 
introduce novel products, contributing to a technology- driven paradigm.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE OF PILIL

The product wise break-up of premium income and management expenses with corresponding 
figure of 2023 is presented below:

YEAR-WISE PERFORMANCE FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Year-wise Performance of the company for last five years has been depicted in a separate 
statement under title ‘‘Five Years Financial Progression”. Some highlights are given in items 
below:

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA 

Life Fund:

Total life fund of the Company as at 31st December, 2023 stood at Tk. (254.41) crore as against 
Tk. 233.89 crore in the preceding year. Life Fund of the Company has been decreased due to 
maturity of significant amount of claims. The Board hopes that the life fund will increase 
gradually by virtue of building up consequential margin expected to be achieved from the 
initiatives taken so far.

Investment Portfolio:
The Investment of the Company for the year of 2023 was Tk. 216.00 crore. The comparative 
statement of the last five years’ investment is given below:

RISK AND CONCERN

Over the last decade, the business world has faced unprecedented changes and challenges. 
Specially, Insurances of all sizes are now more concerned than ever about risk and its 
management.

Importantly, risk management is a central part of the PILIL’s strategic management focus. PILIL’s 
risk management objectives ensure that strategic, operational and tactical risks are identified, 
documented, managed and controlled appropriately. 

We have employed Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework for our risk management 
system which enables us to act quickly and prudently in the event of risk occurrence, and also 
helps us create a library of our risk response initiatives developing our core competitive 
advantages. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING EXTRA-ORDINARY GAIN OR LOSS

There was no extra-ordinary gain or extra-ordinary loss during the year 2023.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In ordinary course of business, related party transactions take place with other entities that fall 
within the term ‘related party’ as defined in IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure. A statement on the 
related party transactions has been disclosed under item no. 41 of the notes to the financial 
statements.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, 
RIGHTS ISSUES AND/OR ANY OTHER INSTRUMENTS

During the year 2023, the Company did not issue any share or other instruments.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VARIANCE BETWEEN QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Quarterly Financial Statement is given separately. There were some variances in the 
financial results from quarter to quarter. But they are not very significant or material in nature.

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors including Independent Directors, all being Non-Executive Directors, are given only 
Meeting Attendance Fee. During the year 2023, a total amount of BDT 23,49,359 was given to the 
Directors as Meeting Attendance Fee. However, in 2021 the amount was BDT 8,71,200.

DISCLOSURE ON PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors places before you the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2023 for their adoption. The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge, that-

(i) The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes inequity;

(ii) Proper books and accounts of the company have been maintained;

(iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of the 
financial statements and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment;

(iv) IAS/IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements;

(v) As required by condition 6 of the guidelines, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and 
the Chief Financial Officer have jointly certified to the Board that-

(a)  They have reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 
December 2023 and to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii)  These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s 
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and 
applicable laws

(b)  There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the company’s 
code of conduct.

DISCLOSURE ON INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board states that the systems of internal control are sound in design and have been 
implemented and monitored effectively. 

PILIL follows Committee of Sponsoring Organization (COSO) framework for evaluating internal 
controls in the organization. The COSO model defines internal control as “a process, effected by 
an entity’s board of directors, management and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable 
assurance of the achievement of objectives in the following categories:

 v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
 v Reliability of financial reporting
 v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations”

However, the BoD is primarily responsible to establish and review the operational effectiveness of 
such controls in PILIL. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee of PILIL ensures through 
Internal, External, Compliance, Special and/or other Audits that the system of internal control is 
adequate and effective. 

Internal Audit Unit of PILIL does have valuable contribution towards improving the effectiveness 
of its systems of internal control. Its risk-based audit approaches provide reasonable assurance to 
the Audit Committee and the Management about the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control system in the company. 

PROTECTION OF NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Board certifies that non-controlling shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, 
or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective 
means of redress.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS

PILIL has no subsidiary and therefore, no disclosure is applicable hereto.

COMPANY’S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS GOING CONCERN

The Directors declare that there are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. For this purpose of assessment whether PILIL has ability to continue as a going 
concern, the following issues have been considered:

 v The commitment towards the claims filed and its ability to meet contractual obligations as 
they become due;

 v Liquidity-related actions and plans to stabilize the businesses and repay the outstanding 
debt; 

 v The level of PILIL’s realized and unrealized losses and the negative impact of these losses 
on shareholders’ equity, and

 v Opinion of Financial and Compliance Auditors

While considering these issues, significant judgments and estimates with respect to the potentially 
adverse financial and liquidity effects of PILIL’s risks and uncertainties have been made. 

DIVIDEND

The Company did not receive Actuarial Basis for Valuation for the year 2023 from Insurance 
Development & Regulatory Authority. Consequently, no actuarial valuation was carried out and 
recommended from the Actuary for payment of dividend to the Shareholders. Accorddingly the 
Board of Directors of the Company did not recommend any dividend to Shareholders and bonus 
to Policyhoders for the year 2023.

BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2024

Keeping in view the effect of pandemic and the above scenario, Padma Life has revised its 
business plan and strategy for survival and growth.  As, due to restricted in-person interactions on 
account of the lockdown measures etc. and grave global economic recession, we assume that 
premium income against Individual (Ekok) and Micro (DPS) insurance may not grow sufficiently 
despite all possible measures. 

Therefore, in addition to taking all necessary steps to boost up selling Individual (Ekok) and Micro 
(DPS) insurance, collecting renewal premium and reviving lapsed policies, our business plan 
redirects company’s major efforts and focus on ‘Group life Insurance’ as opposed to individual 
schemes.

Under group insurance category, every attempt will be made, in addition to employees’ life 
insurance schemes, to bring Banks’ depositors and investors of some specific categories under 
group life insurance coverage. In this regard, considerable progress has already been made. 

Our business plan also encompasses elimination of unnecessary costs and optimal use of 
resources. We are committed to continue our efforts as mentioned above to reduce excessive cost 
and make the business profitable.

We are hopeful, by the grace of Allah SWT, through implementing our well-crafted and pragmatic 
business and action plans we will be able to make PILIL one of the country’s best life insurance 
company, Insha-Allah. 

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of PILIL meet on a regular basis. A detail statement showing attendance of the 
Directors in the Board Meetings is placed as under:

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shareholding position of Directors and other related parties at the end of 2023 is as under:

Shares held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children, Executives & 
shareholders holding 10% or more 

RETIREMENT AND ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Sponsor Directors:
In accordance with the Articles 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company, two directors 
shall retire by rotation from office at the 24th Annual General Meeting. The retiring directors are:

 i.  Md. Ali Hossain Nominted by Legendary Enterprises Ltd.
 ii. Mr. Ekramul Ameen FCA Nominted by Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.

Being eligible they offered themselves for re-election.

Public Shareholder Directors:
In accordance with the provision under Article 96 of the Article of Association of the Company and as 
provided under Insurance Act & Rules, Public notification with regard to election of Public Subscribers’ 
Director has been published in the 2 (two) national Dailies (The Daily Sonali Barta & The Daily 
Morning Observer), but no nomination papers were received from the shareholders for election.

Independent Directors:
As per the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 03 June 2018, (i) At least one fifth (1/5) 
of the total number of directors in the company’s board shall be independent directors, (ii) 
Independent Director(s) shall be appointment by the Board of Directors and approved by the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting(AGM), and (iii) the tenure of office of an independent 
director shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Financial Auditor:
Pursuant to section 210 of company Act, 1994, the Company’s statutory auditors M/S Pinaki & 
Company, Chartered Accountants, shall retire & expired in the 24th Annual General Meeting. 

M/S Pinaki & Company, Chartered Accountants have expressed their interest as a statutory 
auditors for the year December 31, 2024 of the Company. The BoD has endorsed the 
recommendation for appointment M/S Pinaki & Company,Chartered Accountants at a 
remuneration of BDT 250,000.00 including income tax. As such the matter is placed before the 
24th  AGM for kind approval. 

Compliance Auditor:
Anil Salam Idris & Co.Chartered Accountants was the Corporate Governance Auditors for the 
year 2023. Since the said auditor is interested for reappointment as compliance auditor for the year 
2024, the BoD has endorsed the recommendation for reappointment at a fee of Tk. 30,000.00 
including income tax and the matter is placed before the 24th  AGM for kind approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of PILIL are committed in adopting the highest governance standard and 
implementing them in protecting the interests of shareholders, policy holders and all other 

stakeholders. The Company has complied with all necessary guidelines under BSEC notification 
no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. A certificate of Compliance 
required under the said Guidelines, as provided by Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants, is 
annexed in the Annual Report 2024. 

Audit Committee:
The Committee plays an important role to ensure transparency, accountability in the operations of 
the Company and confirming that the activities are conducted within the framework of principles 
and policies as laid down by the Board, as well as the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated June 03, 2018. 
The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024 audited by the External Auditors stressing on the importance of the successful 
compliance within the company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):
In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin and dated June 03, 
2018 issued by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Padma Islami Life Insurance 
Ltd. formed a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The NRC is responsible or 
accountable to the Board and to the Shareholders of the Company. Two meeting of NRC was held 
during the year 2023.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE CEO AND THE CFO TO THE BOARD

The Details of discussion of declaration by the CEO and Finance Controller is appended 
separately.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE SHARIAH BOARD

A declaration by the Shariah Committee on compliance with Islamic Shariah is appended separately.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ON THE COMPANY’S POSITION AND 
OPERATION

Services to Policyholders:
The reputation and progress of the company largely depend on rendering prompt and quality 
service to the policyholders. Keeping this in view, we have further strengthened our Services and 
launched a One-stop Service center during the year, the Company has settled Maturity sarvial 
benefit surrenden claim & death Claims of significant amount totaling to Tk. 52.97 crores.

Human Resource Practices:
PILIL is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees, irrespective of their gender, 
race, nationality, ethnic origin, or religion. PILIL is an inclusive employer and values diversity in 
its employees. 

These extend to recruitment and selection, training, career development, flexible working 
arrangements, promotion and performance appraisal. Our corporate goal is to improve staff 

engagement by measuring and responding to staff members’ views and willingness to exert extra 
effort to achieve business success. 

We provide necessary support to staff in order to manage change effectively. We credit the strength 
of our people for our organization’s success, their understanding of strategy and goals, as well as 
their satisfaction with the work they do and how it contributes, are of critical importance.

We continue our efforts to create and maintain a highly skilled and motivated workforce. Through 
our succession planning initiatives, leadership capacity is identified and developed to ensure 
ongoing success through adequate training and motivation. The Manpower strength of the 
company at the end of 2023 was 280.

Information Technology:
Information and Communication Technology (ICT) has become indispensable for Insurance 
Companies in ensuring smooth operation and providing efficient services. Recognized this fact the 
Board has adopted a comprehensive ICT policy for the company.

ICT system of PILIL has been revamped by strengthening and securing the automation of services. 
The highly experienced and trained ICT professionals are working on implementing and developing 
the company’s online integrated full-featured ERP System and other ICT infrastructure and constantly 
innovating and writing in-house programs to meet the needs of the company. Local Area Network 
(LAN) and other technologies have been in operation in the Head office and Branch offices.

Corporate Social Responsibility:
The Directors are sincere to discharge corporate responsibilities to the society. As a part of 
discharging corporate social responsibilities, PILIL has initiated a number programs and has been 
sponsoring various welfare activit, besides patronizing cultural activities in the country since its 
inception. 
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 07 Dr. Md. Nurul Aktar Chowdhury Independent 07 07
   Director

 08 Dr. Mohammad Nayeem Abdullah Independent 07 07
   Director
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Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmatullah.

The Board of Directors (BoD) of your company Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited (PILIL), 
welcome you to the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and would like to thank you for your 
continued patronage and support over the years. We are pleased to present before you the Annual 
Report along with the Auditors’ Report and audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 for kind consideration and adoption.

This Report has been prepared in compliance with the provisions of relevant Acts, Rules, Regulations, 
Notifications, etc. issued by the Regulatory Bodies wherein the Directors have made relevant 
disclosures and explanations pertaining to compliance, transparency and sound corporate governance 
along with the details of the business performance, operations and achievements of the company for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. 

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE INDUSTRY

Transitioning the Banglaesh Insurance Industry to a Smart fromewark by 2041 entails overcoming 
notable challenges. Key obstacles include the lack of robust technological infrastructure and 
digital literacy, necessitating efforts to bridge the digital divide. Addressing date security, privacy 
concerns, and integrating new digital solutions with legacy systems repuire strategic planning. 
Regulatory compliance, establishing trust in digital services, and managing implementation costs 
are additional hurdles.Overcoming resistance to organizational change and navigating 
interoperability issues are crucial for a smooth transition. Furthermore, heightened market 
competition underscores the need for strategic positioning. In tandem with these challenges, there 
is a vital need to cultivate a mindset shift among individuals, Fostering openness and adaptability 
to maximize the benefits of this technological evolution.  

The government has greenlit guideline for the introduction of insurance products through 
commercial banks, marking a singnificant move in the form of Bancassurance. This initiative is 
poised to enhance the countrys insurance sector by increasing penetrantion and revitalizing 
opportunities. Bancassurance not only contributes to improved profitability and liquidity for banks 
but also fosters a sense of responsibility towards clients, opening new doors for inclusion and 
growth in the industry.

The Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) have introduced the Regulatory 
Sandbox Guidelince-2023, fostering innovation in the insurance sector. This initiative aims to 
blend industry evolution with customer protection, encourahging the integration of technology 
into insurance services. The regulatory sandbox provides a platform insurers and startups to 
introduce novel products, contributing to a technology- driven paradigm.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE OF PILIL

The product wise break-up of premium income and management expenses with corresponding 
figure of 2023 is presented below:

YEAR-WISE PERFORMANCE FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Year-wise Performance of the company for last five years has been depicted in a separate 
statement under title ‘‘Five Years Financial Progression”. Some highlights are given in items 
below:

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA 

Life Fund:

Total life fund of the Company as at 31st December, 2023 stood at Tk. (254.41) crore as against 
Tk. 233.89 crore in the preceding year. Life Fund of the Company has been decreased due to 
maturity of significant amount of claims. The Board hopes that the life fund will increase 
gradually by virtue of building up consequential margin expected to be achieved from the 
initiatives taken so far.

Investment Portfolio:
The Investment of the Company for the year of 2023 was Tk. 216.00 crore. The comparative 
statement of the last five years’ investment is given below:

RISK AND CONCERN

Over the last decade, the business world has faced unprecedented changes and challenges. 
Specially, Insurances of all sizes are now more concerned than ever about risk and its 
management.

Importantly, risk management is a central part of the PILIL’s strategic management focus. PILIL’s 
risk management objectives ensure that strategic, operational and tactical risks are identified, 
documented, managed and controlled appropriately. 

We have employed Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework for our risk management 
system which enables us to act quickly and prudently in the event of risk occurrence, and also 
helps us create a library of our risk response initiatives developing our core competitive 
advantages. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING EXTRA-ORDINARY GAIN OR LOSS

There was no extra-ordinary gain or extra-ordinary loss during the year 2023.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In ordinary course of business, related party transactions take place with other entities that fall 
within the term ‘related party’ as defined in IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure. A statement on the 
related party transactions has been disclosed under item no. 41 of the notes to the financial 
statements.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, 
RIGHTS ISSUES AND/OR ANY OTHER INSTRUMENTS

During the year 2023, the Company did not issue any share or other instruments.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VARIANCE BETWEEN QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Quarterly Financial Statement is given separately. There were some variances in the 
financial results from quarter to quarter. But they are not very significant or material in nature.

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors including Independent Directors, all being Non-Executive Directors, are given only 
Meeting Attendance Fee. During the year 2023, a total amount of BDT 23,49,359 was given to the 
Directors as Meeting Attendance Fee. However, in 2021 the amount was BDT 8,71,200.

DISCLOSURE ON PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors places before you the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2023 for their adoption. The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge, that-

(i) The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes inequity;

(ii) Proper books and accounts of the company have been maintained;

(iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of the 
financial statements and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment;

(iv) IAS/IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements;

(v) As required by condition 6 of the guidelines, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and 
the Chief Financial Officer have jointly certified to the Board that-

(a)  They have reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 
December 2023 and to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii)  These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s 
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and 
applicable laws

(b)  There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the company’s 
code of conduct.

DISCLOSURE ON INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board states that the systems of internal control are sound in design and have been 
implemented and monitored effectively. 

PILIL follows Committee of Sponsoring Organization (COSO) framework for evaluating internal 
controls in the organization. The COSO model defines internal control as “a process, effected by 
an entity’s board of directors, management and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable 
assurance of the achievement of objectives in the following categories:

 v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
 v Reliability of financial reporting
 v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations”

However, the BoD is primarily responsible to establish and review the operational effectiveness of 
such controls in PILIL. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee of PILIL ensures through 
Internal, External, Compliance, Special and/or other Audits that the system of internal control is 
adequate and effective. 

Internal Audit Unit of PILIL does have valuable contribution towards improving the effectiveness 
of its systems of internal control. Its risk-based audit approaches provide reasonable assurance to 
the Audit Committee and the Management about the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control system in the company. 

PROTECTION OF NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Board certifies that non-controlling shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, 
or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective 
means of redress.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS

PILIL has no subsidiary and therefore, no disclosure is applicable hereto.

COMPANY’S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS GOING CONCERN

The Directors declare that there are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. For this purpose of assessment whether PILIL has ability to continue as a going 
concern, the following issues have been considered:

 v The commitment towards the claims filed and its ability to meet contractual obligations as 
they become due;

 v Liquidity-related actions and plans to stabilize the businesses and repay the outstanding 
debt; 

 v The level of PILIL’s realized and unrealized losses and the negative impact of these losses 
on shareholders’ equity, and

 v Opinion of Financial and Compliance Auditors

While considering these issues, significant judgments and estimates with respect to the potentially 
adverse financial and liquidity effects of PILIL’s risks and uncertainties have been made. 

DIVIDEND

The Company did not receive Actuarial Basis for Valuation for the year 2023 from Insurance 
Development & Regulatory Authority. Consequently, no actuarial valuation was carried out and 
recommended from the Actuary for payment of dividend to the Shareholders. Accorddingly the 
Board of Directors of the Company did not recommend any dividend to Shareholders and bonus 
to Policyhoders for the year 2023.

BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2024

Keeping in view the effect of pandemic and the above scenario, Padma Life has revised its 
business plan and strategy for survival and growth.  As, due to restricted in-person interactions on 
account of the lockdown measures etc. and grave global economic recession, we assume that 
premium income against Individual (Ekok) and Micro (DPS) insurance may not grow sufficiently 
despite all possible measures. 

Therefore, in addition to taking all necessary steps to boost up selling Individual (Ekok) and Micro 
(DPS) insurance, collecting renewal premium and reviving lapsed policies, our business plan 
redirects company’s major efforts and focus on ‘Group life Insurance’ as opposed to individual 
schemes.

Under group insurance category, every attempt will be made, in addition to employees’ life 
insurance schemes, to bring Banks’ depositors and investors of some specific categories under 
group life insurance coverage. In this regard, considerable progress has already been made. 

Our business plan also encompasses elimination of unnecessary costs and optimal use of 
resources. We are committed to continue our efforts as mentioned above to reduce excessive cost 
and make the business profitable.

We are hopeful, by the grace of Allah SWT, through implementing our well-crafted and pragmatic 
business and action plans we will be able to make PILIL one of the country’s best life insurance 
company, Insha-Allah. 

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of PILIL meet on a regular basis. A detail statement showing attendance of the 
Directors in the Board Meetings is placed as under:

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shareholding position of Directors and other related parties at the end of 2023 is as under:

Shares held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children, Executives & 
shareholders holding 10% or more 

RETIREMENT AND ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Sponsor Directors:
In accordance with the Articles 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company, two directors 
shall retire by rotation from office at the 24th Annual General Meeting. The retiring directors are:

 i.  Md. Ali Hossain Nominted by Legendary Enterprises Ltd.
 ii. Mr. Ekramul Ameen FCA Nominted by Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.

Being eligible they offered themselves for re-election.

Public Shareholder Directors:
In accordance with the provision under Article 96 of the Article of Association of the Company and as 
provided under Insurance Act & Rules, Public notification with regard to election of Public Subscribers’ 
Director has been published in the 2 (two) national Dailies (The Daily Sonali Barta & The Daily 
Morning Observer), but no nomination papers were received from the shareholders for election.

Independent Directors:
As per the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 03 June 2018, (i) At least one fifth (1/5) 
of the total number of directors in the company’s board shall be independent directors, (ii) 
Independent Director(s) shall be appointment by the Board of Directors and approved by the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting(AGM), and (iii) the tenure of office of an independent 
director shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Financial Auditor:
Pursuant to section 210 of company Act, 1994, the Company’s statutory auditors M/S Pinaki & 
Company, Chartered Accountants, shall retire & expired in the 24th Annual General Meeting. 

M/S Pinaki & Company, Chartered Accountants have expressed their interest as a statutory 
auditors for the year December 31, 2024 of the Company. The BoD has endorsed the 
recommendation for appointment M/S Pinaki & Company,Chartered Accountants at a 
remuneration of BDT 250,000.00 including income tax. As such the matter is placed before the 
24th  AGM for kind approval. 

Compliance Auditor:
Anil Salam Idris & Co.Chartered Accountants was the Corporate Governance Auditors for the 
year 2023. Since the said auditor is interested for reappointment as compliance auditor for the year 
2024, the BoD has endorsed the recommendation for reappointment at a fee of Tk. 30,000.00 
including income tax and the matter is placed before the 24th  AGM for kind approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of PILIL are committed in adopting the highest governance standard and 
implementing them in protecting the interests of shareholders, policy holders and all other 

stakeholders. The Company has complied with all necessary guidelines under BSEC notification 
no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. A certificate of Compliance 
required under the said Guidelines, as provided by Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants, is 
annexed in the Annual Report 2024. 

Audit Committee:
The Committee plays an important role to ensure transparency, accountability in the operations of 
the Company and confirming that the activities are conducted within the framework of principles 
and policies as laid down by the Board, as well as the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated June 03, 2018. 
The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024 audited by the External Auditors stressing on the importance of the successful 
compliance within the company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):
In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin and dated June 03, 
2018 issued by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Padma Islami Life Insurance 
Ltd. formed a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The NRC is responsible or 
accountable to the Board and to the Shareholders of the Company. Two meeting of NRC was held 
during the year 2023.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE CEO AND THE CFO TO THE BOARD

The Details of discussion of declaration by the CEO and Finance Controller is appended 
separately.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE SHARIAH BOARD

A declaration by the Shariah Committee on compliance with Islamic Shariah is appended separately.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ON THE COMPANY’S POSITION AND 
OPERATION

Services to Policyholders:
The reputation and progress of the company largely depend on rendering prompt and quality 
service to the policyholders. Keeping this in view, we have further strengthened our Services and 
launched a One-stop Service center during the year, the Company has settled Maturity sarvial 
benefit surrenden claim & death Claims of significant amount totaling to Tk. 52.97 crores.

Human Resource Practices:
PILIL is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees, irrespective of their gender, 
race, nationality, ethnic origin, or religion. PILIL is an inclusive employer and values diversity in 
its employees. 

These extend to recruitment and selection, training, career development, flexible working 
arrangements, promotion and performance appraisal. Our corporate goal is to improve staff 

engagement by measuring and responding to staff members’ views and willingness to exert extra 
effort to achieve business success. 

We provide necessary support to staff in order to manage change effectively. We credit the strength 
of our people for our organization’s success, their understanding of strategy and goals, as well as 
their satisfaction with the work they do and how it contributes, are of critical importance.

We continue our efforts to create and maintain a highly skilled and motivated workforce. Through 
our succession planning initiatives, leadership capacity is identified and developed to ensure 
ongoing success through adequate training and motivation. The Manpower strength of the 
company at the end of 2023 was 280.

Information Technology:
Information and Communication Technology (ICT) has become indispensable for Insurance 
Companies in ensuring smooth operation and providing efficient services. Recognized this fact the 
Board has adopted a comprehensive ICT policy for the company.

ICT system of PILIL has been revamped by strengthening and securing the automation of services. 
The highly experienced and trained ICT professionals are working on implementing and developing 
the company’s online integrated full-featured ERP System and other ICT infrastructure and constantly 
innovating and writing in-house programs to meet the needs of the company. Local Area Network 
(LAN) and other technologies have been in operation in the Head office and Branch offices.

Corporate Social Responsibility:
The Directors are sincere to discharge corporate responsibilities to the society. As a part of 
discharging corporate social responsibilities, PILIL has initiated a number programs and has been 
sponsoring various welfare activit, besides patronizing cultural activities in the country since its 
inception. 
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Sl.
No. Directors No. of shares

held
Shareholding

Ratio Comments

Sl.
No. Particulars No. of shares

held
Shareholding

Ratio Comments

 b.1 Directors/Executives 1,22,70,820 31.566% 
 b. 2 Chief Executive Officer Nil - 
 b. 3 Chief Financial Officer Nil - 
 b. 4 Head of Internal Auditor Nil - 
 b.5 Company Secretary Nil - 
 c Executives Nil - 
 d Shareholders holding 10% or  Nil
  more voting rights  
                                                    Total: 1,22,70,820 31.566% 

 01. Mr. AKM Shariat Ullah, FCA, ACCA  30,93,600 7.967 
  Representative of Unitex LP Gas Ltd.  
 02. Mrs. Zaman Ara Begum  23,88,320 6.143 
  Representative of Affinity Assets Ltd. 
 03. Prf.Md. Sarware Alam 26,98,120 6.940 
  Representative of Crest Holdings Ltd. 
 04. Mr. Md. Fakrul Islam  25,32,780 6.514
  Representative of Unitex Petroleum Ltd.    
 05. Md. Ali Hossain 7,78,000 2.001
  Representative of Legendary Enterprises Ltd.
 06 Ekramul Ameen, FCA 7,78,000 2.001
  (Representative of Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.) 
 07. Dr. Md. Nurul Aktar Chowdhury 1,000 - 
  (Independent Director)  
 08. Dr. Mohammad Nayeem Abdullah 1,000 - 
  (Independent Director) 
 09. Professor Dr. Serajul Hoque  - - 
  (Independent Director) 
 10. Md. Belal Hussain, FCA - - 
  (Independent Director) 

  Total: 1,22,70,820 31.566% 
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Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmatullah.

The Board of Directors (BoD) of your company Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited (PILIL), 
welcome you to the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and would like to thank you for your 
continued patronage and support over the years. We are pleased to present before you the Annual 
Report along with the Auditors’ Report and audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 for kind consideration and adoption.

This Report has been prepared in compliance with the provisions of relevant Acts, Rules, Regulations, 
Notifications, etc. issued by the Regulatory Bodies wherein the Directors have made relevant 
disclosures and explanations pertaining to compliance, transparency and sound corporate governance 
along with the details of the business performance, operations and achievements of the company for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. 

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE INDUSTRY

Transitioning the Banglaesh Insurance Industry to a Smart fromewark by 2041 entails overcoming 
notable challenges. Key obstacles include the lack of robust technological infrastructure and 
digital literacy, necessitating efforts to bridge the digital divide. Addressing date security, privacy 
concerns, and integrating new digital solutions with legacy systems repuire strategic planning. 
Regulatory compliance, establishing trust in digital services, and managing implementation costs 
are additional hurdles.Overcoming resistance to organizational change and navigating 
interoperability issues are crucial for a smooth transition. Furthermore, heightened market 
competition underscores the need for strategic positioning. In tandem with these challenges, there 
is a vital need to cultivate a mindset shift among individuals, Fostering openness and adaptability 
to maximize the benefits of this technological evolution.  

The government has greenlit guideline for the introduction of insurance products through 
commercial banks, marking a singnificant move in the form of Bancassurance. This initiative is 
poised to enhance the countrys insurance sector by increasing penetrantion and revitalizing 
opportunities. Bancassurance not only contributes to improved profitability and liquidity for banks 
but also fosters a sense of responsibility towards clients, opening new doors for inclusion and 
growth in the industry.

The Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) have introduced the Regulatory 
Sandbox Guidelince-2023, fostering innovation in the insurance sector. This initiative aims to 
blend industry evolution with customer protection, encourahging the integration of technology 
into insurance services. The regulatory sandbox provides a platform insurers and startups to 
introduce novel products, contributing to a technology- driven paradigm.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE OF PILIL

The product wise break-up of premium income and management expenses with corresponding 
figure of 2023 is presented below:

YEAR-WISE PERFORMANCE FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Year-wise Performance of the company for last five years has been depicted in a separate 
statement under title ‘‘Five Years Financial Progression”. Some highlights are given in items 
below:

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA 

Life Fund:

Total life fund of the Company as at 31st December, 2023 stood at Tk. (254.41) crore as against 
Tk. 233.89 crore in the preceding year. Life Fund of the Company has been decreased due to 
maturity of significant amount of claims. The Board hopes that the life fund will increase 
gradually by virtue of building up consequential margin expected to be achieved from the 
initiatives taken so far.

Investment Portfolio:
The Investment of the Company for the year of 2023 was Tk. 216.00 crore. The comparative 
statement of the last five years’ investment is given below:

RISK AND CONCERN

Over the last decade, the business world has faced unprecedented changes and challenges. 
Specially, Insurances of all sizes are now more concerned than ever about risk and its 
management.

Importantly, risk management is a central part of the PILIL’s strategic management focus. PILIL’s 
risk management objectives ensure that strategic, operational and tactical risks are identified, 
documented, managed and controlled appropriately. 

We have employed Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework for our risk management 
system which enables us to act quickly and prudently in the event of risk occurrence, and also 
helps us create a library of our risk response initiatives developing our core competitive 
advantages. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING EXTRA-ORDINARY GAIN OR LOSS

There was no extra-ordinary gain or extra-ordinary loss during the year 2023.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In ordinary course of business, related party transactions take place with other entities that fall 
within the term ‘related party’ as defined in IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure. A statement on the 
related party transactions has been disclosed under item no. 41 of the notes to the financial 
statements.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, 
RIGHTS ISSUES AND/OR ANY OTHER INSTRUMENTS

During the year 2023, the Company did not issue any share or other instruments.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VARIANCE BETWEEN QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Quarterly Financial Statement is given separately. There were some variances in the 
financial results from quarter to quarter. But they are not very significant or material in nature.

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors including Independent Directors, all being Non-Executive Directors, are given only 
Meeting Attendance Fee. During the year 2023, a total amount of BDT 23,49,359 was given to the 
Directors as Meeting Attendance Fee. However, in 2021 the amount was BDT 8,71,200.

DISCLOSURE ON PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors places before you the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2023 for their adoption. The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge, that-

(i) The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes inequity;

(ii) Proper books and accounts of the company have been maintained;

(iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of the 
financial statements and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment;

(iv) IAS/IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements;

(v) As required by condition 6 of the guidelines, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and 
the Chief Financial Officer have jointly certified to the Board that-

(a)  They have reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 
December 2023 and to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii)  These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s 
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and 
applicable laws

(b)  There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the company’s 
code of conduct.

DISCLOSURE ON INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board states that the systems of internal control are sound in design and have been 
implemented and monitored effectively. 

PILIL follows Committee of Sponsoring Organization (COSO) framework for evaluating internal 
controls in the organization. The COSO model defines internal control as “a process, effected by 
an entity’s board of directors, management and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable 
assurance of the achievement of objectives in the following categories:

 v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
 v Reliability of financial reporting
 v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations”

However, the BoD is primarily responsible to establish and review the operational effectiveness of 
such controls in PILIL. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee of PILIL ensures through 
Internal, External, Compliance, Special and/or other Audits that the system of internal control is 
adequate and effective. 

Internal Audit Unit of PILIL does have valuable contribution towards improving the effectiveness 
of its systems of internal control. Its risk-based audit approaches provide reasonable assurance to 
the Audit Committee and the Management about the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control system in the company. 

PROTECTION OF NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Board certifies that non-controlling shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, 
or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective 
means of redress.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS

PILIL has no subsidiary and therefore, no disclosure is applicable hereto.

COMPANY’S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS GOING CONCERN

The Directors declare that there are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. For this purpose of assessment whether PILIL has ability to continue as a going 
concern, the following issues have been considered:

 v The commitment towards the claims filed and its ability to meet contractual obligations as 
they become due;

 v Liquidity-related actions and plans to stabilize the businesses and repay the outstanding 
debt; 

 v The level of PILIL’s realized and unrealized losses and the negative impact of these losses 
on shareholders’ equity, and

 v Opinion of Financial and Compliance Auditors

While considering these issues, significant judgments and estimates with respect to the potentially 
adverse financial and liquidity effects of PILIL’s risks and uncertainties have been made. 

DIVIDEND

The Company did not receive Actuarial Basis for Valuation for the year 2023 from Insurance 
Development & Regulatory Authority. Consequently, no actuarial valuation was carried out and 
recommended from the Actuary for payment of dividend to the Shareholders. Accorddingly the 
Board of Directors of the Company did not recommend any dividend to Shareholders and bonus 
to Policyhoders for the year 2023.

BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2024

Keeping in view the effect of pandemic and the above scenario, Padma Life has revised its 
business plan and strategy for survival and growth.  As, due to restricted in-person interactions on 
account of the lockdown measures etc. and grave global economic recession, we assume that 
premium income against Individual (Ekok) and Micro (DPS) insurance may not grow sufficiently 
despite all possible measures. 

Therefore, in addition to taking all necessary steps to boost up selling Individual (Ekok) and Micro 
(DPS) insurance, collecting renewal premium and reviving lapsed policies, our business plan 
redirects company’s major efforts and focus on ‘Group life Insurance’ as opposed to individual 
schemes.

Under group insurance category, every attempt will be made, in addition to employees’ life 
insurance schemes, to bring Banks’ depositors and investors of some specific categories under 
group life insurance coverage. In this regard, considerable progress has already been made. 

Our business plan also encompasses elimination of unnecessary costs and optimal use of 
resources. We are committed to continue our efforts as mentioned above to reduce excessive cost 
and make the business profitable.

We are hopeful, by the grace of Allah SWT, through implementing our well-crafted and pragmatic 
business and action plans we will be able to make PILIL one of the country’s best life insurance 
company, Insha-Allah. 

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of PILIL meet on a regular basis. A detail statement showing attendance of the 
Directors in the Board Meetings is placed as under:

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shareholding position of Directors and other related parties at the end of 2023 is as under:

Shares held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children, Executives & 
shareholders holding 10% or more 

RETIREMENT AND ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Sponsor Directors:
In accordance with the Articles 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company, two directors 
shall retire by rotation from office at the 24th Annual General Meeting. The retiring directors are:

 i.  Md. Ali Hossain Nominted by Legendary Enterprises Ltd.
 ii. Mr. Ekramul Ameen FCA Nominted by Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.

Being eligible they offered themselves for re-election.

Public Shareholder Directors:
In accordance with the provision under Article 96 of the Article of Association of the Company and as 
provided under Insurance Act & Rules, Public notification with regard to election of Public Subscribers’ 
Director has been published in the 2 (two) national Dailies (The Daily Sonali Barta & The Daily 
Morning Observer), but no nomination papers were received from the shareholders for election.

Independent Directors:
As per the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 03 June 2018, (i) At least one fifth (1/5) 
of the total number of directors in the company’s board shall be independent directors, (ii) 
Independent Director(s) shall be appointment by the Board of Directors and approved by the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting(AGM), and (iii) the tenure of office of an independent 
director shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Financial Auditor:
Pursuant to section 210 of company Act, 1994, the Company’s statutory auditors M/S Pinaki & 
Company, Chartered Accountants, shall retire & expired in the 24th Annual General Meeting. 

M/S Pinaki & Company, Chartered Accountants have expressed their interest as a statutory 
auditors for the year December 31, 2024 of the Company. The BoD has endorsed the 
recommendation for appointment M/S Pinaki & Company,Chartered Accountants at a 
remuneration of BDT 250,000.00 including income tax. As such the matter is placed before the 
24th  AGM for kind approval. 

Compliance Auditor:
Anil Salam Idris & Co.Chartered Accountants was the Corporate Governance Auditors for the 
year 2023. Since the said auditor is interested for reappointment as compliance auditor for the year 
2024, the BoD has endorsed the recommendation for reappointment at a fee of Tk. 30,000.00 
including income tax and the matter is placed before the 24th  AGM for kind approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of PILIL are committed in adopting the highest governance standard and 
implementing them in protecting the interests of shareholders, policy holders and all other 

stakeholders. The Company has complied with all necessary guidelines under BSEC notification 
no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. A certificate of Compliance 
required under the said Guidelines, as provided by Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants, is 
annexed in the Annual Report 2024. 

Audit Committee:
The Committee plays an important role to ensure transparency, accountability in the operations of 
the Company and confirming that the activities are conducted within the framework of principles 
and policies as laid down by the Board, as well as the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated June 03, 2018. 
The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024 audited by the External Auditors stressing on the importance of the successful 
compliance within the company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):
In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin and dated June 03, 
2018 issued by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Padma Islami Life Insurance 
Ltd. formed a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The NRC is responsible or 
accountable to the Board and to the Shareholders of the Company. Two meeting of NRC was held 
during the year 2023.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE CEO AND THE CFO TO THE BOARD

The Details of discussion of declaration by the CEO and Finance Controller is appended 
separately.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE SHARIAH BOARD

A declaration by the Shariah Committee on compliance with Islamic Shariah is appended separately.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ON THE COMPANY’S POSITION AND 
OPERATION

Services to Policyholders:
The reputation and progress of the company largely depend on rendering prompt and quality 
service to the policyholders. Keeping this in view, we have further strengthened our Services and 
launched a One-stop Service center during the year, the Company has settled Maturity sarvial 
benefit surrenden claim & death Claims of significant amount totaling to Tk. 52.97 crores.

Human Resource Practices:
PILIL is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees, irrespective of their gender, 
race, nationality, ethnic origin, or religion. PILIL is an inclusive employer and values diversity in 
its employees. 

These extend to recruitment and selection, training, career development, flexible working 
arrangements, promotion and performance appraisal. Our corporate goal is to improve staff 

engagement by measuring and responding to staff members’ views and willingness to exert extra 
effort to achieve business success. 

We provide necessary support to staff in order to manage change effectively. We credit the strength 
of our people for our organization’s success, their understanding of strategy and goals, as well as 
their satisfaction with the work they do and how it contributes, are of critical importance.

We continue our efforts to create and maintain a highly skilled and motivated workforce. Through 
our succession planning initiatives, leadership capacity is identified and developed to ensure 
ongoing success through adequate training and motivation. The Manpower strength of the 
company at the end of 2023 was 280.

Information Technology:
Information and Communication Technology (ICT) has become indispensable for Insurance 
Companies in ensuring smooth operation and providing efficient services. Recognized this fact the 
Board has adopted a comprehensive ICT policy for the company.

ICT system of PILIL has been revamped by strengthening and securing the automation of services. 
The highly experienced and trained ICT professionals are working on implementing and developing 
the company’s online integrated full-featured ERP System and other ICT infrastructure and constantly 
innovating and writing in-house programs to meet the needs of the company. Local Area Network 
(LAN) and other technologies have been in operation in the Head office and Branch offices.

Corporate Social Responsibility:
The Directors are sincere to discharge corporate responsibilities to the society. As a part of 
discharging corporate social responsibilities, PILIL has initiated a number programs and has been 
sponsoring various welfare activit, besides patronizing cultural activities in the country since its 
inception. 
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Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmatullah.

The Board of Directors (BoD) of your company Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited (PILIL), 
welcome you to the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and would like to thank you for your 
continued patronage and support over the years. We are pleased to present before you the Annual 
Report along with the Auditors’ Report and audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 for kind consideration and adoption.

This Report has been prepared in compliance with the provisions of relevant Acts, Rules, Regulations, 
Notifications, etc. issued by the Regulatory Bodies wherein the Directors have made relevant 
disclosures and explanations pertaining to compliance, transparency and sound corporate governance 
along with the details of the business performance, operations and achievements of the company for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. 

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE INDUSTRY

Transitioning the Banglaesh Insurance Industry to a Smart fromewark by 2041 entails overcoming 
notable challenges. Key obstacles include the lack of robust technological infrastructure and 
digital literacy, necessitating efforts to bridge the digital divide. Addressing date security, privacy 
concerns, and integrating new digital solutions with legacy systems repuire strategic planning. 
Regulatory compliance, establishing trust in digital services, and managing implementation costs 
are additional hurdles.Overcoming resistance to organizational change and navigating 
interoperability issues are crucial for a smooth transition. Furthermore, heightened market 
competition underscores the need for strategic positioning. In tandem with these challenges, there 
is a vital need to cultivate a mindset shift among individuals, Fostering openness and adaptability 
to maximize the benefits of this technological evolution.  

The government has greenlit guideline for the introduction of insurance products through 
commercial banks, marking a singnificant move in the form of Bancassurance. This initiative is 
poised to enhance the countrys insurance sector by increasing penetrantion and revitalizing 
opportunities. Bancassurance not only contributes to improved profitability and liquidity for banks 
but also fosters a sense of responsibility towards clients, opening new doors for inclusion and 
growth in the industry.

The Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) have introduced the Regulatory 
Sandbox Guidelince-2023, fostering innovation in the insurance sector. This initiative aims to 
blend industry evolution with customer protection, encourahging the integration of technology 
into insurance services. The regulatory sandbox provides a platform insurers and startups to 
introduce novel products, contributing to a technology- driven paradigm.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE OF PILIL

The product wise break-up of premium income and management expenses with corresponding 
figure of 2023 is presented below:

YEAR-WISE PERFORMANCE FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Year-wise Performance of the company for last five years has been depicted in a separate 
statement under title ‘‘Five Years Financial Progression”. Some highlights are given in items 
below:

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA 

Life Fund:

Total life fund of the Company as at 31st December, 2023 stood at Tk. (254.41) crore as against 
Tk. 233.89 crore in the preceding year. Life Fund of the Company has been decreased due to 
maturity of significant amount of claims. The Board hopes that the life fund will increase 
gradually by virtue of building up consequential margin expected to be achieved from the 
initiatives taken so far.

Investment Portfolio:
The Investment of the Company for the year of 2023 was Tk. 216.00 crore. The comparative 
statement of the last five years’ investment is given below:

RISK AND CONCERN

Over the last decade, the business world has faced unprecedented changes and challenges. 
Specially, Insurances of all sizes are now more concerned than ever about risk and its 
management.

Importantly, risk management is a central part of the PILIL’s strategic management focus. PILIL’s 
risk management objectives ensure that strategic, operational and tactical risks are identified, 
documented, managed and controlled appropriately. 

We have employed Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework for our risk management 
system which enables us to act quickly and prudently in the event of risk occurrence, and also 
helps us create a library of our risk response initiatives developing our core competitive 
advantages. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING EXTRA-ORDINARY GAIN OR LOSS

There was no extra-ordinary gain or extra-ordinary loss during the year 2023.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In ordinary course of business, related party transactions take place with other entities that fall 
within the term ‘related party’ as defined in IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure. A statement on the 
related party transactions has been disclosed under item no. 41 of the notes to the financial 
statements.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, 
RIGHTS ISSUES AND/OR ANY OTHER INSTRUMENTS

During the year 2023, the Company did not issue any share or other instruments.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VARIANCE BETWEEN QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Quarterly Financial Statement is given separately. There were some variances in the 
financial results from quarter to quarter. But they are not very significant or material in nature.

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors including Independent Directors, all being Non-Executive Directors, are given only 
Meeting Attendance Fee. During the year 2023, a total amount of BDT 23,49,359 was given to the 
Directors as Meeting Attendance Fee. However, in 2021 the amount was BDT 8,71,200.

DISCLOSURE ON PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors places before you the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2023 for their adoption. The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge, that-

(i) The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes inequity;

(ii) Proper books and accounts of the company have been maintained;

(iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of the 
financial statements and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment;

(iv) IAS/IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements;

(v) As required by condition 6 of the guidelines, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and 
the Chief Financial Officer have jointly certified to the Board that-

(a)  They have reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 
December 2023 and to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii)  These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s 
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and 
applicable laws

(b)  There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the company’s 
code of conduct.

DISCLOSURE ON INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board states that the systems of internal control are sound in design and have been 
implemented and monitored effectively. 

PILIL follows Committee of Sponsoring Organization (COSO) framework for evaluating internal 
controls in the organization. The COSO model defines internal control as “a process, effected by 
an entity’s board of directors, management and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable 
assurance of the achievement of objectives in the following categories:

 v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
 v Reliability of financial reporting
 v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations”

However, the BoD is primarily responsible to establish and review the operational effectiveness of 
such controls in PILIL. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee of PILIL ensures through 
Internal, External, Compliance, Special and/or other Audits that the system of internal control is 
adequate and effective. 

Internal Audit Unit of PILIL does have valuable contribution towards improving the effectiveness 
of its systems of internal control. Its risk-based audit approaches provide reasonable assurance to 
the Audit Committee and the Management about the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control system in the company. 

PROTECTION OF NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Board certifies that non-controlling shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, 
or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective 
means of redress.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS

PILIL has no subsidiary and therefore, no disclosure is applicable hereto.

COMPANY’S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS GOING CONCERN

The Directors declare that there are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. For this purpose of assessment whether PILIL has ability to continue as a going 
concern, the following issues have been considered:

 v The commitment towards the claims filed and its ability to meet contractual obligations as 
they become due;

 v Liquidity-related actions and plans to stabilize the businesses and repay the outstanding 
debt; 

 v The level of PILIL’s realized and unrealized losses and the negative impact of these losses 
on shareholders’ equity, and

 v Opinion of Financial and Compliance Auditors

While considering these issues, significant judgments and estimates with respect to the potentially 
adverse financial and liquidity effects of PILIL’s risks and uncertainties have been made. 

DIVIDEND

The Company did not receive Actuarial Basis for Valuation for the year 2023 from Insurance 
Development & Regulatory Authority. Consequently, no actuarial valuation was carried out and 
recommended from the Actuary for payment of dividend to the Shareholders. Accorddingly the 
Board of Directors of the Company did not recommend any dividend to Shareholders and bonus 
to Policyhoders for the year 2023.

BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2024

Keeping in view the effect of pandemic and the above scenario, Padma Life has revised its 
business plan and strategy for survival and growth.  As, due to restricted in-person interactions on 
account of the lockdown measures etc. and grave global economic recession, we assume that 
premium income against Individual (Ekok) and Micro (DPS) insurance may not grow sufficiently 
despite all possible measures. 

Therefore, in addition to taking all necessary steps to boost up selling Individual (Ekok) and Micro 
(DPS) insurance, collecting renewal premium and reviving lapsed policies, our business plan 
redirects company’s major efforts and focus on ‘Group life Insurance’ as opposed to individual 
schemes.

Under group insurance category, every attempt will be made, in addition to employees’ life 
insurance schemes, to bring Banks’ depositors and investors of some specific categories under 
group life insurance coverage. In this regard, considerable progress has already been made. 

Our business plan also encompasses elimination of unnecessary costs and optimal use of 
resources. We are committed to continue our efforts as mentioned above to reduce excessive cost 
and make the business profitable.

We are hopeful, by the grace of Allah SWT, through implementing our well-crafted and pragmatic 
business and action plans we will be able to make PILIL one of the country’s best life insurance 
company, Insha-Allah. 

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of PILIL meet on a regular basis. A detail statement showing attendance of the 
Directors in the Board Meetings is placed as under:

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shareholding position of Directors and other related parties at the end of 2023 is as under:

Shares held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children, Executives & 
shareholders holding 10% or more 

RETIREMENT AND ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Sponsor Directors:
In accordance with the Articles 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company, two directors 
shall retire by rotation from office at the 24th Annual General Meeting. The retiring directors are:

 i.  Md. Ali Hossain Nominted by Legendary Enterprises Ltd.
 ii. Mr. Ekramul Ameen FCA Nominted by Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.

Being eligible they offered themselves for re-election.

Public Shareholder Directors:
In accordance with the provision under Article 96 of the Article of Association of the Company and as 
provided under Insurance Act & Rules, Public notification with regard to election of Public Subscribers’ 
Director has been published in the 2 (two) national Dailies (The Daily Sonali Barta & The Daily 
Morning Observer), but no nomination papers were received from the shareholders for election.

Independent Directors:
As per the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 03 June 2018, (i) At least one fifth (1/5) 
of the total number of directors in the company’s board shall be independent directors, (ii) 
Independent Director(s) shall be appointment by the Board of Directors and approved by the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting(AGM), and (iii) the tenure of office of an independent 
director shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Financial Auditor:
Pursuant to section 210 of company Act, 1994, the Company’s statutory auditors M/S Pinaki & 
Company, Chartered Accountants, shall retire & expired in the 24th Annual General Meeting. 

M/S Pinaki & Company, Chartered Accountants have expressed their interest as a statutory 
auditors for the year December 31, 2024 of the Company. The BoD has endorsed the 
recommendation for appointment M/S Pinaki & Company,Chartered Accountants at a 
remuneration of BDT 250,000.00 including income tax. As such the matter is placed before the 
24th  AGM for kind approval. 

Compliance Auditor:
Anil Salam Idris & Co.Chartered Accountants was the Corporate Governance Auditors for the 
year 2023. Since the said auditor is interested for reappointment as compliance auditor for the year 
2024, the BoD has endorsed the recommendation for reappointment at a fee of Tk. 30,000.00 
including income tax and the matter is placed before the 24th  AGM for kind approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of PILIL are committed in adopting the highest governance standard and 
implementing them in protecting the interests of shareholders, policy holders and all other 

stakeholders. The Company has complied with all necessary guidelines under BSEC notification 
no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. A certificate of Compliance 
required under the said Guidelines, as provided by Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants, is 
annexed in the Annual Report 2024. 

Audit Committee:
The Committee plays an important role to ensure transparency, accountability in the operations of 
the Company and confirming that the activities are conducted within the framework of principles 
and policies as laid down by the Board, as well as the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated June 03, 2018. 
The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024 audited by the External Auditors stressing on the importance of the successful 
compliance within the company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):
In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin and dated June 03, 
2018 issued by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Padma Islami Life Insurance 
Ltd. formed a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The NRC is responsible or 
accountable to the Board and to the Shareholders of the Company. Two meeting of NRC was held 
during the year 2023.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE CEO AND THE CFO TO THE BOARD

The Details of discussion of declaration by the CEO and Finance Controller is appended 
separately.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE SHARIAH BOARD

A declaration by the Shariah Committee on compliance with Islamic Shariah is appended separately.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ON THE COMPANY’S POSITION AND 
OPERATION

Services to Policyholders:
The reputation and progress of the company largely depend on rendering prompt and quality 
service to the policyholders. Keeping this in view, we have further strengthened our Services and 
launched a One-stop Service center during the year, the Company has settled Maturity sarvial 
benefit surrenden claim & death Claims of significant amount totaling to Tk. 52.97 crores.

Human Resource Practices:
PILIL is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees, irrespective of their gender, 
race, nationality, ethnic origin, or religion. PILIL is an inclusive employer and values diversity in 
its employees. 

These extend to recruitment and selection, training, career development, flexible working 
arrangements, promotion and performance appraisal. Our corporate goal is to improve staff 

engagement by measuring and responding to staff members’ views and willingness to exert extra 
effort to achieve business success. 

We provide necessary support to staff in order to manage change effectively. We credit the strength 
of our people for our organization’s success, their understanding of strategy and goals, as well as 
their satisfaction with the work they do and how it contributes, are of critical importance.

We continue our efforts to create and maintain a highly skilled and motivated workforce. Through 
our succession planning initiatives, leadership capacity is identified and developed to ensure 
ongoing success through adequate training and motivation. The Manpower strength of the 
company at the end of 2023 was 280.

Information Technology:
Information and Communication Technology (ICT) has become indispensable for Insurance 
Companies in ensuring smooth operation and providing efficient services. Recognized this fact the 
Board has adopted a comprehensive ICT policy for the company.

ICT system of PILIL has been revamped by strengthening and securing the automation of services. 
The highly experienced and trained ICT professionals are working on implementing and developing 
the company’s online integrated full-featured ERP System and other ICT infrastructure and constantly 
innovating and writing in-house programs to meet the needs of the company. Local Area Network 
(LAN) and other technologies have been in operation in the Head office and Branch offices.

Corporate Social Responsibility:
The Directors are sincere to discharge corporate responsibilities to the society. As a part of 
discharging corporate social responsibilities, PILIL has initiated a number programs and has been 
sponsoring various welfare activit, besides patronizing cultural activities in the country since its 
inception. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
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Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmatullah.

The Board of Directors (BoD) of your company Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited (PILIL), 
welcome you to the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and would like to thank you for your 
continued patronage and support over the years. We are pleased to present before you the Annual 
Report along with the Auditors’ Report and audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 for kind consideration and adoption.

This Report has been prepared in compliance with the provisions of relevant Acts, Rules, Regulations, 
Notifications, etc. issued by the Regulatory Bodies wherein the Directors have made relevant 
disclosures and explanations pertaining to compliance, transparency and sound corporate governance 
along with the details of the business performance, operations and achievements of the company for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. 

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE INDUSTRY

Transitioning the Banglaesh Insurance Industry to a Smart fromewark by 2041 entails overcoming 
notable challenges. Key obstacles include the lack of robust technological infrastructure and 
digital literacy, necessitating efforts to bridge the digital divide. Addressing date security, privacy 
concerns, and integrating new digital solutions with legacy systems repuire strategic planning. 
Regulatory compliance, establishing trust in digital services, and managing implementation costs 
are additional hurdles.Overcoming resistance to organizational change and navigating 
interoperability issues are crucial for a smooth transition. Furthermore, heightened market 
competition underscores the need for strategic positioning. In tandem with these challenges, there 
is a vital need to cultivate a mindset shift among individuals, Fostering openness and adaptability 
to maximize the benefits of this technological evolution.  

The government has greenlit guideline for the introduction of insurance products through 
commercial banks, marking a singnificant move in the form of Bancassurance. This initiative is 
poised to enhance the countrys insurance sector by increasing penetrantion and revitalizing 
opportunities. Bancassurance not only contributes to improved profitability and liquidity for banks 
but also fosters a sense of responsibility towards clients, opening new doors for inclusion and 
growth in the industry.

The Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) have introduced the Regulatory 
Sandbox Guidelince-2023, fostering innovation in the insurance sector. This initiative aims to 
blend industry evolution with customer protection, encourahging the integration of technology 
into insurance services. The regulatory sandbox provides a platform insurers and startups to 
introduce novel products, contributing to a technology- driven paradigm.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE OF PILIL

The product wise break-up of premium income and management expenses with corresponding 
figure of 2023 is presented below:

YEAR-WISE PERFORMANCE FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Year-wise Performance of the company for last five years has been depicted in a separate 
statement under title ‘‘Five Years Financial Progression”. Some highlights are given in items 
below:

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA 

Life Fund:

Total life fund of the Company as at 31st December, 2023 stood at Tk. (254.41) crore as against 
Tk. 233.89 crore in the preceding year. Life Fund of the Company has been decreased due to 
maturity of significant amount of claims. The Board hopes that the life fund will increase 
gradually by virtue of building up consequential margin expected to be achieved from the 
initiatives taken so far.

Investment Portfolio:
The Investment of the Company for the year of 2023 was Tk. 216.00 crore. The comparative 
statement of the last five years’ investment is given below:

RISK AND CONCERN

Over the last decade, the business world has faced unprecedented changes and challenges. 
Specially, Insurances of all sizes are now more concerned than ever about risk and its 
management.

Importantly, risk management is a central part of the PILIL’s strategic management focus. PILIL’s 
risk management objectives ensure that strategic, operational and tactical risks are identified, 
documented, managed and controlled appropriately. 

We have employed Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework for our risk management 
system which enables us to act quickly and prudently in the event of risk occurrence, and also 
helps us create a library of our risk response initiatives developing our core competitive 
advantages. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING EXTRA-ORDINARY GAIN OR LOSS

There was no extra-ordinary gain or extra-ordinary loss during the year 2023.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In ordinary course of business, related party transactions take place with other entities that fall 
within the term ‘related party’ as defined in IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure. A statement on the 
related party transactions has been disclosed under item no. 41 of the notes to the financial 
statements.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, 
RIGHTS ISSUES AND/OR ANY OTHER INSTRUMENTS

During the year 2023, the Company did not issue any share or other instruments.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VARIANCE BETWEEN QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Quarterly Financial Statement is given separately. There were some variances in the 
financial results from quarter to quarter. But they are not very significant or material in nature.

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors including Independent Directors, all being Non-Executive Directors, are given only 
Meeting Attendance Fee. During the year 2023, a total amount of BDT 23,49,359 was given to the 
Directors as Meeting Attendance Fee. However, in 2021 the amount was BDT 8,71,200.

DISCLOSURE ON PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors places before you the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2023 for their adoption. The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge, that-

(i) The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes inequity;

(ii) Proper books and accounts of the company have been maintained;

(iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of the 
financial statements and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment;

(iv) IAS/IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements;

(v) As required by condition 6 of the guidelines, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and 
the Chief Financial Officer have jointly certified to the Board that-

(a)  They have reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 
December 2023 and to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii)  These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s 
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and 
applicable laws

(b)  There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the company’s 
code of conduct.

DISCLOSURE ON INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board states that the systems of internal control are sound in design and have been 
implemented and monitored effectively. 

PILIL follows Committee of Sponsoring Organization (COSO) framework for evaluating internal 
controls in the organization. The COSO model defines internal control as “a process, effected by 
an entity’s board of directors, management and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable 
assurance of the achievement of objectives in the following categories:

 v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
 v Reliability of financial reporting
 v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations”

However, the BoD is primarily responsible to establish and review the operational effectiveness of 
such controls in PILIL. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee of PILIL ensures through 
Internal, External, Compliance, Special and/or other Audits that the system of internal control is 
adequate and effective. 

Internal Audit Unit of PILIL does have valuable contribution towards improving the effectiveness 
of its systems of internal control. Its risk-based audit approaches provide reasonable assurance to 
the Audit Committee and the Management about the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control system in the company. 

PROTECTION OF NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Board certifies that non-controlling shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, 
or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective 
means of redress.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS

PILIL has no subsidiary and therefore, no disclosure is applicable hereto.

COMPANY’S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS GOING CONCERN

The Directors declare that there are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. For this purpose of assessment whether PILIL has ability to continue as a going 
concern, the following issues have been considered:

 v The commitment towards the claims filed and its ability to meet contractual obligations as 
they become due;

 v Liquidity-related actions and plans to stabilize the businesses and repay the outstanding 
debt; 

 v The level of PILIL’s realized and unrealized losses and the negative impact of these losses 
on shareholders’ equity, and

 v Opinion of Financial and Compliance Auditors

While considering these issues, significant judgments and estimates with respect to the potentially 
adverse financial and liquidity effects of PILIL’s risks and uncertainties have been made. 

DIVIDEND

The Company did not receive Actuarial Basis for Valuation for the year 2023 from Insurance 
Development & Regulatory Authority. Consequently, no actuarial valuation was carried out and 
recommended from the Actuary for payment of dividend to the Shareholders. Accorddingly the 
Board of Directors of the Company did not recommend any dividend to Shareholders and bonus 
to Policyhoders for the year 2023.

BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2024

Keeping in view the effect of pandemic and the above scenario, Padma Life has revised its 
business plan and strategy for survival and growth.  As, due to restricted in-person interactions on 
account of the lockdown measures etc. and grave global economic recession, we assume that 
premium income against Individual (Ekok) and Micro (DPS) insurance may not grow sufficiently 
despite all possible measures. 

Therefore, in addition to taking all necessary steps to boost up selling Individual (Ekok) and Micro 
(DPS) insurance, collecting renewal premium and reviving lapsed policies, our business plan 
redirects company’s major efforts and focus on ‘Group life Insurance’ as opposed to individual 
schemes.

Under group insurance category, every attempt will be made, in addition to employees’ life 
insurance schemes, to bring Banks’ depositors and investors of some specific categories under 
group life insurance coverage. In this regard, considerable progress has already been made. 

Our business plan also encompasses elimination of unnecessary costs and optimal use of 
resources. We are committed to continue our efforts as mentioned above to reduce excessive cost 
and make the business profitable.

We are hopeful, by the grace of Allah SWT, through implementing our well-crafted and pragmatic 
business and action plans we will be able to make PILIL one of the country’s best life insurance 
company, Insha-Allah. 

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of PILIL meet on a regular basis. A detail statement showing attendance of the 
Directors in the Board Meetings is placed as under:

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shareholding position of Directors and other related parties at the end of 2023 is as under:

Shares held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children, Executives & 
shareholders holding 10% or more 

RETIREMENT AND ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Sponsor Directors:
In accordance with the Articles 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company, two directors 
shall retire by rotation from office at the 24th Annual General Meeting. The retiring directors are:

 i.  Md. Ali Hossain Nominted by Legendary Enterprises Ltd.
 ii. Mr. Ekramul Ameen FCA Nominted by Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.

Being eligible they offered themselves for re-election.

Public Shareholder Directors:
In accordance with the provision under Article 96 of the Article of Association of the Company and as 
provided under Insurance Act & Rules, Public notification with regard to election of Public Subscribers’ 
Director has been published in the 2 (two) national Dailies (The Daily Sonali Barta & The Daily 
Morning Observer), but no nomination papers were received from the shareholders for election.

Independent Directors:
As per the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 03 June 2018, (i) At least one fifth (1/5) 
of the total number of directors in the company’s board shall be independent directors, (ii) 
Independent Director(s) shall be appointment by the Board of Directors and approved by the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting(AGM), and (iii) the tenure of office of an independent 
director shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Financial Auditor:
Pursuant to section 210 of company Act, 1994, the Company’s statutory auditors M/S Pinaki & 
Company, Chartered Accountants, shall retire & expired in the 24th Annual General Meeting. 

M/S Pinaki & Company, Chartered Accountants have expressed their interest as a statutory 
auditors for the year December 31, 2024 of the Company. The BoD has endorsed the 
recommendation for appointment M/S Pinaki & Company,Chartered Accountants at a 
remuneration of BDT 250,000.00 including income tax. As such the matter is placed before the 
24th  AGM for kind approval. 

Compliance Auditor:
Anil Salam Idris & Co.Chartered Accountants was the Corporate Governance Auditors for the 
year 2023. Since the said auditor is interested for reappointment as compliance auditor for the year 
2024, the BoD has endorsed the recommendation for reappointment at a fee of Tk. 30,000.00 
including income tax and the matter is placed before the 24th  AGM for kind approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of PILIL are committed in adopting the highest governance standard and 
implementing them in protecting the interests of shareholders, policy holders and all other 

stakeholders. The Company has complied with all necessary guidelines under BSEC notification 
no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. A certificate of Compliance 
required under the said Guidelines, as provided by Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants, is 
annexed in the Annual Report 2024. 

Audit Committee:
The Committee plays an important role to ensure transparency, accountability in the operations of 
the Company and confirming that the activities are conducted within the framework of principles 
and policies as laid down by the Board, as well as the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated June 03, 2018. 
The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024 audited by the External Auditors stressing on the importance of the successful 
compliance within the company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):
In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin and dated June 03, 
2018 issued by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Padma Islami Life Insurance 
Ltd. formed a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The NRC is responsible or 
accountable to the Board and to the Shareholders of the Company. Two meeting of NRC was held 
during the year 2023.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE CEO AND THE CFO TO THE BOARD

The Details of discussion of declaration by the CEO and Finance Controller is appended 
separately.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE SHARIAH BOARD

A declaration by the Shariah Committee on compliance with Islamic Shariah is appended separately.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ON THE COMPANY’S POSITION AND 
OPERATION

Services to Policyholders:
The reputation and progress of the company largely depend on rendering prompt and quality 
service to the policyholders. Keeping this in view, we have further strengthened our Services and 
launched a One-stop Service center during the year, the Company has settled Maturity sarvial 
benefit surrenden claim & death Claims of significant amount totaling to Tk. 52.97 crores.

Human Resource Practices:
PILIL is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees, irrespective of their gender, 
race, nationality, ethnic origin, or religion. PILIL is an inclusive employer and values diversity in 
its employees. 

These extend to recruitment and selection, training, career development, flexible working 
arrangements, promotion and performance appraisal. Our corporate goal is to improve staff 

engagement by measuring and responding to staff members’ views and willingness to exert extra 
effort to achieve business success. 

We provide necessary support to staff in order to manage change effectively. We credit the strength 
of our people for our organization’s success, their understanding of strategy and goals, as well as 
their satisfaction with the work they do and how it contributes, are of critical importance.

We continue our efforts to create and maintain a highly skilled and motivated workforce. Through 
our succession planning initiatives, leadership capacity is identified and developed to ensure 
ongoing success through adequate training and motivation. The Manpower strength of the 
company at the end of 2023 was 280.

Information Technology:
Information and Communication Technology (ICT) has become indispensable for Insurance 
Companies in ensuring smooth operation and providing efficient services. Recognized this fact the 
Board has adopted a comprehensive ICT policy for the company.

ICT system of PILIL has been revamped by strengthening and securing the automation of services. 
The highly experienced and trained ICT professionals are working on implementing and developing 
the company’s online integrated full-featured ERP System and other ICT infrastructure and constantly 
innovating and writing in-house programs to meet the needs of the company. Local Area Network 
(LAN) and other technologies have been in operation in the Head office and Branch offices.

Corporate Social Responsibility:
The Directors are sincere to discharge corporate responsibilities to the society. As a part of 
discharging corporate social responsibilities, PILIL has initiated a number programs and has been 
sponsoring various welfare activit, besides patronizing cultural activities in the country since its 
inception. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I take this unique opportunity to thank all our honorable 
Shareholders, Directors, our valued policyholders and CEO, all employees of our Company for 
their continued support & co-operation. I also express my sincere gratitude to our Members of 
Shariah Board, the Office of the Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority, Concerned 
Ministries, Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission, Office of Dhaka & Chittagong Stock Exchanges, our Bankers and other esteemed 
well-wishers for their tremendous co-operation, support & confidence.

On behalf of Board of Directors,

AKM Shariat Ullah, FCA, ACCA 
Chairman, Board of Directors
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Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmatullah.

The Board of Directors (BoD) of your company Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited (PILIL), 
welcome you to the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and would like to thank you for your 
continued patronage and support over the years. We are pleased to present before you the Annual 
Report along with the Auditors’ Report and audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 for kind consideration and adoption.

This Report has been prepared in compliance with the provisions of relevant Acts, Rules, Regulations, 
Notifications, etc. issued by the Regulatory Bodies wherein the Directors have made relevant 
disclosures and explanations pertaining to compliance, transparency and sound corporate governance 
along with the details of the business performance, operations and achievements of the company for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. 

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE INDUSTRY

Transitioning the Banglaesh Insurance Industry to a Smart fromewark by 2041 entails overcoming 
notable challenges. Key obstacles include the lack of robust technological infrastructure and 
digital literacy, necessitating efforts to bridge the digital divide. Addressing date security, privacy 
concerns, and integrating new digital solutions with legacy systems repuire strategic planning. 
Regulatory compliance, establishing trust in digital services, and managing implementation costs 
are additional hurdles.Overcoming resistance to organizational change and navigating 
interoperability issues are crucial for a smooth transition. Furthermore, heightened market 
competition underscores the need for strategic positioning. In tandem with these challenges, there 
is a vital need to cultivate a mindset shift among individuals, Fostering openness and adaptability 
to maximize the benefits of this technological evolution.  

The government has greenlit guideline for the introduction of insurance products through 
commercial banks, marking a singnificant move in the form of Bancassurance. This initiative is 
poised to enhance the countrys insurance sector by increasing penetrantion and revitalizing 
opportunities. Bancassurance not only contributes to improved profitability and liquidity for banks 
but also fosters a sense of responsibility towards clients, opening new doors for inclusion and 
growth in the industry.

The Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) have introduced the Regulatory 
Sandbox Guidelince-2023, fostering innovation in the insurance sector. This initiative aims to 
blend industry evolution with customer protection, encourahging the integration of technology 
into insurance services. The regulatory sandbox provides a platform insurers and startups to 
introduce novel products, contributing to a technology- driven paradigm.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE OF PILIL

The product wise break-up of premium income and management expenses with corresponding 
figure of 2023 is presented below:

YEAR-WISE PERFORMANCE FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Year-wise Performance of the company for last five years has been depicted in a separate 
statement under title ‘‘Five Years Financial Progression”. Some highlights are given in items 
below:

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA 

Life Fund:

Total life fund of the Company as at 31st December, 2023 stood at Tk. (254.41) crore as against 
Tk. 233.89 crore in the preceding year. Life Fund of the Company has been decreased due to 
maturity of significant amount of claims. The Board hopes that the life fund will increase 
gradually by virtue of building up consequential margin expected to be achieved from the 
initiatives taken so far.

Investment Portfolio:
The Investment of the Company for the year of 2023 was Tk. 216.00 crore. The comparative 
statement of the last five years’ investment is given below:

RISK AND CONCERN

Over the last decade, the business world has faced unprecedented changes and challenges. 
Specially, Insurances of all sizes are now more concerned than ever about risk and its 
management.

Importantly, risk management is a central part of the PILIL’s strategic management focus. PILIL’s 
risk management objectives ensure that strategic, operational and tactical risks are identified, 
documented, managed and controlled appropriately. 

We have employed Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework for our risk management 
system which enables us to act quickly and prudently in the event of risk occurrence, and also 
helps us create a library of our risk response initiatives developing our core competitive 
advantages. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING EXTRA-ORDINARY GAIN OR LOSS

There was no extra-ordinary gain or extra-ordinary loss during the year 2023.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In ordinary course of business, related party transactions take place with other entities that fall 
within the term ‘related party’ as defined in IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure. A statement on the 
related party transactions has been disclosed under item no. 41 of the notes to the financial 
statements.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, 
RIGHTS ISSUES AND/OR ANY OTHER INSTRUMENTS

During the year 2023, the Company did not issue any share or other instruments.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VARIANCE BETWEEN QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Quarterly Financial Statement is given separately. There were some variances in the 
financial results from quarter to quarter. But they are not very significant or material in nature.

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors including Independent Directors, all being Non-Executive Directors, are given only 
Meeting Attendance Fee. During the year 2023, a total amount of BDT 23,49,359 was given to the 
Directors as Meeting Attendance Fee. However, in 2021 the amount was BDT 8,71,200.

DISCLOSURE ON PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors places before you the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2023 for their adoption. The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge, that-

(i) The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes inequity;

(ii) Proper books and accounts of the company have been maintained;

(iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of the 
financial statements and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment;

(iv) IAS/IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements;

(v) As required by condition 6 of the guidelines, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and 
the Chief Financial Officer have jointly certified to the Board that-

(a)  They have reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 
December 2023 and to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii)  These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s 
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and 
applicable laws

(b)  There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the company’s 
code of conduct.

DISCLOSURE ON INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board states that the systems of internal control are sound in design and have been 
implemented and monitored effectively. 

PILIL follows Committee of Sponsoring Organization (COSO) framework for evaluating internal 
controls in the organization. The COSO model defines internal control as “a process, effected by 
an entity’s board of directors, management and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable 
assurance of the achievement of objectives in the following categories:

 v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
 v Reliability of financial reporting
 v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations”

However, the BoD is primarily responsible to establish and review the operational effectiveness of 
such controls in PILIL. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee of PILIL ensures through 
Internal, External, Compliance, Special and/or other Audits that the system of internal control is 
adequate and effective. 

Internal Audit Unit of PILIL does have valuable contribution towards improving the effectiveness 
of its systems of internal control. Its risk-based audit approaches provide reasonable assurance to 
the Audit Committee and the Management about the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control system in the company. 

PROTECTION OF NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Board certifies that non-controlling shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, 
or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective 
means of redress.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS

PILIL has no subsidiary and therefore, no disclosure is applicable hereto.

COMPANY’S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS GOING CONCERN

The Directors declare that there are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. For this purpose of assessment whether PILIL has ability to continue as a going 
concern, the following issues have been considered:

 v The commitment towards the claims filed and its ability to meet contractual obligations as 
they become due;

 v Liquidity-related actions and plans to stabilize the businesses and repay the outstanding 
debt; 

 v The level of PILIL’s realized and unrealized losses and the negative impact of these losses 
on shareholders’ equity, and

 v Opinion of Financial and Compliance Auditors

While considering these issues, significant judgments and estimates with respect to the potentially 
adverse financial and liquidity effects of PILIL’s risks and uncertainties have been made. 

DIVIDEND

The Company did not receive Actuarial Basis for Valuation for the year 2023 from Insurance 
Development & Regulatory Authority. Consequently, no actuarial valuation was carried out and 
recommended from the Actuary for payment of dividend to the Shareholders. Accorddingly the 
Board of Directors of the Company did not recommend any dividend to Shareholders and bonus 
to Policyhoders for the year 2023.

BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2024

Keeping in view the effect of pandemic and the above scenario, Padma Life has revised its 
business plan and strategy for survival and growth.  As, due to restricted in-person interactions on 
account of the lockdown measures etc. and grave global economic recession, we assume that 
premium income against Individual (Ekok) and Micro (DPS) insurance may not grow sufficiently 
despite all possible measures. 

Therefore, in addition to taking all necessary steps to boost up selling Individual (Ekok) and Micro 
(DPS) insurance, collecting renewal premium and reviving lapsed policies, our business plan 
redirects company’s major efforts and focus on ‘Group life Insurance’ as opposed to individual 
schemes.

Under group insurance category, every attempt will be made, in addition to employees’ life 
insurance schemes, to bring Banks’ depositors and investors of some specific categories under 
group life insurance coverage. In this regard, considerable progress has already been made. 

Our business plan also encompasses elimination of unnecessary costs and optimal use of 
resources. We are committed to continue our efforts as mentioned above to reduce excessive cost 
and make the business profitable.

We are hopeful, by the grace of Allah SWT, through implementing our well-crafted and pragmatic 
business and action plans we will be able to make PILIL one of the country’s best life insurance 
company, Insha-Allah. 

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of PILIL meet on a regular basis. A detail statement showing attendance of the 
Directors in the Board Meetings is placed as under:

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shareholding position of Directors and other related parties at the end of 2023 is as under:

Shares held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children, Executives & 
shareholders holding 10% or more 

RETIREMENT AND ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Sponsor Directors:
In accordance with the Articles 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company, two directors 
shall retire by rotation from office at the 24th Annual General Meeting. The retiring directors are:

 i.  Md. Ali Hossain Nominted by Legendary Enterprises Ltd.
 ii. Mr. Ekramul Ameen FCA Nominted by Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.

Being eligible they offered themselves for re-election.

Public Shareholder Directors:
In accordance with the provision under Article 96 of the Article of Association of the Company and as 
provided under Insurance Act & Rules, Public notification with regard to election of Public Subscribers’ 
Director has been published in the 2 (two) national Dailies (The Daily Sonali Barta & The Daily 
Morning Observer), but no nomination papers were received from the shareholders for election.

Independent Directors:
As per the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 03 June 2018, (i) At least one fifth (1/5) 
of the total number of directors in the company’s board shall be independent directors, (ii) 
Independent Director(s) shall be appointment by the Board of Directors and approved by the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting(AGM), and (iii) the tenure of office of an independent 
director shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Financial Auditor:
Pursuant to section 210 of company Act, 1994, the Company’s statutory auditors M/S Pinaki & 
Company, Chartered Accountants, shall retire & expired in the 24th Annual General Meeting. 

M/S Pinaki & Company, Chartered Accountants have expressed their interest as a statutory 
auditors for the year December 31, 2024 of the Company. The BoD has endorsed the 
recommendation for appointment M/S Pinaki & Company,Chartered Accountants at a 
remuneration of BDT 250,000.00 including income tax. As such the matter is placed before the 
24th  AGM for kind approval. 

Compliance Auditor:
Anil Salam Idris & Co.Chartered Accountants was the Corporate Governance Auditors for the 
year 2023. Since the said auditor is interested for reappointment as compliance auditor for the year 
2024, the BoD has endorsed the recommendation for reappointment at a fee of Tk. 30,000.00 
including income tax and the matter is placed before the 24th  AGM for kind approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of PILIL are committed in adopting the highest governance standard and 
implementing them in protecting the interests of shareholders, policy holders and all other 

stakeholders. The Company has complied with all necessary guidelines under BSEC notification 
no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. A certificate of Compliance 
required under the said Guidelines, as provided by Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants, is 
annexed in the Annual Report 2024. 

Audit Committee:
The Committee plays an important role to ensure transparency, accountability in the operations of 
the Company and confirming that the activities are conducted within the framework of principles 
and policies as laid down by the Board, as well as the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated June 03, 2018. 
The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024 audited by the External Auditors stressing on the importance of the successful 
compliance within the company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):
In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin and dated June 03, 
2018 issued by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Padma Islami Life Insurance 
Ltd. formed a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The NRC is responsible or 
accountable to the Board and to the Shareholders of the Company. Two meeting of NRC was held 
during the year 2023.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE CEO AND THE CFO TO THE BOARD

The Details of discussion of declaration by the CEO and Finance Controller is appended 
separately.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE SHARIAH BOARD

A declaration by the Shariah Committee on compliance with Islamic Shariah is appended separately.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ON THE COMPANY’S POSITION AND 
OPERATION

Services to Policyholders:
The reputation and progress of the company largely depend on rendering prompt and quality 
service to the policyholders. Keeping this in view, we have further strengthened our Services and 
launched a One-stop Service center during the year, the Company has settled Maturity sarvial 
benefit surrenden claim & death Claims of significant amount totaling to Tk. 52.97 crores.

Human Resource Practices:
PILIL is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees, irrespective of their gender, 
race, nationality, ethnic origin, or religion. PILIL is an inclusive employer and values diversity in 
its employees. 

These extend to recruitment and selection, training, career development, flexible working 
arrangements, promotion and performance appraisal. Our corporate goal is to improve staff 

engagement by measuring and responding to staff members’ views and willingness to exert extra 
effort to achieve business success. 

We provide necessary support to staff in order to manage change effectively. We credit the strength 
of our people for our organization’s success, their understanding of strategy and goals, as well as 
their satisfaction with the work they do and how it contributes, are of critical importance.

We continue our efforts to create and maintain a highly skilled and motivated workforce. Through 
our succession planning initiatives, leadership capacity is identified and developed to ensure 
ongoing success through adequate training and motivation. The Manpower strength of the 
company at the end of 2023 was 280.

Information Technology:
Information and Communication Technology (ICT) has become indispensable for Insurance 
Companies in ensuring smooth operation and providing efficient services. Recognized this fact the 
Board has adopted a comprehensive ICT policy for the company.

ICT system of PILIL has been revamped by strengthening and securing the automation of services. 
The highly experienced and trained ICT professionals are working on implementing and developing 
the company’s online integrated full-featured ERP System and other ICT infrastructure and constantly 
innovating and writing in-house programs to meet the needs of the company. Local Area Network 
(LAN) and other technologies have been in operation in the Head office and Branch offices.

Corporate Social Responsibility:
The Directors are sincere to discharge corporate responsibilities to the society. As a part of 
discharging corporate social responsibilities, PILIL has initiated a number programs and has been 
sponsoring various welfare activit, besides patronizing cultural activities in the country since its 
inception. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I take this unique opportunity to thank all our honorable 
Shareholders, Directors, our valued policyholders and CEO, all employees of our Company for 
their continued support & co-operation. I also express my sincere gratitude to our Members of 
Shariah Board, the Office of the Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority, Concerned 
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Commission, Office of Dhaka & Chittagong Stock Exchanges, our Bankers and other esteemed 
well-wishers for their tremendous co-operation, support & confidence.
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Report to the Shareholders of
Padma Islami Life Insurance limited

On Compliance on the Corporate Governance Code

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Padma Islami Life 
Insurance limited for the year ended 31 December 2023. This code relates to the Notification No. 
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018 of the Bangladesh securities & Exchange 
Commission. 

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our 
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation, thereof as adopted by the Management in 
ensuring compliance to the conditions of the Corporate Government Code. 
This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the Corporate Governance 
Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the 
Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent 
with any condition of this Corporate Governance Code. 
We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and after due 
scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion: 
 a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as stipulated 

in the above-mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission.
 b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standard 

(BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by 
this Code.

 c) Proper book of records has been kept by the company as required under the Companies act. 1994, 
the securities laws and other relevant laws; and

 d) The Governance of the company is satisfactory. 

Place: Dhaka   
Dated: 18 August 2024                                                                                                                               

 

Anil Salam Idris & Co.,
Chartered Accountants    

S.M. Tauhidul Islam, FCA
Partner
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Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmatullah.

The Board of Directors (BoD) of your company Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited (PILIL), 
welcome you to the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and would like to thank you for your 
continued patronage and support over the years. We are pleased to present before you the Annual 
Report along with the Auditors’ Report and audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 for kind consideration and adoption.

This Report has been prepared in compliance with the provisions of relevant Acts, Rules, Regulations, 
Notifications, etc. issued by the Regulatory Bodies wherein the Directors have made relevant 
disclosures and explanations pertaining to compliance, transparency and sound corporate governance 
along with the details of the business performance, operations and achievements of the company for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. 

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE INDUSTRY

Transitioning the Banglaesh Insurance Industry to a Smart fromewark by 2041 entails overcoming 
notable challenges. Key obstacles include the lack of robust technological infrastructure and 
digital literacy, necessitating efforts to bridge the digital divide. Addressing date security, privacy 
concerns, and integrating new digital solutions with legacy systems repuire strategic planning. 
Regulatory compliance, establishing trust in digital services, and managing implementation costs 
are additional hurdles.Overcoming resistance to organizational change and navigating 
interoperability issues are crucial for a smooth transition. Furthermore, heightened market 
competition underscores the need for strategic positioning. In tandem with these challenges, there 
is a vital need to cultivate a mindset shift among individuals, Fostering openness and adaptability 
to maximize the benefits of this technological evolution.  

The government has greenlit guideline for the introduction of insurance products through 
commercial banks, marking a singnificant move in the form of Bancassurance. This initiative is 
poised to enhance the countrys insurance sector by increasing penetrantion and revitalizing 
opportunities. Bancassurance not only contributes to improved profitability and liquidity for banks 
but also fosters a sense of responsibility towards clients, opening new doors for inclusion and 
growth in the industry.

The Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) have introduced the Regulatory 
Sandbox Guidelince-2023, fostering innovation in the insurance sector. This initiative aims to 
blend industry evolution with customer protection, encourahging the integration of technology 
into insurance services. The regulatory sandbox provides a platform insurers and startups to 
introduce novel products, contributing to a technology- driven paradigm.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE OF PILIL

The product wise break-up of premium income and management expenses with corresponding 
figure of 2023 is presented below:

YEAR-WISE PERFORMANCE FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Year-wise Performance of the company for last five years has been depicted in a separate 
statement under title ‘‘Five Years Financial Progression”. Some highlights are given in items 
below:

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA 

Life Fund:

Total life fund of the Company as at 31st December, 2023 stood at Tk. (254.41) crore as against 
Tk. 233.89 crore in the preceding year. Life Fund of the Company has been decreased due to 
maturity of significant amount of claims. The Board hopes that the life fund will increase 
gradually by virtue of building up consequential margin expected to be achieved from the 
initiatives taken so far.

Investment Portfolio:
The Investment of the Company for the year of 2023 was Tk. 216.00 crore. The comparative 
statement of the last five years’ investment is given below:

RISK AND CONCERN

Over the last decade, the business world has faced unprecedented changes and challenges. 
Specially, Insurances of all sizes are now more concerned than ever about risk and its 
management.

Importantly, risk management is a central part of the PILIL’s strategic management focus. PILIL’s 
risk management objectives ensure that strategic, operational and tactical risks are identified, 
documented, managed and controlled appropriately. 

We have employed Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework for our risk management 
system which enables us to act quickly and prudently in the event of risk occurrence, and also 
helps us create a library of our risk response initiatives developing our core competitive 
advantages. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING EXTRA-ORDINARY GAIN OR LOSS

There was no extra-ordinary gain or extra-ordinary loss during the year 2023.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In ordinary course of business, related party transactions take place with other entities that fall 
within the term ‘related party’ as defined in IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure. A statement on the 
related party transactions has been disclosed under item no. 41 of the notes to the financial 
statements.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, 
RIGHTS ISSUES AND/OR ANY OTHER INSTRUMENTS

During the year 2023, the Company did not issue any share or other instruments.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VARIANCE BETWEEN QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Quarterly Financial Statement is given separately. There were some variances in the 
financial results from quarter to quarter. But they are not very significant or material in nature.

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors including Independent Directors, all being Non-Executive Directors, are given only 
Meeting Attendance Fee. During the year 2023, a total amount of BDT 23,49,359 was given to the 
Directors as Meeting Attendance Fee. However, in 2021 the amount was BDT 8,71,200.

DISCLOSURE ON PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors places before you the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2023 for their adoption. The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge, that-

(i) The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes inequity;

(ii) Proper books and accounts of the company have been maintained;

(iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of the 
financial statements and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment;

(iv) IAS/IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements;

(v) As required by condition 6 of the guidelines, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and 
the Chief Financial Officer have jointly certified to the Board that-

(a)  They have reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 
December 2023 and to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii)  These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s 
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and 
applicable laws

(b)  There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the company’s 
code of conduct.

DISCLOSURE ON INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board states that the systems of internal control are sound in design and have been 
implemented and monitored effectively. 

PILIL follows Committee of Sponsoring Organization (COSO) framework for evaluating internal 
controls in the organization. The COSO model defines internal control as “a process, effected by 
an entity’s board of directors, management and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable 
assurance of the achievement of objectives in the following categories:

 v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
 v Reliability of financial reporting
 v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations”

However, the BoD is primarily responsible to establish and review the operational effectiveness of 
such controls in PILIL. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee of PILIL ensures through 
Internal, External, Compliance, Special and/or other Audits that the system of internal control is 
adequate and effective. 

Internal Audit Unit of PILIL does have valuable contribution towards improving the effectiveness 
of its systems of internal control. Its risk-based audit approaches provide reasonable assurance to 
the Audit Committee and the Management about the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control system in the company. 

PROTECTION OF NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Board certifies that non-controlling shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, 
or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective 
means of redress.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS

PILIL has no subsidiary and therefore, no disclosure is applicable hereto.

COMPANY’S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS GOING CONCERN

The Directors declare that there are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. For this purpose of assessment whether PILIL has ability to continue as a going 
concern, the following issues have been considered:

 v The commitment towards the claims filed and its ability to meet contractual obligations as 
they become due;

 v Liquidity-related actions and plans to stabilize the businesses and repay the outstanding 
debt; 

 v The level of PILIL’s realized and unrealized losses and the negative impact of these losses 
on shareholders’ equity, and

 v Opinion of Financial and Compliance Auditors

While considering these issues, significant judgments and estimates with respect to the potentially 
adverse financial and liquidity effects of PILIL’s risks and uncertainties have been made. 

DIVIDEND

The Company did not receive Actuarial Basis for Valuation for the year 2023 from Insurance 
Development & Regulatory Authority. Consequently, no actuarial valuation was carried out and 
recommended from the Actuary for payment of dividend to the Shareholders. Accorddingly the 
Board of Directors of the Company did not recommend any dividend to Shareholders and bonus 
to Policyhoders for the year 2023.

BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2024

Keeping in view the effect of pandemic and the above scenario, Padma Life has revised its 
business plan and strategy for survival and growth.  As, due to restricted in-person interactions on 
account of the lockdown measures etc. and grave global economic recession, we assume that 
premium income against Individual (Ekok) and Micro (DPS) insurance may not grow sufficiently 
despite all possible measures. 

Therefore, in addition to taking all necessary steps to boost up selling Individual (Ekok) and Micro 
(DPS) insurance, collecting renewal premium and reviving lapsed policies, our business plan 
redirects company’s major efforts and focus on ‘Group life Insurance’ as opposed to individual 
schemes.

Under group insurance category, every attempt will be made, in addition to employees’ life 
insurance schemes, to bring Banks’ depositors and investors of some specific categories under 
group life insurance coverage. In this regard, considerable progress has already been made. 

Our business plan also encompasses elimination of unnecessary costs and optimal use of 
resources. We are committed to continue our efforts as mentioned above to reduce excessive cost 
and make the business profitable.

We are hopeful, by the grace of Allah SWT, through implementing our well-crafted and pragmatic 
business and action plans we will be able to make PILIL one of the country’s best life insurance 
company, Insha-Allah. 

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of PILIL meet on a regular basis. A detail statement showing attendance of the 
Directors in the Board Meetings is placed as under:

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shareholding position of Directors and other related parties at the end of 2023 is as under:

Shares held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children, Executives & 
shareholders holding 10% or more 

RETIREMENT AND ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Sponsor Directors:
In accordance with the Articles 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company, two directors 
shall retire by rotation from office at the 24th Annual General Meeting. The retiring directors are:

 i.  Md. Ali Hossain Nominted by Legendary Enterprises Ltd.
 ii. Mr. Ekramul Ameen FCA Nominted by Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.

Being eligible they offered themselves for re-election.

Public Shareholder Directors:
In accordance with the provision under Article 96 of the Article of Association of the Company and as 
provided under Insurance Act & Rules, Public notification with regard to election of Public Subscribers’ 
Director has been published in the 2 (two) national Dailies (The Daily Sonali Barta & The Daily 
Morning Observer), but no nomination papers were received from the shareholders for election.

Independent Directors:
As per the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 03 June 2018, (i) At least one fifth (1/5) 
of the total number of directors in the company’s board shall be independent directors, (ii) 
Independent Director(s) shall be appointment by the Board of Directors and approved by the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting(AGM), and (iii) the tenure of office of an independent 
director shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Financial Auditor:
Pursuant to section 210 of company Act, 1994, the Company’s statutory auditors M/S Pinaki & 
Company, Chartered Accountants, shall retire & expired in the 24th Annual General Meeting. 

M/S Pinaki & Company, Chartered Accountants have expressed their interest as a statutory 
auditors for the year December 31, 2024 of the Company. The BoD has endorsed the 
recommendation for appointment M/S Pinaki & Company,Chartered Accountants at a 
remuneration of BDT 250,000.00 including income tax. As such the matter is placed before the 
24th  AGM for kind approval. 

Compliance Auditor:
Anil Salam Idris & Co.Chartered Accountants was the Corporate Governance Auditors for the 
year 2023. Since the said auditor is interested for reappointment as compliance auditor for the year 
2024, the BoD has endorsed the recommendation for reappointment at a fee of Tk. 30,000.00 
including income tax and the matter is placed before the 24th  AGM for kind approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of PILIL are committed in adopting the highest governance standard and 
implementing them in protecting the interests of shareholders, policy holders and all other 

stakeholders. The Company has complied with all necessary guidelines under BSEC notification 
no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. A certificate of Compliance 
required under the said Guidelines, as provided by Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants, is 
annexed in the Annual Report 2024. 

Audit Committee:
The Committee plays an important role to ensure transparency, accountability in the operations of 
the Company and confirming that the activities are conducted within the framework of principles 
and policies as laid down by the Board, as well as the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated June 03, 2018. 
The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024 audited by the External Auditors stressing on the importance of the successful 
compliance within the company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):
In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin and dated June 03, 
2018 issued by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Padma Islami Life Insurance 
Ltd. formed a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The NRC is responsible or 
accountable to the Board and to the Shareholders of the Company. Two meeting of NRC was held 
during the year 2023.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE CEO AND THE CFO TO THE BOARD

The Details of discussion of declaration by the CEO and Finance Controller is appended 
separately.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE SHARIAH BOARD

A declaration by the Shariah Committee on compliance with Islamic Shariah is appended separately.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ON THE COMPANY’S POSITION AND 
OPERATION

Services to Policyholders:
The reputation and progress of the company largely depend on rendering prompt and quality 
service to the policyholders. Keeping this in view, we have further strengthened our Services and 
launched a One-stop Service center during the year, the Company has settled Maturity sarvial 
benefit surrenden claim & death Claims of significant amount totaling to Tk. 52.97 crores.

Human Resource Practices:
PILIL is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees, irrespective of their gender, 
race, nationality, ethnic origin, or religion. PILIL is an inclusive employer and values diversity in 
its employees. 

These extend to recruitment and selection, training, career development, flexible working 
arrangements, promotion and performance appraisal. Our corporate goal is to improve staff 

engagement by measuring and responding to staff members’ views and willingness to exert extra 
effort to achieve business success. 

We provide necessary support to staff in order to manage change effectively. We credit the strength 
of our people for our organization’s success, their understanding of strategy and goals, as well as 
their satisfaction with the work they do and how it contributes, are of critical importance.

We continue our efforts to create and maintain a highly skilled and motivated workforce. Through 
our succession planning initiatives, leadership capacity is identified and developed to ensure 
ongoing success through adequate training and motivation. The Manpower strength of the 
company at the end of 2023 was 280.

Information Technology:
Information and Communication Technology (ICT) has become indispensable for Insurance 
Companies in ensuring smooth operation and providing efficient services. Recognized this fact the 
Board has adopted a comprehensive ICT policy for the company.

ICT system of PILIL has been revamped by strengthening and securing the automation of services. 
The highly experienced and trained ICT professionals are working on implementing and developing 
the company’s online integrated full-featured ERP System and other ICT infrastructure and constantly 
innovating and writing in-house programs to meet the needs of the company. Local Area Network 
(LAN) and other technologies have been in operation in the Head office and Branch offices.

Corporate Social Responsibility:
The Directors are sincere to discharge corporate responsibilities to the society. As a part of 
discharging corporate social responsibilities, PILIL has initiated a number programs and has been 
sponsoring various welfare activit, besides patronizing cultural activities in the country since its 
inception. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I take this unique opportunity to thank all our honorable 
Shareholders, Directors, our valued policyholders and CEO, all employees of our Company for 
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Shariah Board, the Office of the Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority, Concerned 
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On behalf of Board of Directors,

AKM Shariat Ullah, FCA, ACCA 
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BSEC CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
OUR COMPLIANCE STATUS

Status of Compliance with the conditions imposed through Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s 
(BSEC) Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/ 207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018 issued under Section 2CC 
of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 is as follows (as per Annexure-C):

Report under Condition No. 9.00:
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Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmatullah.

The Board of Directors (BoD) of your company Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited (PILIL), 
welcome you to the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and would like to thank you for your 
continued patronage and support over the years. We are pleased to present before you the Annual 
Report along with the Auditors’ Report and audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 for kind consideration and adoption.

This Report has been prepared in compliance with the provisions of relevant Acts, Rules, Regulations, 
Notifications, etc. issued by the Regulatory Bodies wherein the Directors have made relevant 
disclosures and explanations pertaining to compliance, transparency and sound corporate governance 
along with the details of the business performance, operations and achievements of the company for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. 

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE INDUSTRY

Transitioning the Banglaesh Insurance Industry to a Smart fromewark by 2041 entails overcoming 
notable challenges. Key obstacles include the lack of robust technological infrastructure and 
digital literacy, necessitating efforts to bridge the digital divide. Addressing date security, privacy 
concerns, and integrating new digital solutions with legacy systems repuire strategic planning. 
Regulatory compliance, establishing trust in digital services, and managing implementation costs 
are additional hurdles.Overcoming resistance to organizational change and navigating 
interoperability issues are crucial for a smooth transition. Furthermore, heightened market 
competition underscores the need for strategic positioning. In tandem with these challenges, there 
is a vital need to cultivate a mindset shift among individuals, Fostering openness and adaptability 
to maximize the benefits of this technological evolution.  

The government has greenlit guideline for the introduction of insurance products through 
commercial banks, marking a singnificant move in the form of Bancassurance. This initiative is 
poised to enhance the countrys insurance sector by increasing penetrantion and revitalizing 
opportunities. Bancassurance not only contributes to improved profitability and liquidity for banks 
but also fosters a sense of responsibility towards clients, opening new doors for inclusion and 
growth in the industry.

The Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) have introduced the Regulatory 
Sandbox Guidelince-2023, fostering innovation in the insurance sector. This initiative aims to 
blend industry evolution with customer protection, encourahging the integration of technology 
into insurance services. The regulatory sandbox provides a platform insurers and startups to 
introduce novel products, contributing to a technology- driven paradigm.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE OF PILIL

The product wise break-up of premium income and management expenses with corresponding 
figure of 2023 is presented below:

YEAR-WISE PERFORMANCE FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Year-wise Performance of the company for last five years has been depicted in a separate 
statement under title ‘‘Five Years Financial Progression”. Some highlights are given in items 
below:

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA 

Life Fund:

Total life fund of the Company as at 31st December, 2023 stood at Tk. (254.41) crore as against 
Tk. 233.89 crore in the preceding year. Life Fund of the Company has been decreased due to 
maturity of significant amount of claims. The Board hopes that the life fund will increase 
gradually by virtue of building up consequential margin expected to be achieved from the 
initiatives taken so far.

Investment Portfolio:
The Investment of the Company for the year of 2023 was Tk. 216.00 crore. The comparative 
statement of the last five years’ investment is given below:

RISK AND CONCERN

Over the last decade, the business world has faced unprecedented changes and challenges. 
Specially, Insurances of all sizes are now more concerned than ever about risk and its 
management.

Importantly, risk management is a central part of the PILIL’s strategic management focus. PILIL’s 
risk management objectives ensure that strategic, operational and tactical risks are identified, 
documented, managed and controlled appropriately. 

We have employed Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework for our risk management 
system which enables us to act quickly and prudently in the event of risk occurrence, and also 
helps us create a library of our risk response initiatives developing our core competitive 
advantages. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING EXTRA-ORDINARY GAIN OR LOSS

There was no extra-ordinary gain or extra-ordinary loss during the year 2023.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In ordinary course of business, related party transactions take place with other entities that fall 
within the term ‘related party’ as defined in IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure. A statement on the 
related party transactions has been disclosed under item no. 41 of the notes to the financial 
statements.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, 
RIGHTS ISSUES AND/OR ANY OTHER INSTRUMENTS

During the year 2023, the Company did not issue any share or other instruments.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VARIANCE BETWEEN QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Quarterly Financial Statement is given separately. There were some variances in the 
financial results from quarter to quarter. But they are not very significant or material in nature.

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors including Independent Directors, all being Non-Executive Directors, are given only 
Meeting Attendance Fee. During the year 2023, a total amount of BDT 23,49,359 was given to the 
Directors as Meeting Attendance Fee. However, in 2021 the amount was BDT 8,71,200.

DISCLOSURE ON PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors places before you the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2023 for their adoption. The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge, that-

(i) The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes inequity;

(ii) Proper books and accounts of the company have been maintained;

(iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of the 
financial statements and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment;

(iv) IAS/IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements;

(v) As required by condition 6 of the guidelines, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and 
the Chief Financial Officer have jointly certified to the Board that-

(a)  They have reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 
December 2023 and to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii)  These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s 
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and 
applicable laws

(b)  There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the company’s 
code of conduct.

DISCLOSURE ON INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board states that the systems of internal control are sound in design and have been 
implemented and monitored effectively. 

PILIL follows Committee of Sponsoring Organization (COSO) framework for evaluating internal 
controls in the organization. The COSO model defines internal control as “a process, effected by 
an entity’s board of directors, management and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable 
assurance of the achievement of objectives in the following categories:

 v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
 v Reliability of financial reporting
 v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations”

However, the BoD is primarily responsible to establish and review the operational effectiveness of 
such controls in PILIL. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee of PILIL ensures through 
Internal, External, Compliance, Special and/or other Audits that the system of internal control is 
adequate and effective. 

Internal Audit Unit of PILIL does have valuable contribution towards improving the effectiveness 
of its systems of internal control. Its risk-based audit approaches provide reasonable assurance to 
the Audit Committee and the Management about the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control system in the company. 

PROTECTION OF NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Board certifies that non-controlling shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, 
or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective 
means of redress.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS

PILIL has no subsidiary and therefore, no disclosure is applicable hereto.

COMPANY’S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS GOING CONCERN

The Directors declare that there are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. For this purpose of assessment whether PILIL has ability to continue as a going 
concern, the following issues have been considered:

 v The commitment towards the claims filed and its ability to meet contractual obligations as 
they become due;

 v Liquidity-related actions and plans to stabilize the businesses and repay the outstanding 
debt; 

 v The level of PILIL’s realized and unrealized losses and the negative impact of these losses 
on shareholders’ equity, and

 v Opinion of Financial and Compliance Auditors

While considering these issues, significant judgments and estimates with respect to the potentially 
adverse financial and liquidity effects of PILIL’s risks and uncertainties have been made. 

DIVIDEND

The Company did not receive Actuarial Basis for Valuation for the year 2023 from Insurance 
Development & Regulatory Authority. Consequently, no actuarial valuation was carried out and 
recommended from the Actuary for payment of dividend to the Shareholders. Accorddingly the 
Board of Directors of the Company did not recommend any dividend to Shareholders and bonus 
to Policyhoders for the year 2023.

BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2024

Keeping in view the effect of pandemic and the above scenario, Padma Life has revised its 
business plan and strategy for survival and growth.  As, due to restricted in-person interactions on 
account of the lockdown measures etc. and grave global economic recession, we assume that 
premium income against Individual (Ekok) and Micro (DPS) insurance may not grow sufficiently 
despite all possible measures. 

Therefore, in addition to taking all necessary steps to boost up selling Individual (Ekok) and Micro 
(DPS) insurance, collecting renewal premium and reviving lapsed policies, our business plan 
redirects company’s major efforts and focus on ‘Group life Insurance’ as opposed to individual 
schemes.

Under group insurance category, every attempt will be made, in addition to employees’ life 
insurance schemes, to bring Banks’ depositors and investors of some specific categories under 
group life insurance coverage. In this regard, considerable progress has already been made. 

Our business plan also encompasses elimination of unnecessary costs and optimal use of 
resources. We are committed to continue our efforts as mentioned above to reduce excessive cost 
and make the business profitable.

We are hopeful, by the grace of Allah SWT, through implementing our well-crafted and pragmatic 
business and action plans we will be able to make PILIL one of the country’s best life insurance 
company, Insha-Allah. 

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of PILIL meet on a regular basis. A detail statement showing attendance of the 
Directors in the Board Meetings is placed as under:

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shareholding position of Directors and other related parties at the end of 2023 is as under:

Shares held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children, Executives & 
shareholders holding 10% or more 

RETIREMENT AND ELECTION/RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Sponsor Directors:
In accordance with the Articles 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company, two directors 
shall retire by rotation from office at the 24th Annual General Meeting. The retiring directors are:

 i.  Md. Ali Hossain Nominted by Legendary Enterprises Ltd.
 ii. Mr. Ekramul Ameen FCA Nominted by Vibrant Endeavors Ltd.

Being eligible they offered themselves for re-election.

Public Shareholder Directors:
In accordance with the provision under Article 96 of the Article of Association of the Company and as 
provided under Insurance Act & Rules, Public notification with regard to election of Public Subscribers’ 
Director has been published in the 2 (two) national Dailies (The Daily Sonali Barta & The Daily 
Morning Observer), but no nomination papers were received from the shareholders for election.

Independent Directors:
As per the BSEC’s Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 03 June 2018, (i) At least one fifth (1/5) 
of the total number of directors in the company’s board shall be independent directors, (ii) 
Independent Director(s) shall be appointment by the Board of Directors and approved by the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting(AGM), and (iii) the tenure of office of an independent 
director shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Financial Auditor:
Pursuant to section 210 of company Act, 1994, the Company’s statutory auditors M/S Pinaki & 
Company, Chartered Accountants, shall retire & expired in the 24th Annual General Meeting. 

M/S Pinaki & Company, Chartered Accountants have expressed their interest as a statutory 
auditors for the year December 31, 2024 of the Company. The BoD has endorsed the 
recommendation for appointment M/S Pinaki & Company,Chartered Accountants at a 
remuneration of BDT 250,000.00 including income tax. As such the matter is placed before the 
24th  AGM for kind approval. 

Compliance Auditor:
Anil Salam Idris & Co.Chartered Accountants was the Corporate Governance Auditors for the 
year 2023. Since the said auditor is interested for reappointment as compliance auditor for the year 
2024, the BoD has endorsed the recommendation for reappointment at a fee of Tk. 30,000.00 
including income tax and the matter is placed before the 24th  AGM for kind approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of PILIL are committed in adopting the highest governance standard and 
implementing them in protecting the interests of shareholders, policy holders and all other 

stakeholders. The Company has complied with all necessary guidelines under BSEC notification 
no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. A certificate of Compliance 
required under the said Guidelines, as provided by Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants, is 
annexed in the Annual Report 2024. 

Audit Committee:
The Committee plays an important role to ensure transparency, accountability in the operations of 
the Company and confirming that the activities are conducted within the framework of principles 
and policies as laid down by the Board, as well as the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated June 03, 2018. 
The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024 audited by the External Auditors stressing on the importance of the successful 
compliance within the company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):
In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin and dated June 03, 
2018 issued by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Padma Islami Life Insurance 
Ltd. formed a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The NRC is responsible or 
accountable to the Board and to the Shareholders of the Company. Two meeting of NRC was held 
during the year 2023.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE CEO AND THE CFO TO THE BOARD

The Details of discussion of declaration by the CEO and Finance Controller is appended 
separately.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE SHARIAH BOARD

A declaration by the Shariah Committee on compliance with Islamic Shariah is appended separately.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ON THE COMPANY’S POSITION AND 
OPERATION

Services to Policyholders:
The reputation and progress of the company largely depend on rendering prompt and quality 
service to the policyholders. Keeping this in view, we have further strengthened our Services and 
launched a One-stop Service center during the year, the Company has settled Maturity sarvial 
benefit surrenden claim & death Claims of significant amount totaling to Tk. 52.97 crores.

Human Resource Practices:
PILIL is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees, irrespective of their gender, 
race, nationality, ethnic origin, or religion. PILIL is an inclusive employer and values diversity in 
its employees. 

These extend to recruitment and selection, training, career development, flexible working 
arrangements, promotion and performance appraisal. Our corporate goal is to improve staff 

engagement by measuring and responding to staff members’ views and willingness to exert extra 
effort to achieve business success. 

We provide necessary support to staff in order to manage change effectively. We credit the strength 
of our people for our organization’s success, their understanding of strategy and goals, as well as 
their satisfaction with the work they do and how it contributes, are of critical importance.

We continue our efforts to create and maintain a highly skilled and motivated workforce. Through 
our succession planning initiatives, leadership capacity is identified and developed to ensure 
ongoing success through adequate training and motivation. The Manpower strength of the 
company at the end of 2023 was 280.

Information Technology:
Information and Communication Technology (ICT) has become indispensable for Insurance 
Companies in ensuring smooth operation and providing efficient services. Recognized this fact the 
Board has adopted a comprehensive ICT policy for the company.

ICT system of PILIL has been revamped by strengthening and securing the automation of services. 
The highly experienced and trained ICT professionals are working on implementing and developing 
the company’s online integrated full-featured ERP System and other ICT infrastructure and constantly 
innovating and writing in-house programs to meet the needs of the company. Local Area Network 
(LAN) and other technologies have been in operation in the Head office and Branch offices.

Corporate Social Responsibility:
The Directors are sincere to discharge corporate responsibilities to the society. As a part of 
discharging corporate social responsibilities, PILIL has initiated a number programs and has been 
sponsoring various welfare activit, besides patronizing cultural activities in the country since its 
inception. 
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The Board of Directors
Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited
Head office: Padma Life Tower
Dhaka-1000.
Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st December 2023.
Dear Sirs,
Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No. 
SEC/CMRCD2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities 
and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that:
(1)  The Financial Statements of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited for the year ended on 31st 

December, 2023 have been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards 
(IAS) or International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh and 
any departure has been adequately disclosed; 

(2)  The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and 
reasonable basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view; 

(3)  The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been 
reasonably and fairly presented in its financial statements;

(4)  To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of 
internal control and maintenance of accounting records;

(5)  Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the 
established policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed;

 and
(6)  The Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial 

statements is appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern.

 In this regard, we also certify that: -
 (i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 31st December, 2023 

and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:
 (a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 

material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;
 (b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs 

and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.
 (ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of 
conduct for the company’s Board of Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

                                                                                                          Quazi Ahsan Ul Alam Ansary
Chief Executive Officer                Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Pursuant to the Notification issued by BSEC on Code of Corporate Governance, the BoD of PILIL 
formed the Audit Committee (the Committee) with its ToR as below:

TOR OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Constitution of the Audit Committee
 1. The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) members, who shall be 

directors of the company, including at least 1 (one) independent director.

 2. The Board of Directors shall appoint members of the Audit Committee. It shall also select 
1 (one) member, who shall be an independent director, to be its Chairman. Qualification of 
the members shall conform to the requirements of the Corporate Governance Guidelines.

 3. When the term of service of any member expires or there is any circumstance causing any 
member to be unable to hold office until expiration of the term of service, thus making the 
number of the members to be lower than 3 (three), the Board of Directors shall appoint new 
member(s) to fill the vacancy (ies) immediately or not later than 1 (one) month from the 
date of vacancy (ies) to ensure continuity of the performance of work of the Audit 
Committee.

 4. The company secretary shall act as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

Meetings of the Audit Committee
 1. The meetings of the Audit Committee shall be presided over by its Chairman.

 2. The quorum of a meeting of the Audit Committee shall constitute by majorityof members 
and shall not constitute without at least 1 (one) independent director.

 3. The Audit Committee shall hold at least 5 (Five) meetings in a year to perform its duties and 
responsibilities.

 4. The Audit Committee may invite the Chief Executive Officer, Head of Internal Audit or any 
other officials to attend the meeting.

 5. The Audit Committee may request the internal and/or external auditors to submit 
valuation/evaluation report(s) on any specific issue.

 6. All the observations/findings/recommendations of the Audit Committee shall be recorded 
in the minutes of the Committee.

 7. The Secretary shall minute the proceedings and resolutions of all committee meetings, 
including the names of those present and in attendance and shall circulate the minutes of 
meetings of the Committee to all members of the Committee.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee:
 1.  The Audit Committee shall be responsible for the following:

 a. To oversee the financial reporting process of the company.

 b. To monitor choice of accounting policies and principles.

 c. To monitor Internal Control and Risk management processes.

 d. To oversee hiring (appointment) of external auditors.

 e. To oversee the performance of external auditors.

 f. To review, along with the management, the annual financial statements before 
submission to the Board for approval.

 g. To review, along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial 
statements before submission to the Board for approval.

 h. To review the adequacy of Internal control and audit function.

 i. To review statement of significant related party transactions submitted by the 
management.

 j. To review Management Letters/ Management Report/ Letter of Internal Control 
Weakness issued by the statutory auditors.

 k. To conduct a post-audit review of the audit findings including any significant 
suggestions for improvements provided to management by the statutory auditors.

2. The Audit Committee shall review whether all the applicable Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Notifications, Directives, etc. framed/issued by the regulatory authorities have been complied 
with.

3. The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board of Directors on the following 
findings, if any:

 i.  report on conflicts of interests;
 ii.  suspected or presumed fraud/ irregularity/ material defect in internal control 

system;
 iii. suspected infringement of laws, including securities related laws, rules and 

regulations;
 iv. any other matter which shall be disclosed to the Board of Directors immediately.

4. The Audit Committee shall prepare a report on activities carried out by itself, including 
reporting to the Board of Directors, during the year and disclose such report to the 
Shareholders and General Investors through the annual report of the company.

REPORT ON ACTIVITIES CARRIED OUT BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

In discharging its duties and responsibilities, during the year 2023, the Audit Committee of PILIL:

 1.  Held a total of 05 (four) meetings. Attendance status was as below:

2. Reviewed the quarterly and annual financial statements of the year 2023 and recommended 
for approval;

3. Considered and made recommendation to the Board on the appointment and remuneration of 
financial and compliance auditors; 

4. Approved the Internal Audit Plan, monitored progress and effected revisions when necessary;
5. Discussed Internal Audit reports and findings in detail with auditors and members of 

Management.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

 

Md. Belal Hussain, FCA
Chairman of the Audit Committee, PILIL
Dated: July 29, 2024
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The Board of Directors
Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited
Head office: Padma Life Tower
Dhaka-1000.
Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st December 2023.
Dear Sirs,
Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No. 
SEC/CMRCD2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities 
and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that:
(1)  The Financial Statements of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited for the year ended on 31st 

December, 2023 have been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards 
(IAS) or International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh and 
any departure has been adequately disclosed; 

(2)  The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and 
reasonable basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view; 

(3)  The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been 
reasonably and fairly presented in its financial statements;

(4)  To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of 
internal control and maintenance of accounting records;

(5)  Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the 
established policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed;

 and
(6)  The Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial 

statements is appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern.

 In this regard, we also certify that: -
 (i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 31st December, 2023 

and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:
 (a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 

material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;
 (b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs 

and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.
 (ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of 
conduct for the company’s Board of Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

                                                                                                          Quazi Ahsan Ul Alam Ansary
Chief Executive Officer                Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Pursuant to the Notification issued by BSEC on Code of Corporate Governance, the BoD of PILIL 
formed the Audit Committee (the Committee) with its ToR as below:

TOR OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Constitution of the Audit Committee
 1. The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) members, who shall be 

directors of the company, including at least 1 (one) independent director.

 2. The Board of Directors shall appoint members of the Audit Committee. It shall also select 
1 (one) member, who shall be an independent director, to be its Chairman. Qualification of 
the members shall conform to the requirements of the Corporate Governance Guidelines.

 3. When the term of service of any member expires or there is any circumstance causing any 
member to be unable to hold office until expiration of the term of service, thus making the 
number of the members to be lower than 3 (three), the Board of Directors shall appoint new 
member(s) to fill the vacancy (ies) immediately or not later than 1 (one) month from the 
date of vacancy (ies) to ensure continuity of the performance of work of the Audit 
Committee.

 4. The company secretary shall act as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

Meetings of the Audit Committee
 1. The meetings of the Audit Committee shall be presided over by its Chairman.

 2. The quorum of a meeting of the Audit Committee shall constitute by majorityof members 
and shall not constitute without at least 1 (one) independent director.

 3. The Audit Committee shall hold at least 5 (Five) meetings in a year to perform its duties and 
responsibilities.

 4. The Audit Committee may invite the Chief Executive Officer, Head of Internal Audit or any 
other officials to attend the meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
REPORT For the Year 2023

Sl.
No. Name of Members Designation Status

 01 Mr. Md. Belal Hussain, FCA Independent Director Chairman
 02 AKM Sharit Ullah, FCA ACCA Director Member
 03 Mr. Zaman Ara Begum  Director Member
 04 Prof. Dr. Serajul Hoque Independent Director Member
 05 Md. Ali Hossain Director Member
 06 Mr. Ekramul Ameen FCA Director Member

 5. The Audit Committee may request the internal and/or external auditors to submit 
valuation/evaluation report(s) on any specific issue.

 6. All the observations/findings/recommendations of the Audit Committee shall be recorded 
in the minutes of the Committee.

 7. The Secretary shall minute the proceedings and resolutions of all committee meetings, 
including the names of those present and in attendance and shall circulate the minutes of 
meetings of the Committee to all members of the Committee.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee:
 1.  The Audit Committee shall be responsible for the following:

 a. To oversee the financial reporting process of the company.

 b. To monitor choice of accounting policies and principles.

 c. To monitor Internal Control and Risk management processes.

 d. To oversee hiring (appointment) of external auditors.

 e. To oversee the performance of external auditors.

 f. To review, along with the management, the annual financial statements before 
submission to the Board for approval.

 g. To review, along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial 
statements before submission to the Board for approval.

 h. To review the adequacy of Internal control and audit function.

 i. To review statement of significant related party transactions submitted by the 
management.

 j. To review Management Letters/ Management Report/ Letter of Internal Control 
Weakness issued by the statutory auditors.

 k. To conduct a post-audit review of the audit findings including any significant 
suggestions for improvements provided to management by the statutory auditors.

2. The Audit Committee shall review whether all the applicable Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Notifications, Directives, etc. framed/issued by the regulatory authorities have been complied 
with.

3. The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board of Directors on the following 
findings, if any:

 i.  report on conflicts of interests;
 ii.  suspected or presumed fraud/ irregularity/ material defect in internal control 

system;
 iii. suspected infringement of laws, including securities related laws, rules and 

regulations;
 iv. any other matter which shall be disclosed to the Board of Directors immediately.

4. The Audit Committee shall prepare a report on activities carried out by itself, including 
reporting to the Board of Directors, during the year and disclose such report to the 
Shareholders and General Investors through the annual report of the company.

REPORT ON ACTIVITIES CARRIED OUT BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

In discharging its duties and responsibilities, during the year 2023, the Audit Committee of PILIL:

 1.  Held a total of 05 (four) meetings. Attendance status was as below:

2. Reviewed the quarterly and annual financial statements of the year 2023 and recommended 
for approval;

3. Considered and made recommendation to the Board on the appointment and remuneration of 
financial and compliance auditors; 

4. Approved the Internal Audit Plan, monitored progress and effected revisions when necessary;
5. Discussed Internal Audit reports and findings in detail with auditors and members of 

Management.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

 

Md. Belal Hussain, FCA
Chairman of the Audit Committee, PILIL
Dated: July 29, 2024
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The Board of Directors
Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited
Head office: Padma Life Tower
Dhaka-1000.
Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st December 2023.
Dear Sirs,
Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No. 
SEC/CMRCD2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities 
and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that:
(1)  The Financial Statements of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited for the year ended on 31st 

December, 2023 have been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards 
(IAS) or International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh and 
any departure has been adequately disclosed; 

(2)  The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and 
reasonable basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view; 

(3)  The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been 
reasonably and fairly presented in its financial statements;

(4)  To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of 
internal control and maintenance of accounting records;

(5)  Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the 
established policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed;

 and
(6)  The Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial 

statements is appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern.

 In this regard, we also certify that: -
 (i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 31st December, 2023 

and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:
 (a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 

material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;
 (b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs 

and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.
 (ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of 
conduct for the company’s Board of Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

                                                                                                          Quazi Ahsan Ul Alam Ansary
Chief Executive Officer                Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Pursuant to the Notification issued by BSEC on Code of Corporate Governance, the BoD of PILIL 
formed the Audit Committee (the Committee) with its ToR as below:

TOR OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Constitution of the Audit Committee
 1. The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) members, who shall be 

directors of the company, including at least 1 (one) independent director.

 2. The Board of Directors shall appoint members of the Audit Committee. It shall also select 
1 (one) member, who shall be an independent director, to be its Chairman. Qualification of 
the members shall conform to the requirements of the Corporate Governance Guidelines.

 3. When the term of service of any member expires or there is any circumstance causing any 
member to be unable to hold office until expiration of the term of service, thus making the 
number of the members to be lower than 3 (three), the Board of Directors shall appoint new 
member(s) to fill the vacancy (ies) immediately or not later than 1 (one) month from the 
date of vacancy (ies) to ensure continuity of the performance of work of the Audit 
Committee.

 4. The company secretary shall act as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

Meetings of the Audit Committee
 1. The meetings of the Audit Committee shall be presided over by its Chairman.

 2. The quorum of a meeting of the Audit Committee shall constitute by majorityof members 
and shall not constitute without at least 1 (one) independent director.

 3. The Audit Committee shall hold at least 5 (Five) meetings in a year to perform its duties and 
responsibilities.

 4. The Audit Committee may invite the Chief Executive Officer, Head of Internal Audit or any 
other officials to attend the meeting.

 5. The Audit Committee may request the internal and/or external auditors to submit 
valuation/evaluation report(s) on any specific issue.

 6. All the observations/findings/recommendations of the Audit Committee shall be recorded 
in the minutes of the Committee.

 7. The Secretary shall minute the proceedings and resolutions of all committee meetings, 
including the names of those present and in attendance and shall circulate the minutes of 
meetings of the Committee to all members of the Committee.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee:
 1.  The Audit Committee shall be responsible for the following:

 a. To oversee the financial reporting process of the company.

 b. To monitor choice of accounting policies and principles.

 c. To monitor Internal Control and Risk management processes.

 d. To oversee hiring (appointment) of external auditors.

 e. To oversee the performance of external auditors.

 f. To review, along with the management, the annual financial statements before 
submission to the Board for approval.

 g. To review, along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial 
statements before submission to the Board for approval.

 h. To review the adequacy of Internal control and audit function.

 i. To review statement of significant related party transactions submitted by the 
management.

 j. To review Management Letters/ Management Report/ Letter of Internal Control 
Weakness issued by the statutory auditors.

 k. To conduct a post-audit review of the audit findings including any significant 
suggestions for improvements provided to management by the statutory auditors.

2. The Audit Committee shall review whether all the applicable Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Notifications, Directives, etc. framed/issued by the regulatory authorities have been complied 
with.

3. The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board of Directors on the following 
findings, if any:

 i.  report on conflicts of interests;
 ii.  suspected or presumed fraud/ irregularity/ material defect in internal control 

system;
 iii. suspected infringement of laws, including securities related laws, rules and 

regulations;
 iv. any other matter which shall be disclosed to the Board of Directors immediately.

4. The Audit Committee shall prepare a report on activities carried out by itself, including 
reporting to the Board of Directors, during the year and disclose such report to the 
Shareholders and General Investors through the annual report of the company.

REPORT ON ACTIVITIES CARRIED OUT BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

In discharging its duties and responsibilities, during the year 2023, the Audit Committee of PILIL:

 1.  Held a total of 05 (four) meetings. Attendance status was as below:

2. Reviewed the quarterly and annual financial statements of the year 2023 and recommended 
for approval;

3. Considered and made recommendation to the Board on the appointment and remuneration of 
financial and compliance auditors; 

4. Approved the Internal Audit Plan, monitored progress and effected revisions when necessary;
5. Discussed Internal Audit reports and findings in detail with auditors and members of 

Management.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

 

Md. Belal Hussain, FCA
Chairman of the Audit Committee, PILIL
Dated: July 29, 2024
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The Board of Directors
Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited
Head office: Padma Life Tower
Dhaka-1000.
Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st December 2023.
Dear Sirs,
Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No. 
SEC/CMRCD2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities 
and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that:
(1)  The Financial Statements of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited for the year ended on 31st 

December, 2023 have been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards 
(IAS) or International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh and 
any departure has been adequately disclosed; 

(2)  The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and 
reasonable basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view; 

(3)  The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been 
reasonably and fairly presented in its financial statements;

(4)  To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of 
internal control and maintenance of accounting records;

(5)  Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the 
established policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed;

 and
(6)  The Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial 

statements is appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern.

 In this regard, we also certify that: -
 (i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 31st December, 2023 

and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:
 (a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 

material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;
 (b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs 

and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.
 (ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of 
conduct for the company’s Board of Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

                                                                                                          Quazi Ahsan Ul Alam Ansary
Chief Executive Officer                Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Pursuant to the Notification issued by BSEC on Code of Corporate Governance, the BoD of PILIL 
formed the Audit Committee (the Committee) with its ToR as below:

TOR OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Constitution of the Audit Committee
 1. The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) members, who shall be 

directors of the company, including at least 1 (one) independent director.

 2. The Board of Directors shall appoint members of the Audit Committee. It shall also select 
1 (one) member, who shall be an independent director, to be its Chairman. Qualification of 
the members shall conform to the requirements of the Corporate Governance Guidelines.

 3. When the term of service of any member expires or there is any circumstance causing any 
member to be unable to hold office until expiration of the term of service, thus making the 
number of the members to be lower than 3 (three), the Board of Directors shall appoint new 
member(s) to fill the vacancy (ies) immediately or not later than 1 (one) month from the 
date of vacancy (ies) to ensure continuity of the performance of work of the Audit 
Committee.

 4. The company secretary shall act as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

Meetings of the Audit Committee
 1. The meetings of the Audit Committee shall be presided over by its Chairman.

 2. The quorum of a meeting of the Audit Committee shall constitute by majorityof members 
and shall not constitute without at least 1 (one) independent director.

 3. The Audit Committee shall hold at least 5 (Five) meetings in a year to perform its duties and 
responsibilities.

 4. The Audit Committee may invite the Chief Executive Officer, Head of Internal Audit or any 
other officials to attend the meeting.

 5. The Audit Committee may request the internal and/or external auditors to submit 
valuation/evaluation report(s) on any specific issue.

 6. All the observations/findings/recommendations of the Audit Committee shall be recorded 
in the minutes of the Committee.

 7. The Secretary shall minute the proceedings and resolutions of all committee meetings, 
including the names of those present and in attendance and shall circulate the minutes of 
meetings of the Committee to all members of the Committee.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee:
 1.  The Audit Committee shall be responsible for the following:

 a. To oversee the financial reporting process of the company.

 b. To monitor choice of accounting policies and principles.

 c. To monitor Internal Control and Risk management processes.

 d. To oversee hiring (appointment) of external auditors.

 e. To oversee the performance of external auditors.

 f. To review, along with the management, the annual financial statements before 
submission to the Board for approval.

 g. To review, along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial 
statements before submission to the Board for approval.

 h. To review the adequacy of Internal control and audit function.

 i. To review statement of significant related party transactions submitted by the 
management.

 j. To review Management Letters/ Management Report/ Letter of Internal Control 
Weakness issued by the statutory auditors.

 k. To conduct a post-audit review of the audit findings including any significant 
suggestions for improvements provided to management by the statutory auditors.

2. The Audit Committee shall review whether all the applicable Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Notifications, Directives, etc. framed/issued by the regulatory authorities have been complied 
with.

3. The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board of Directors on the following 
findings, if any:

 i.  report on conflicts of interests;
 ii.  suspected or presumed fraud/ irregularity/ material defect in internal control 

system;
 iii. suspected infringement of laws, including securities related laws, rules and 

regulations;
 iv. any other matter which shall be disclosed to the Board of Directors immediately.

4. The Audit Committee shall prepare a report on activities carried out by itself, including 
reporting to the Board of Directors, during the year and disclose such report to the 
Shareholders and General Investors through the annual report of the company.

REPORT ON ACTIVITIES CARRIED OUT BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

In discharging its duties and responsibilities, during the year 2023, the Audit Committee of PILIL:

 1.  Held a total of 05 (four) meetings. Attendance status was as below:

2. Reviewed the quarterly and annual financial statements of the year 2023 and recommended 
for approval;

3. Considered and made recommendation to the Board on the appointment and remuneration of 
financial and compliance auditors; 

4. Approved the Internal Audit Plan, monitored progress and effected revisions when necessary;
5. Discussed Internal Audit reports and findings in detail with auditors and members of 

Management.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

 

Md. Belal Hussain, FCA
Chairman of the Audit Committee, PILIL
Dated: July 29, 2024

Sl.
No. Name of Members Designa�on Mee�ng

Held
Mee�ng
A�ended

 01 Mr. Md. Belal Hussain, FCA Chairman 05 05
 02 AKM Sharit Ullah, FCA ACCA Member 05 05
 03 Mrs. Zaman Ara Begum Member 05 05
 04 Prof. Dr. Serajul Hoque Member 05 05
 05  Md. Ali Hossain Member 05 05
 06 Mr.Ekramul Amin FCA Member 05 05
 06  Noor Mohammed Bhuiyan Chief Executive Officer  05 05
 07 Md. Akaturzzaman (Resign) Company Secretary (CC) 05 05
 08 Shakhawat Hossain (Resign) Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 05 03
 09 Md. Jahangir Alam Chowdhury (Late) Head of Internal Audit 05 02
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KEY FINANCIAL
INDICATORS

 01 First Year Premium Income 131.67 90.32 75.37 142.53 36.64
 02 Renewal Premium Income 459.85 332.60 187.60 71.32 75.11
 03 Group & Health Insurance Premium 70.59 65.66 100.66 102.85 99.42
 04 Gross Premium 662.11 488.59 363.64 316.69 212.17
 05 Reinsurance Premium 2.14 0.25 0.61 0.37 .042
 06 Net Premium (4-5) 659.97 488.34 363.64 316.32 219.13
 07 Retention Ratio (6/4) (%) 99.68% 99.95% 99.83% 99.88% 99.98%
 08 First Year Premium Income Growth (%) 59.12 (31.41) (16.54) 89.00 (74.29)
 09 Renewal Premium Income Growth (%) (2.33) (27.67) (43.60) (61.90) (5.31)
 10 Gross Premium Income Growth (%) 12.45 (26.21) (25.57) (12.91) (33.32)
 11 First Year Commissions Paid for acquisition of life insurance business 55.98 43.42 37.18 64.49 37.25
 12 Second Year Commissions paid for acquisition of life insurance business 4.61 4.21 1.04 1.52 1.10
 13 Third and Later Year Commissions paid for acquisition of life insurance business 10.89 8.93 8.43 9.20 5.44
14 Total Commissions paid of acquisition of life insurance business (11+12+13) 71.48 56.56 46.65 75.21 43.79
15 First Year Commissions/First Year Premium (%) 34.92% 31.46% 49.33% 52.77% 60.16%
16 Second Year Commissions/Second Year Renewal Premium (%) 10.00% 10.00% 9.78% 1.07% 8.33%
17 Third and Later Year Commissions/Third and Later Year Premium (%) 5.00% 5.00% 4.76% 6.46% 4.18%
18 Management Express 294.55 186.8 144.09 189.35 129.24
19 Allowable Management Expenses 252.06 107.63 118.97 159.39 108.79
20 Excess Management Expenses (18-19) 42.48 29.19 25.12 29.96 20.45
21 Excess Management Expenses Ration (%) 12.47% 18.52 21.11% 18.80 18.80%
22 Overall Management Expenses Ration (%) 39.12% 38.24% 17.43% 15.82 15.82%
23 Renewal Expenses Ratio (%) 15.54% 23.68% 11.04% 56.06 6.03
24 Claims paid 687.52 650.49 321.61 525.50 251.19
25 Claims/Gross Premium (%) 103.84 133% 88.44% 165.94 118.39
26 Total Commission Expenses/Gross Premium (%) 10.80% 11.58% 12.83% 26.17 15.26
27 Investment Income 69.65 61.99 39.32 63.54 54.58
28 Investment Income/Gross Premium (%) 10.52% 12.69 10.91% 20.06 25.72
29 Yield on Life Fund (%) 4.96% 4.50% 3.19% (2.79) 
30 Conservation Ratio (%) 78.10% 50.23% 38.42% 19.61% 
31 Second Policy Year Lapse Ratio (%) by  number of Policies 82.91% 87% 76% 80.00% 94%
32 Third Policy Year Lapse Ratio (%) by number of polities 92.67% 90% 94% 95.00% 93%
33 Fourth Policy Year Lapse Ratio (%) by number of polities 94.48% 93% 94% 97.00% 97%
34 Fifth Policy Year Lapse Ratio (%) by number of polities 96.01% 95% 96% 96.00% 96%
35 Sixth Policy Year Lapse Ratio (%) by number of polities 97.00% 95% 96% 97.00% 97%
36 Second Policy Year Lapse Ratio (%) by Premium Amount 85.51% 73% 70% 84.00% 92%
37 Third Policy Year Lapse Ratio (%) by Premium Amount 93.18% 86% 95% 93.00% 92%
38 Fourth Policy Year Lapse Ratio (%) by Premium Amount 94.99% 90% 96% 96.00% 95%

Par�cularsSl.
No. 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Amount in (Million)



ANNUAL REPORT 2023  ||  47

 39 Fifth Policy Year Lapse Ratio (%) by Premium Amount 96.66% 92% 97% 97.00% 94%
 40 Sixth Policy Year Lapse Ratio (%) by Premium Amount 96.10% 93% 96% 97.00% 96%
 41 Market Price per Share (in BDT) at year end 17.40 20.50 47.90 41.00 41.20
 42 Dividend yield (%) - - 0.42% - -
 43 Outstanding Premium as at 31st December 144.47 184.46 154.52 629.70 406.81
 44 Total Investment as at 31st December 508.81 543.36 599.71 468.58 472.58
 45 Life Fund as at 31st December 209.79 131.40 124.63 (2,338.90) -2544.12)
 46 Total Assets as at 31st December 2238.88 2246.33 3148.76 2,833.17 2677.53
 47 Paid Up Capital as at 31st December 388.80 388.80 388.80 388.80 388.80
 48 Paid Up Capital/Total Asset (%) 17.14% 17.31% 12.35 13.72 14.52
 49 Net cash flow from operating activities 338.60 305.32 380.38 (382.33) (134.57)
 50 Net cash flow from Investing activities (66.03) (28.26) (16.46) 16.55 (6.66)
 51 Net cash flow from Financing activities (449.09) (310.49) (329.39) 250.00 50.00
 52 Net change in cash and cash equivalent (17.65) (33.43) 34.53 33.16 (91.22)

Par�cularsSl.
No. 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

53. First Year and Renewal Premium Income

YEAR 2019

2015

2016

2017

2018

2020 2021 2022 2023 Descrip�on
 131671 86429 68369 11120  Number of new policies issued

17.692 22.133 7.601 5.98 1.29 Renewal Premium out of the policies issued in 2017

26.579 23.989 2.104 1.78 0.59 Renewal Premium out of the policies issued in 2018

28.726 9.017 2.226 1.54 0.70 Renewal Premium out of the policies issued in 2019

12.524 21.385 4.11 2.06 0.59 Renewal Premium out of the policies issued in 2020

54. Number of First Year and Renewal Policies

N.A=Not Applicable
Dividend was not declared in 2023 due to non availability of Actuarial Valuation Report.

YEAR 2019

2015

2016

2017

2018

2020 2021 2022 2023 Descrip�on
 10398 1,20,105 8152 12159 2,777 Number of new policies issued

 1850 1947 844 617 974 Number of policies renewed out of the policies issued in 2017

 2753 1925 338 257 508 Number of policies renewed out of the policies issued in 2018

 2512 979 376 241 553 Number of policies renewed out of the policies issued in 2019

 1757 1460 627 317 524 Number of policies renewed out of the policies issued in 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
AND

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LIMITED.

For the Year 2023
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited. 
(‘company’) which comprise Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position) as at December 31, 
2023, and the Life Revenue Account (Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive 
Income Account), Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows for the year then 
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and its financial performance and 
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
 1. Reference to note 8, Sadaka Fund (Padma Welfare Fund) amounting to Tk. 43,422,132/- 

for which we are unable to confirm due to lack of sufficient appropriate evidence.
 2. Reference to note 20, We were unable to confirm cash at bank balance for the amount of 

Tk. 55,198,414/- due to lack of Bank statements for 134 Bank account of various bank.
 3. Reference to note 17 and note 24, We are unable to confirm the rental income and rent 

receivable for the amount of Tk. 30,408,726/- and Tk. 852,911/- respectively due to lack 
of rental agreement between tenant and owner.

 4. Reference to note 7, Life insurance fund shown negative balance for the amount of Tk. 
(2,544,120,079)/- as of December 31, 2023 and operating cash flows shown negative 
figure for the amount of Tk. (134,565,327)/- during the year under audit, where both 
negative figures raise significantly doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern.

 5. Non-compliance with Section 72 of the Insurance Act 2010 was observed, that 
outstanding claims totaling Tk. 2,256,624,639/- did not settle within the mandated 90 
days, and not make any provision for interest on these outstanding claims.

 6. The company didn’t comply deferred tax as per IAS-12.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have 

fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in the audit of financial statements for the year 2023. These matters were addressed in the context 
of the audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming the auditor's opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in 
the Basis for Opinion section we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit 
matters to be communicated in our report. For each matter below, our description of how our audit 
addressed the matter is provided in that context.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our 
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risk of 
material misstatements of the financial statements. These results of our audit procedures, including 
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on 
the accompanying financial statements.

Other Matter
The financial statements of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited for the year ended 31 December 
2022 were audited by Another auditor who expressed a qualified opinion on those statements on 
17 July 2023.

Other information
Management as well as Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises all of the information in the annual report but does not include the financial statements 
and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with IFRSs, the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance 
Rules 1958 (as amendment in 2010), the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable 
laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgments and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report On Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and relevant notifications issues by Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission, we also report that: 

• We have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof; 

• In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company 
so far as it appeared from our examination of those books; and 

• The statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account. 

Ajit Kumar Paul FCA
Managing Partner

Place: Dhaka ICAB Enrollment No: 0908
Dated: 31 July 2024 Pinaki & Company
DVC: 2407310908AS875658 Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited. 
(‘company’) which comprise Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position) as at December 31, 
2023, and the Life Revenue Account (Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive 
Income Account), Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows for the year then 
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and its financial performance and 
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
 1. Reference to note 8, Sadaka Fund (Padma Welfare Fund) amounting to Tk. 43,422,132/- 

for which we are unable to confirm due to lack of sufficient appropriate evidence.
 2. Reference to note 20, We were unable to confirm cash at bank balance for the amount of 

Tk. 55,198,414/- due to lack of Bank statements for 134 Bank account of various bank.
 3. Reference to note 17 and note 24, We are unable to confirm the rental income and rent 

receivable for the amount of Tk. 30,408,726/- and Tk. 852,911/- respectively due to lack 
of rental agreement between tenant and owner.

 4. Reference to note 7, Life insurance fund shown negative balance for the amount of Tk. 
(2,544,120,079)/- as of December 31, 2023 and operating cash flows shown negative 
figure for the amount of Tk. (134,565,327)/- during the year under audit, where both 
negative figures raise significantly doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern.

 5. Non-compliance with Section 72 of the Insurance Act 2010 was observed, that 
outstanding claims totaling Tk. 2,256,624,639/- did not settle within the mandated 90 
days, and not make any provision for interest on these outstanding claims.

 6. The company didn’t comply deferred tax as per IAS-12.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have 

fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in the audit of financial statements for the year 2023. These matters were addressed in the context 
of the audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming the auditor's opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in 
the Basis for Opinion section we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit 
matters to be communicated in our report. For each matter below, our description of how our audit 
addressed the matter is provided in that context.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our 
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risk of 
material misstatements of the financial statements. These results of our audit procedures, including 
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on 
the accompanying financial statements.

Risk Our Responsibility

Property, Plant & Equipment

The carrying value of property, plant & equipment 
amounts to Taka 1,642,257,868/- This represents a 
significant amount in the company's statement of 
financial position as at 31 December 2023

There is a risk of:

• determining which costs meet the criteria for 
capitalization;

• determining the date on which the assets is 
recognized to property, plant and equipment 
and depreciation commences;

• the estimation of economic useful lives and 
residual values assigned to Fixed asset.

We identified the carrying value of property, plant and 
equipment as a key audit matter because of the high level 
of management judgment involved and because of its 
significance to the financial statements.

Our audit procedures to assess the carrying value of 
property, plant & equipment included the following:
Our audit procedures included controls testing and 
substantive procedures covering, in particular:

• Assessing the design, implementation and 
operating effectiveness of key internal controls 
over the completeness, existence and accuracy 
of property, plant and equipment including the 
key internal controls over the estimation of 
useful economic lives and residual values;

• Assessing, on a sample basis, costs capitalized 
during the year by comparing the costs 
capitalized with the relevant underlying 
documentation, which included purchase 
agreements and invoices, and assessing 
whether the costs capitalized met the relevant 
criteria for capitalization.

• Testing the key controls over the management's 
judgment in relation to the accounting 
estimates of the depreciable lives and residual 
values of property, plant and equipment.

• Reconcile on a sample basis the additional 
capitalized costs for the year to the underlying 
invoices and supporting documents.

• We reviewed minutes of board meetings for 
approval of the total capitalization cost.

Other Matter
The financial statements of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited for the year ended 31 December 
2022 were audited by Another auditor who expressed a qualified opinion on those statements on 
17 July 2023.

Other information
Management as well as Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises all of the information in the annual report but does not include the financial statements 
and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with IFRSs, the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance 
Rules 1958 (as amendment in 2010), the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable 
laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgments and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report On Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and relevant notifications issues by Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission, we also report that: 

• We have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof; 

• In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company 
so far as it appeared from our examination of those books; and 

• The statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account. 

Ajit Kumar Paul FCA
Managing Partner

Place: Dhaka ICAB Enrollment No: 0908
Dated: 31 July 2024 Pinaki & Company
DVC: 2407310908AS875658 Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited. 
(‘company’) which comprise Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position) as at December 31, 
2023, and the Life Revenue Account (Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive 
Income Account), Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows for the year then 
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and its financial performance and 
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
 1. Reference to note 8, Sadaka Fund (Padma Welfare Fund) amounting to Tk. 43,422,132/- 

for which we are unable to confirm due to lack of sufficient appropriate evidence.
 2. Reference to note 20, We were unable to confirm cash at bank balance for the amount of 

Tk. 55,198,414/- due to lack of Bank statements for 134 Bank account of various bank.
 3. Reference to note 17 and note 24, We are unable to confirm the rental income and rent 

receivable for the amount of Tk. 30,408,726/- and Tk. 852,911/- respectively due to lack 
of rental agreement between tenant and owner.

 4. Reference to note 7, Life insurance fund shown negative balance for the amount of Tk. 
(2,544,120,079)/- as of December 31, 2023 and operating cash flows shown negative 
figure for the amount of Tk. (134,565,327)/- during the year under audit, where both 
negative figures raise significantly doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern.

 5. Non-compliance with Section 72 of the Insurance Act 2010 was observed, that 
outstanding claims totaling Tk. 2,256,624,639/- did not settle within the mandated 90 
days, and not make any provision for interest on these outstanding claims.

 6. The company didn’t comply deferred tax as per IAS-12.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have 

fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in the audit of financial statements for the year 2023. These matters were addressed in the context 
of the audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming the auditor's opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in 
the Basis for Opinion section we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit 
matters to be communicated in our report. For each matter below, our description of how our audit 
addressed the matter is provided in that context.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our 
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risk of 
material misstatements of the financial statements. These results of our audit procedures, including 
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on 
the accompanying financial statements.

• We assessed the company's capitalizations 
policy for compliance with IAS 16 and tested 
the expenditure capitalized against the 
capitalizations Policy.

• We traced payments to supporting documents.
• We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures of 

the financial statements.

See note no 21.0 and Annexure to the financial statements.

 See note no.7.00 to the financial statements

Valuation of Life Fund

Premium Income

Valuation of life fund involves complex and subjective 
judgments about future events, both internal and external 
to the business, for which small changes in assumptions 
can result in material impacts to the valuation of these 
liabilities.

At 31 December 2023, the company reported total 
balance under the head of Life Insurance Fund of BDT 
(2,544,120,079.00); 2022: BDT (2,338,901,845.00).

The work to address the valuation of life fund included 
the following procedures:

• Understood the governance process in place to 
determine the life fund.

• Reviewed the actuarial report and assessed the 
reasonableness of the assumptions used to 
estimate the liability. 

• Tested key judgment and controls over the 
liability, including the preparation of the 
manually calculated components. We focused 
on the consistency in treatment and 
methodology period-on-period.

Based on the work performed and the evidence obtained, 
we consider the assumption used to be appropriate.

Gross insurance premiums amount of Tk. 211,169,545/- 
is comprison the net premiums amount of Tk. 
211,127,985/- received for the whole period of cover 
provided by contracts entered into during the accounting 
period.

Given the important nature, connections to other items to 
the financial statements and sensitivity of the item we 
believe this area pose high level of risk.

Carried out cut-off testing to ensure unearned premium 
income has not been included in the premium income.
On a sample basis reviewed policy to ensure appropriate 
policy stamp was affixed to the contract and the same 
has been reflected in the premium register.
Ensured on a sample basis that the premium income was 
being deposited in the designated bank account.
Tested on a sample basis to see that appropriate VAT was 
being collected and deposited to bank through Treasury 
Challan.
For a sample of insurance contracts tested to see if 
appropriate level of reinsurance was done and whether 
that reinsurance premium was deducted from the gross 
premium.
Applying specialist judgment ensured if there is any 
impairment of the reinsurer.
Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation of 
disclosures against relevant accounting standards, 
Insurance Act 1938 (as amended in 2010), Insurance 
Rules, 1958 and other applicable rules and regulations 
and regulatory guidelines.

Other Matter
The financial statements of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited for the year ended 31 December 
2022 were audited by Another auditor who expressed a qualified opinion on those statements on 
17 July 2023.

Other information
Management as well as Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises all of the information in the annual report but does not include the financial statements 
and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with IFRSs, the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance 
Rules 1958 (as amendment in 2010), the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable 
laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgments and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report On Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and relevant notifications issues by Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission, we also report that: 

• We have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof; 

• In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company 
so far as it appeared from our examination of those books; and 

• The statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account. 

Ajit Kumar Paul FCA
Managing Partner

Place: Dhaka ICAB Enrollment No: 0908
Dated: 31 July 2024 Pinaki & Company
DVC: 2407310908AS875658 Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited. 
(‘company’) which comprise Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position) as at December 31, 
2023, and the Life Revenue Account (Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive 
Income Account), Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows for the year then 
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and its financial performance and 
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
 1. Reference to note 8, Sadaka Fund (Padma Welfare Fund) amounting to Tk. 43,422,132/- 

for which we are unable to confirm due to lack of sufficient appropriate evidence.
 2. Reference to note 20, We were unable to confirm cash at bank balance for the amount of 

Tk. 55,198,414/- due to lack of Bank statements for 134 Bank account of various bank.
 3. Reference to note 17 and note 24, We are unable to confirm the rental income and rent 

receivable for the amount of Tk. 30,408,726/- and Tk. 852,911/- respectively due to lack 
of rental agreement between tenant and owner.

 4. Reference to note 7, Life insurance fund shown negative balance for the amount of Tk. 
(2,544,120,079)/- as of December 31, 2023 and operating cash flows shown negative 
figure for the amount of Tk. (134,565,327)/- during the year under audit, where both 
negative figures raise significantly doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern.

 5. Non-compliance with Section 72 of the Insurance Act 2010 was observed, that 
outstanding claims totaling Tk. 2,256,624,639/- did not settle within the mandated 90 
days, and not make any provision for interest on these outstanding claims.

 6. The company didn’t comply deferred tax as per IAS-12.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have 

fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in the audit of financial statements for the year 2023. These matters were addressed in the context 
of the audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming the auditor's opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in 
the Basis for Opinion section we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit 
matters to be communicated in our report. For each matter below, our description of how our audit 
addressed the matter is provided in that context.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our 
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risk of 
material misstatements of the financial statements. These results of our audit procedures, including 
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on 
the accompanying financial statements.

Other Matter
The financial statements of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited for the year ended 31 December 
2022 were audited by Another auditor who expressed a qualified opinion on those statements on 
17 July 2023.

Other information
Management as well as Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises all of the information in the annual report but does not include the financial statements 
and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with IFRSs, the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance 
Rules 1958 (as amendment in 2010), the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable 
laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgments and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report On Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and relevant notifications issues by Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission, we also report that: 

• We have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof; 

• In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company 
so far as it appeared from our examination of those books; and 

• The statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account. 

Ajit Kumar Paul FCA
Managing Partner

Place: Dhaka ICAB Enrollment No: 0908
Dated: 31 July 2024 Pinaki & Company
DVC: 2407310908AS875658 Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited. 
(‘company’) which comprise Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position) as at December 31, 
2023, and the Life Revenue Account (Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive 
Income Account), Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows for the year then 
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and its financial performance and 
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
 1. Reference to note 8, Sadaka Fund (Padma Welfare Fund) amounting to Tk. 43,422,132/- 

for which we are unable to confirm due to lack of sufficient appropriate evidence.
 2. Reference to note 20, We were unable to confirm cash at bank balance for the amount of 

Tk. 55,198,414/- due to lack of Bank statements for 134 Bank account of various bank.
 3. Reference to note 17 and note 24, We are unable to confirm the rental income and rent 

receivable for the amount of Tk. 30,408,726/- and Tk. 852,911/- respectively due to lack 
of rental agreement between tenant and owner.

 4. Reference to note 7, Life insurance fund shown negative balance for the amount of Tk. 
(2,544,120,079)/- as of December 31, 2023 and operating cash flows shown negative 
figure for the amount of Tk. (134,565,327)/- during the year under audit, where both 
negative figures raise significantly doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern.

 5. Non-compliance with Section 72 of the Insurance Act 2010 was observed, that 
outstanding claims totaling Tk. 2,256,624,639/- did not settle within the mandated 90 
days, and not make any provision for interest on these outstanding claims.

 6. The company didn’t comply deferred tax as per IAS-12.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have 

fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in the audit of financial statements for the year 2023. These matters were addressed in the context 
of the audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming the auditor's opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in 
the Basis for Opinion section we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit 
matters to be communicated in our report. For each matter below, our description of how our audit 
addressed the matter is provided in that context.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our 
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risk of 
material misstatements of the financial statements. These results of our audit procedures, including 
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on 
the accompanying financial statements.

Other Matter
The financial statements of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited for the year ended 31 December 
2022 were audited by Another auditor who expressed a qualified opinion on those statements on 
17 July 2023.

Other information
Management as well as Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises all of the information in the annual report but does not include the financial statements 
and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with IFRSs, the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance 
Rules 1958 (as amendment in 2010), the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable 
laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgments and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report On Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and relevant notifications issues by Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission, we also report that: 

• We have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof; 

• In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company 
so far as it appeared from our examination of those books; and 

• The statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account. 

Ajit Kumar Paul FCA
Managing Partner

Place: Dhaka ICAB Enrollment No: 0908
Dated: 31 July 2024 Pinaki & Company
DVC: 2407310908AS875658 Chartered Accountants
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20222023
Amount in Taka

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES Notes

SHAREHOLDERS' CAPITAL      
Authorised Capital 
100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10/- each   1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up 
38,880,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10/- each 5.0  388,800,000 388,800,000

Balance of Fund and Accounts 
Revaluation Reserve 6.0  889,663,515  889,663,515 
Life Insurance Fund 7.0  (2,544,120,079)  (2,338,901,844)
Sadaka Fund (Padma Welfare Fund) 8.0  43,422,132  43,422,132
Amount due to other persons or bodies Carrying on 9.0 - 323,030
Insurance Business  
Liabilities and Provisions   3,899,762,572  3,849,859,994
Estimated Liabilities in Respect of Outstanding claims 10.0  2,256,624,639 2,256,634,639
whether due or intimated.  
Sundry Creditors 11.0  103,137,933 103,225,355
Premium Deposit 12.0  -  -
Long Term Borrowing (Non-cost Bearing) 13.0 1,540,000,000 1,490,000,000

                                                   Total Capital and Liabilities   2,677,528,140  2,833,166,827 

PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LIMITED.
 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2023

Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Signed as per annexed report of even date

Place: Dhaka 
Dated: 31 July 2024
DVC: 2407310908AS875658

Ajit Kumar Paul FCA
Managing Partner

ICAB Enrollment No: 0908
Pinaki & Company

 Chartered Accountants

Chief Financial Officer            Chief Executive Officer                Director                 Director               Chairman
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20222023
Amount in Taka

PROPERTY AND ASSETS Notes

Loan on Policies within their surrender value 14.0  223,167 255,656 
Investments  15.0 472,579,704 468,582,410 
Un-realized Loss on Investment 15.02.01  27,579,553  76,771,912 
Outstanding Premium 16.0  40,681,478 62,969,623 
Profit, Dividend & Rent Accrued but not Due 17.0  14,113,604 14,221,471 
Advances, Deposits and Prepayments 18.0  388,855,221 363,488,203

Cash, Bank and Other Balances   89,751,852  180,975,763 
Fixed Deposit with Banks 19.0  30,912,900  25,565,609 
SND & CD with Banks 20.0  58,807,321  153,786,220 
Cash in Hand   31,631  1,623,934 

Other Assets   1,643,743,560  1,665,901,788 
Padma Life Tower & other Fixed Assets (At Cost Less Depreciation) 21.0  1,642,257,868  1,665,006,375 
Printing, Stationery & Stamps  in Hand 22.0  1,485,692 895,413 

                                                       Total Property and Assets   2,677,528,140  2,833,166,827 

PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LIMITED.
 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2023

Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Signed as per annexed report of even date

Place: Dhaka 
Dated: 31 July 2024
DVC: 2407310908AS875658

Ajit Kumar Paul FCA
Managing Partner

ICAB Enrollment No: 0908
Pinaki & Company

 Chartered Accountants

Chief Financial Officer            Chief Executive Officer                Director                 Director               Chairman
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20222023
Amount in Taka

PARTICULARS Notes

Balance of Fund at the Beginning of the Year   (2,338,901,846)  124,630,989 
Less- Prior Adjustment (Under provision of Commission)   (40,136,676)  (1,895,422,169)
Less- Prior Adjustment (Over provision of premium Income)   -   (209,108,077)
Restated Balance as on 01.01.2023   (2,379,038,522)  (1,979,899,258)

Premium Less Re-Insurance
Total First Year Premium 23.0  36,642,813  142,525,759 
First Year Premium (Ekok Bima)   34,522,287  136,675,725 
First Year Premium (Khudra Bima)   2,120,526  5,850,034 

Total Renewal Premium   75,107,378  71,319,707 
Renewal Premium (Ekok Bima)   61,136,911  49,441,939 
Renewal Premium (Khudra Bima)   13,970,467  21,877,768 

Total Conventional Premium (First Year +Renewal)   111,750,191  213,845,466 

Total Group Insurance Premium   99,419,354  102,847,885 
Group Insurance Premium   99,419,354  102,847,885 

Gross Premium  (Conventional + Group)   211,169,545  316,693,351 
Less: Re-Insurance premium   41,560  370,362 

Net Premium   211,127,985  316,322,989 

Total Other Income   59,541,341  70,717,107 
Profit, Dividend and Rent 24.0  54,575,312  63,536,199 
Other Income 25.0  4,966,029  7,180,908 

Total Income (Current Year)   270,669,326  387,040,096 

Grand Total (Beginning Fun + Current Year Income)   (2,108,369,195)  (1,592,859,162)

PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LIMITED.
  LIFE REVENUE ACCOUNT

for the year ended 31 December 2023
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20222023
Amount in Taka

PARTICULARS Notes

First Year Premium, Where the Maximum Premium Paying Period is -     
Single   10,323,567  25,153,407 
Two Years   -  -   
Three Years   -  402,472 
Four Years   94,950  618,955 
Five Years    1,762,089  2,504,340 
Six Years   1,058,228  1,068,386 
Seven Years   -  109,068 
Eight Years   1,624,854  2,628,144 
Nine Years   22,464  71,446 
Ten Years   7,039,628  14,333,206 
Eleven Years   43,663  408,676 
Twelve Years or over   14,673,370  95,227,659 
(Including Throughout Life)   
   36,642,813  142,525,759 
Claim Under Policies (Including Provision for Claim Due
or Intimated) Less Re-Insurance   251,182,113  526,664,333 
By Death   28,546,247  35,383,775 
By Maturity   174,828,501  333,321,628 
By Survival Benefit   46,801,150  157,299,753 
By Surrender    1,006,215  659,177 

Expenses of Management   129,238,306  189,352,219 
Commission Expenses   45,092,354  82,873,683 
 (a) Commission to Insurance Agents (less that on Re-Insurance)   36,288,639  75,216,662 
 (b) Allowances and Commission other than Commission   8,803,715  7,657,021  
      Included in Sub-Item (a) above  

Other Management Expenses   84,145,952  106,478,536 
Salaries & Allowance (other than to agents and those contained
in the allowances and commission)   51,995,427  66,744,430 
Conveyance Bill   1,003,705  1,015,683 
Board & Other Meeting Fees   1,961,799  2,349,359 
Audit Fees   327,750  186,500 
Shariah Meeting Fees   -  52,800 

PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LIMITED.
  LIFE REVENUE ACCOUNT

for the year ended 31 December 2023
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20222023
Amount in Taka

PARTICULARS Notes

Medical Expenses   9,430  -   
Professional Fees & Legal Expenses   977,617  228,126 
Registration & Renewal Fees   366,428  251,552 
Advertisement & Publicity Expenses   145,572  202,723 
Printing Expenses   978,261  628,931 
Stationery Expenses   1,022,088  691,091 
Policy Stamp Expenses   370,008  402,507 
Revenue Stamp Expenses   120,000  290,420 
Postage & Courier Expenses   264,829  214,027 
Telephone & Fax Expenses   83,173  68,079 
Mobile & Internet Expenses   1,261,921  1,640,195 
UMP (IDRA) Expenses   704,421  492,245 
Training & Recruitment Expenses   144,226  41,400 
Office Rent Expenses   7,632,535  9,752,428 
Service Charge against Office Rent Expenses   -   1,650,616 
Office Maintenance Expenses (Repair & Maintenance Exp.)   1,928,856  1,316,119 
Gas, Water & Electricity Expenses   4,090,125  3,754,258 
Expenses agt. Electronic Items   267,364  299,839 
Car Fuel  Expenses   1,586,456  1,386,609 
Car Repair & Maintenance Expenses   995,216  909,804 
Car Renewal, Registration & Insurance Expenses   483,077  158,792 
Motor Car Insurance   48,741  -   
Bank Charges & Others Expenses   475,845  1,035,706 
Entertainment Expenses   1,119,207  1,180,749 
Fees, Donation  & Subscription Expenses   1,407,603  2,360,649 
Paper and periodicals   3,046  -   
Trade License Expenses   9,000  28,000 
License Expenses   579,356  -   
IT Expenses   1,228,115  176,611 
Actuarial Valuation Fee   -  1,150,000 
Cleaning & Washing Expenses   39,480  29,838 
Miscellaneous Expenses    -   
Rates, Tax & VAT   -  5,788,450 
Let Fee   448,272 
Others - Profit commission on Group Insurance   67,003  -   

PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LIMITED.
  LIFE REVENUE ACCOUNT

for the year ended 31 December 2023
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20222023
Amount in Taka

PARTICULARS Notes

OTHER EXPENSES   55,330,465  30,026,132 
Depreciation on Fixed Assets   28,738,191  30,026,132 
Realized Loss on Sale of Share   26,592,274  -   
Appropriation

Total Expenses (Current Year)   435,750,884  746,042,684 

Current Year Fund   (165,081,558)  (359,002,589)

Balance of Fund at the End of the Year as Shown in the   (2,544,120,079)  (2,338,901,846)
Balance Sheet 2023    

Grand Total (Closing Fund + Current Year Expenses)   (2,108,369,194)  (1,592,859,162)
 

PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LIMITED.
  LIFE REVENUE ACCOUNT

for the year ended 31 December 2023

Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Signed as per annexed report of even date

Place: Dhaka 
Dated: 31 July 2024
DVC: 2407310908AS875658

Ajit Kumar Paul FCA
Managing Partner

ICAB Enrollment No: 0908
Pinaki & Company

 Chartered Accountants

Chief Financial Officer            Chief Executive Officer                Director                 Director               Chairman
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20222023
Amount in Taka

PARTICULARS

A. ASSETS
 Loan on Insurer's policies within their surrender value   223,167 255,656 
 Investments   472,579,704  468,582,410 
 Un-realized Loss on Investment   27,579,553  76,771,913 
 Outstanding Premium   40,681,478  62,969,623 
 Profit, Dividend & Rent accrued but not due   14,113,604  14,221,472 
 Advances, Deposits & Prepayments   388,855,223  363,488,203 
 Cash, Bank and Other Balances   89,751,852 180,975,763 
 Fixed Assets (at cost less depreciation)   1,642,257,868  1,665,006,375 
 Printing & Stationery Stamps  in Hand   1,485,692 895,413 
    2,677,528,140  2,833,166,826 
B. LIABILITIES
 Amount due to other persons or bodies carrying on insurance business  - 323,030 
 Estimated Liabilities in Respect of Outstanding claims whether due or intimated  2,256,624,639 2,256,634,639 
 Revaluation Reserve   889,663,515  -   
 Sundry Creditors   103,137,933  103,225,355 
 Sadaka Fund (Padma Welfare Fund)   43,422,132  43,422,132 
 Long Term Loan   1,540,000,000  1,490,000,000 
    3,943,184,704  3,893,605,156 
C. Gross Fund (A - B)   (1,265,656,564)  (1,060,438,329)
D. Shareholder's Capital (Paid-up Capital)   388,800,000 388,800,000 
E. Revaluation Reserve   889,663,515  889,663,515 
E. Life Insurance Fund as at 31 December 2023 (C - D)   (2,544,120,079)  (2,338,901,844)

PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LIMITED.
  STATEMENT OF LIFE INSURANCE FUND

as at 31 December 2023
(As per Sub-Section-2 of Section-26 of Insurance Act 2010)

Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Signed as per annexed report of even date

Chief Financial Officer            Chief Executive Officer                Director                 Director               Chairman



62  ||  ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Signed as per annexed report of even date

Class of Assets  Book Value  Market Value Remarks

INVESTMENTS   500,159,257 545,354,322 Realizable Value

CASH, BANK & OTHER BALANCES  89,751,852  180,975,763 
Cash in Fixed Deposit with Banks  30,912,900 25,565,609 Book Value
Current & STD Accounts with Banks  58,807,321  153,786,220 Book Value
Cash in Hand  31,631 1,623,934 Book Value

Interest, Dividend & Rent Accrued but not due  14,113,604  14,221,471 Realizable Value

OTHER ASSETS  2,073,503,426  2,092,615,270 
Outstanding Premium  40,681,478  62,969,623 Realizable Value
Printing, Stationery & Stamps in Hand  1,485,692  895,413 At Cost
Advances, Deposits & Prepayments  388,855,221  363,488,203 Realizable Value
Loan on policies  223,167  255,656 Realizable Value
Fixed Assets (At cost less depreciation)  1,642,257,868  1,665,006,375 Written Down Value

TOTAL  2,677,528,140 2,833,166,827   

PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LIMITED.
  FORM "AA"

CLASSIFIED SUMMARY OF THE ASSETS
as at 31 December 2023

Chief Financial Officer            Chief Executive Officer                Director                 Director               Chairman
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PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LIMITED.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2023

PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LIMITED.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Signed as per annexed report of even date

Chief Financial Officer            Chief Executive Officer                Director                 Director               Chairman
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20222023
Amount in Taka

PARTICULARS Notes

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Collection from Premium 26.0  233,457,690  253,353,366 
Investment Income and other Income Received 27.0  59,649,208  73,725,060 
Claim payment 28.0  (251,192,113)  (529,713,998)
Payment for Management Expenses and others 29.0  (136,343,436)  (179,693,592)
Less- Prior Adjustment (Under provision of Commission)   (40,136,676)  -   

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities   (134,565,327)  (382,329,164)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Fixed Assets 30.0  (6,897,045)  (4,461,315)
Disposal of Fixed Asset 31.0  4,235,755  2,050,000 
Investment Made during the Period 32.0  (3,997,294)  167,904,449 
Net Cash Flows Used by Investing Activities   (6,658,584)  165,493,134 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long Term Borrowing    50,000,000  250,000,000 
Net Cash Flows Used by Financing Activities   50,000,000  250,000,000 

Net Increase/Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents   (91,223,911)  33,163,970 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Period   180,975,763  147,811,792 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period   89,751,852  180,975,763 
 

PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LIMITED.
  STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2023

Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Signed as per annexed report of even date

Chief Financial Officer            Chief Executive Officer                Director                 Director               Chairman
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PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LIMITED.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited was incorporated on April 26, 2000 as a Public Limited 
Company under the Companies act 1994 and was registered with the Department of Insurance on 
April 30, 2000. The Company is engaged in Life Insurance Business.
The Company went for public issue in March 2012 and the Shares of the Company are listed in 
both Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd and Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

2.  COMPONENTS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
     The Financial Statements include the following Components:
 i) Statement of Financial Position
 ii) Life Revenue Accounts
 iii) Statement of Cash Flow
 iv) Changes in shareholder Equity and
 v) Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
 vi) Classified Summary of Assets (Form AA)
 vii) Statement of Life Insurance Fund

3.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The following underlying assumptions, measurement bases, laws, rules, regulations and 
accounting pronouncements have been considered in preparing the Financial Statements:

 • Going concern
 • Accrual unless stated otherwise (except branch office)
 • Historical cost Convention
 • The Insurance Act. 2010 as amended
 • The Insurance Rule 1958
 • The Companies Act. 1994
 • The Securities and Exchange Commission Rules-1987
 • The Income Tax Act 2023
 • The International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Bangladesh 
(ICAB)

 • Any other applicable legislation.

Application of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
The Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards that are applicable for the financial statements 
for the year under review, include the following:

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.01 Revenue recognition

The revenue in recognized after satisfying all the conditions for revenue recognition as provided 
IFRS 15: New business premiums are recognized once the related policies/First Premium Receipts 
(FPR) have been issued and the premiums received by the Company. Premium received before 
issuance of FPR are recognized as liability. Renewal outstanding premium under the policies are 
recognized as income within financial period of which premium are subsequently received.

4.02 Date of Authorization of Financial Statements

The Board of Directors has approved these financial statements 29 June 2024

4.03 Going Concern

The Financial statements of the company are prepared on a going concern basis. As per 
management assessment there are no material uncertainties related to events or conditions which 
may cast significant doubt upon company's ability to continue as a going concern. Besides, the 
management is not aware of any other material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon 
the company's ability to continue as a going concern

4.04 Investments

i) Investment in Govt. Securities

 Investments in Govt. Securities are recognized as per the guidelines of IFRS-39. Profit 
on investments is accounted for on accrual basis.

ii) Investment in Shares
  Investment in Shares is considered at cost price at Balance Sheet date. Unrealized loss 

due to fall of Market Price i.e.; Difference between cost price and market price is 
considered separately as Un- realized Gain/(Loss) on Investment.

4.05 Depreciation on Fixed Assets

Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been calculated adopting diminishing balance method on all 
classes and on the estimated useful life of Fixed Assets. Methods and rates of providing 
depreciation are consistently applied in relation to previous year (s).

4.06 Contingent Liability
The company has the following contingent liabilities as on 31st December 2023.

4.07 Bank Account
We have no bank Account except mentioned bank Account in the Financial position of the 
company.

4.08 EPS & Net Assets Value
we could not calculate Earnings per share and Net Asset Value due to lack of update Actuarial 
valuation report.

4.09 Inventories
Inventories comprising of Printing Materials, Stocks of Stationery and Stamps have been valued 
at lower of cost and net realizable value as outlined in IAS-2.

4.10 Taxation

Provision for taxation is based on taxable income determined under the Fourth Schedule of the 
Income Tax Ordinance on the basis of Actuarial Valuation Report and the Accounts.

Tax provision has not been made in the financial statements during the year due to business 
recession and no actuarial valuation has been conducted since 2017.

As the profits and gains from Life Insurance Business are determined under the 4th Schedule of 
the ITO, the Management feels it is not necessary to make estimate of deferred Tax Assets/ 
Liabilities at this stage as per provision of IAS-12.

4.11 Commission

Commission to Insurance Agents (less that received on Re-Insurance) represents First Year 
Commission, Renewal Commission and Group Commission. Allowance and Commission (Other 
than Commission to Insurance Agents less that on Reinsurance) represent Filed Officers Salary 
and Allowances including incentive Bonus.

4.12 Risk and uncertainties for use of estimates in preparation of Financial Statements

Preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with the Bangladesh Accounting Standards 
requires management to make estimates and assumption that effect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statement and revenue and expenses during the period reported. Actual result could differ from 
those estimates. Estimates are used for accounting of certain items such as long-term contracts, 
depreciation and amortization, employees benefit plans, taxes, reserves and contingencies.

4.13 Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared on Direct Method in accordance with IAS-7.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities have been presented under Direct Method as outlined in the 
Securities and Exchange Rules 1987.

Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, Cash at Banks including Fixed Deposits and 
other balances which were available for use of the Company without any restriction and it also 
includes Collection in hand which are fully collected subsequently.

4.14 Employees' Benefit Plans IAS-19

        ii)  Gratuity

According to management decision Gratuity Fund Payable Amounting Tk. 20, 
488,642/-will be transfer to Gratuity Fund near future.

4.15 Responsibility for Preparation and presentation of Financial Statements

The Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and presentation of Financial 
Statements under section 183 of the Companies Act. 1994 and as per the provision of The 
Framework for the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements issued by the international 
Accounting Standards Committee (IASC) as adopted by the institute of the Chartered Accountants 
of Bangladesh (ICAB).

4.16 Claims

Survival Benefit, claims and annuities are accounted for when due for payment. Death claims and 
all others claims are accounted for when intimated. Provision for outstanding death claims has 
been made based on the intimation of the death claims received up to 31 December 2023.

4.17 Reporting period

Financial Statement of the Company covers one Calendar year from January 01 to December 31, 
2023.

4.18 Comparative

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the previous years for all numerical 
information in the financial statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it 
is relevant for understanding of the current year Financial Statements.

Previous year’s figure has been re-arranged whenever considered necessary to ensure better 
comparability with the current year presentation without causing any impact on the profit and 
value of assets and liability as reported in the Financial Statement.

4.20 Reporting currency

The figures in the financial statement represent Bangladesh Currency (Taka). Figures have been 
rounded off to the nearest Taka.
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PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LIMITED.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited was incorporated on April 26, 2000 as a Public Limited 
Company under the Companies act 1994 and was registered with the Department of Insurance on 
April 30, 2000. The Company is engaged in Life Insurance Business.
The Company went for public issue in March 2012 and the Shares of the Company are listed in 
both Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd and Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

2.  COMPONENTS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
     The Financial Statements include the following Components:
 i) Statement of Financial Position
 ii) Life Revenue Accounts
 iii) Statement of Cash Flow
 iv) Changes in shareholder Equity and
 v) Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
 vi) Classified Summary of Assets (Form AA)
 vii) Statement of Life Insurance Fund

3.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The following underlying assumptions, measurement bases, laws, rules, regulations and 
accounting pronouncements have been considered in preparing the Financial Statements:

 • Going concern
 • Accrual unless stated otherwise (except branch office)
 • Historical cost Convention
 • The Insurance Act. 2010 as amended
 • The Insurance Rule 1958
 • The Companies Act. 1994
 • The Securities and Exchange Commission Rules-1987
 • The Income Tax Act 2023
 • The International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Bangladesh 
(ICAB)

 • Any other applicable legislation.

Application of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
The Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards that are applicable for the financial statements 
for the year under review, include the following:

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.01 Revenue recognition

The revenue in recognized after satisfying all the conditions for revenue recognition as provided 
IFRS 15: New business premiums are recognized once the related policies/First Premium Receipts 
(FPR) have been issued and the premiums received by the Company. Premium received before 
issuance of FPR are recognized as liability. Renewal outstanding premium under the policies are 
recognized as income within financial period of which premium are subsequently received.

4.02 Date of Authorization of Financial Statements

The Board of Directors has approved these financial statements 29 June 2024

4.03 Going Concern

The Financial statements of the company are prepared on a going concern basis. As per 
management assessment there are no material uncertainties related to events or conditions which 
may cast significant doubt upon company's ability to continue as a going concern. Besides, the 
management is not aware of any other material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon 
the company's ability to continue as a going concern

4.04 Investments

i) Investment in Govt. Securities

 Investments in Govt. Securities are recognized as per the guidelines of IFRS-39. Profit 
on investments is accounted for on accrual basis.

ii) Investment in Shares
  Investment in Shares is considered at cost price at Balance Sheet date. Unrealized loss 

due to fall of Market Price i.e.; Difference between cost price and market price is 
considered separately as Un- realized Gain/(Loss) on Investment.

4.05 Depreciation on Fixed Assets

Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been calculated adopting diminishing balance method on all 
classes and on the estimated useful life of Fixed Assets. Methods and rates of providing 
depreciation are consistently applied in relation to previous year (s).

4.06 Contingent Liability
The company has the following contingent liabilities as on 31st December 2023.

4.07 Bank Account
We have no bank Account except mentioned bank Account in the Financial position of the 
company.

4.08 EPS & Net Assets Value
we could not calculate Earnings per share and Net Asset Value due to lack of update Actuarial 
valuation report.

4.09 Inventories
Inventories comprising of Printing Materials, Stocks of Stationery and Stamps have been valued 
at lower of cost and net realizable value as outlined in IAS-2.

4.10 Taxation

Provision for taxation is based on taxable income determined under the Fourth Schedule of the 
Income Tax Ordinance on the basis of Actuarial Valuation Report and the Accounts.

Tax provision has not been made in the financial statements during the year due to business 
recession and no actuarial valuation has been conducted since 2017.

As the profits and gains from Life Insurance Business are determined under the 4th Schedule of 
the ITO, the Management feels it is not necessary to make estimate of deferred Tax Assets/ 
Liabilities at this stage as per provision of IAS-12.

4.11 Commission

Commission to Insurance Agents (less that received on Re-Insurance) represents First Year 
Commission, Renewal Commission and Group Commission. Allowance and Commission (Other 
than Commission to Insurance Agents less that on Reinsurance) represent Filed Officers Salary 
and Allowances including incentive Bonus.

4.12 Risk and uncertainties for use of estimates in preparation of Financial Statements

Preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with the Bangladesh Accounting Standards 
requires management to make estimates and assumption that effect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statement and revenue and expenses during the period reported. Actual result could differ from 
those estimates. Estimates are used for accounting of certain items such as long-term contracts, 
depreciation and amortization, employees benefit plans, taxes, reserves and contingencies.

4.13 Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared on Direct Method in accordance with IAS-7.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities have been presented under Direct Method as outlined in the 
Securities and Exchange Rules 1987.

Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, Cash at Banks including Fixed Deposits and 
other balances which were available for use of the Company without any restriction and it also 
includes Collection in hand which are fully collected subsequently.

4.14 Employees' Benefit Plans IAS-19

        ii)  Gratuity

According to management decision Gratuity Fund Payable Amounting Tk. 20, 
488,642/-will be transfer to Gratuity Fund near future.

4.15 Responsibility for Preparation and presentation of Financial Statements

The Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and presentation of Financial 
Statements under section 183 of the Companies Act. 1994 and as per the provision of The 
Framework for the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements issued by the international 
Accounting Standards Committee (IASC) as adopted by the institute of the Chartered Accountants 
of Bangladesh (ICAB).

4.16 Claims

Survival Benefit, claims and annuities are accounted for when due for payment. Death claims and 
all others claims are accounted for when intimated. Provision for outstanding death claims has 
been made based on the intimation of the death claims received up to 31 December 2023.

4.17 Reporting period

Financial Statement of the Company covers one Calendar year from January 01 to December 31, 
2023.

4.18 Comparative

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the previous years for all numerical 
information in the financial statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it 
is relevant for understanding of the current year Financial Statements.

Previous year’s figure has been re-arranged whenever considered necessary to ensure better 
comparability with the current year presentation without causing any impact on the profit and 
value of assets and liability as reported in the Financial Statement.

4.20 Reporting currency

The figures in the financial statement represent Bangladesh Currency (Taka). Figures have been 
rounded off to the nearest Taka.
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PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LIMITED.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited was incorporated on April 26, 2000 as a Public Limited 
Company under the Companies act 1994 and was registered with the Department of Insurance on 
April 30, 2000. The Company is engaged in Life Insurance Business.
The Company went for public issue in March 2012 and the Shares of the Company are listed in 
both Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd and Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

2.  COMPONENTS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
     The Financial Statements include the following Components:
 i) Statement of Financial Position
 ii) Life Revenue Accounts
 iii) Statement of Cash Flow
 iv) Changes in shareholder Equity and
 v) Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
 vi) Classified Summary of Assets (Form AA)
 vii) Statement of Life Insurance Fund

3.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The following underlying assumptions, measurement bases, laws, rules, regulations and 
accounting pronouncements have been considered in preparing the Financial Statements:

 • Going concern
 • Accrual unless stated otherwise (except branch office)
 • Historical cost Convention
 • The Insurance Act. 2010 as amended
 • The Insurance Rule 1958
 • The Companies Act. 1994
 • The Securities and Exchange Commission Rules-1987
 • The Income Tax Act 2023
 • The International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Bangladesh 
(ICAB)

 • Any other applicable legislation.

Application of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
The Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards that are applicable for the financial statements 
for the year under review, include the following:

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.01 Revenue recognition

The revenue in recognized after satisfying all the conditions for revenue recognition as provided 
IFRS 15: New business premiums are recognized once the related policies/First Premium Receipts 
(FPR) have been issued and the premiums received by the Company. Premium received before 
issuance of FPR are recognized as liability. Renewal outstanding premium under the policies are 
recognized as income within financial period of which premium are subsequently received.

4.02 Date of Authorization of Financial Statements

The Board of Directors has approved these financial statements 29 June 2024

4.03 Going Concern

The Financial statements of the company are prepared on a going concern basis. As per 
management assessment there are no material uncertainties related to events or conditions which 
may cast significant doubt upon company's ability to continue as a going concern. Besides, the 
management is not aware of any other material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon 
the company's ability to continue as a going concern

4.04 Investments

i) Investment in Govt. Securities

 Investments in Govt. Securities are recognized as per the guidelines of IFRS-39. Profit 
on investments is accounted for on accrual basis.

ii) Investment in Shares
  Investment in Shares is considered at cost price at Balance Sheet date. Unrealized loss 

due to fall of Market Price i.e.; Difference between cost price and market price is 
considered separately as Un- realized Gain/(Loss) on Investment.

4.05 Depreciation on Fixed Assets

Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been calculated adopting diminishing balance method on all 
classes and on the estimated useful life of Fixed Assets. Methods and rates of providing 
depreciation are consistently applied in relation to previous year (s).

4.06 Contingent Liability
The company has the following contingent liabilities as on 31st December 2023.

4.07 Bank Account
We have no bank Account except mentioned bank Account in the Financial position of the 
company.

4.08 EPS & Net Assets Value
we could not calculate Earnings per share and Net Asset Value due to lack of update Actuarial 
valuation report.

4.09 Inventories
Inventories comprising of Printing Materials, Stocks of Stationery and Stamps have been valued 
at lower of cost and net realizable value as outlined in IAS-2.

4.10 Taxation

Provision for taxation is based on taxable income determined under the Fourth Schedule of the 
Income Tax Ordinance on the basis of Actuarial Valuation Report and the Accounts.

Tax provision has not been made in the financial statements during the year due to business 
recession and no actuarial valuation has been conducted since 2017.

As the profits and gains from Life Insurance Business are determined under the 4th Schedule of 
the ITO, the Management feels it is not necessary to make estimate of deferred Tax Assets/ 
Liabilities at this stage as per provision of IAS-12.

4.11 Commission

Commission to Insurance Agents (less that received on Re-Insurance) represents First Year 
Commission, Renewal Commission and Group Commission. Allowance and Commission (Other 
than Commission to Insurance Agents less that on Reinsurance) represent Filed Officers Salary 
and Allowances including incentive Bonus.

4.12 Risk and uncertainties for use of estimates in preparation of Financial Statements

Preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with the Bangladesh Accounting Standards 
requires management to make estimates and assumption that effect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statement and revenue and expenses during the period reported. Actual result could differ from 
those estimates. Estimates are used for accounting of certain items such as long-term contracts, 
depreciation and amortization, employees benefit plans, taxes, reserves and contingencies.

4.13 Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared on Direct Method in accordance with IAS-7.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities have been presented under Direct Method as outlined in the 
Securities and Exchange Rules 1987.

Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, Cash at Banks including Fixed Deposits and 
other balances which were available for use of the Company without any restriction and it also 
includes Collection in hand which are fully collected subsequently.

4.14 Employees' Benefit Plans IAS-19

        ii)  Gratuity

According to management decision Gratuity Fund Payable Amounting Tk. 20, 
488,642/-will be transfer to Gratuity Fund near future.

4.15 Responsibility for Preparation and presentation of Financial Statements

The Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and presentation of Financial 
Statements under section 183 of the Companies Act. 1994 and as per the provision of The 
Framework for the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements issued by the international 
Accounting Standards Committee (IASC) as adopted by the institute of the Chartered Accountants 
of Bangladesh (ICAB).

4.16 Claims

Survival Benefit, claims and annuities are accounted for when due for payment. Death claims and 
all others claims are accounted for when intimated. Provision for outstanding death claims has 
been made based on the intimation of the death claims received up to 31 December 2023.

4.17 Reporting period

Financial Statement of the Company covers one Calendar year from January 01 to December 31, 
2023.

4.18 Comparative

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the previous years for all numerical 
information in the financial statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it 
is relevant for understanding of the current year Financial Statements.

Previous year’s figure has been re-arranged whenever considered necessary to ensure better 
comparability with the current year presentation without causing any impact on the profit and 
value of assets and liability as reported in the Financial Statement.

4.20 Reporting currency

The figures in the financial statement represent Bangladesh Currency (Taka). Figures have been 
rounded off to the nearest Taka.
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PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LIMITED.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited was incorporated on April 26, 2000 as a Public Limited 
Company under the Companies act 1994 and was registered with the Department of Insurance on 
April 30, 2000. The Company is engaged in Life Insurance Business.
The Company went for public issue in March 2012 and the Shares of the Company are listed in 
both Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd and Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

2.  COMPONENTS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
     The Financial Statements include the following Components:
 i) Statement of Financial Position
 ii) Life Revenue Accounts
 iii) Statement of Cash Flow
 iv) Changes in shareholder Equity and
 v) Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
 vi) Classified Summary of Assets (Form AA)
 vii) Statement of Life Insurance Fund

3.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The following underlying assumptions, measurement bases, laws, rules, regulations and 
accounting pronouncements have been considered in preparing the Financial Statements:

 • Going concern
 • Accrual unless stated otherwise (except branch office)
 • Historical cost Convention
 • The Insurance Act. 2010 as amended
 • The Insurance Rule 1958
 • The Companies Act. 1994
 • The Securities and Exchange Commission Rules-1987
 • The Income Tax Act 2023
 • The International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Bangladesh 
(ICAB)

 • Any other applicable legislation.

Application of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
The Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards that are applicable for the financial statements 
for the year under review, include the following:

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.01 Revenue recognition

The revenue in recognized after satisfying all the conditions for revenue recognition as provided 
IFRS 15: New business premiums are recognized once the related policies/First Premium Receipts 
(FPR) have been issued and the premiums received by the Company. Premium received before 
issuance of FPR are recognized as liability. Renewal outstanding premium under the policies are 
recognized as income within financial period of which premium are subsequently received.

4.02 Date of Authorization of Financial Statements

The Board of Directors has approved these financial statements 29 June 2024

4.03 Going Concern

The Financial statements of the company are prepared on a going concern basis. As per 
management assessment there are no material uncertainties related to events or conditions which 
may cast significant doubt upon company's ability to continue as a going concern. Besides, the 
management is not aware of any other material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon 
the company's ability to continue as a going concern

4.04 Investments

i) Investment in Govt. Securities

 Investments in Govt. Securities are recognized as per the guidelines of IFRS-39. Profit 
on investments is accounted for on accrual basis.

ii) Investment in Shares
  Investment in Shares is considered at cost price at Balance Sheet date. Unrealized loss 

due to fall of Market Price i.e.; Difference between cost price and market price is 
considered separately as Un- realized Gain/(Loss) on Investment.

4.05 Depreciation on Fixed Assets

Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been calculated adopting diminishing balance method on all 
classes and on the estimated useful life of Fixed Assets. Methods and rates of providing 
depreciation are consistently applied in relation to previous year (s).

4.06 Contingent Liability
The company has the following contingent liabilities as on 31st December 2023.

4.07 Bank Account
We have no bank Account except mentioned bank Account in the Financial position of the 
company.

4.08 EPS & Net Assets Value
we could not calculate Earnings per share and Net Asset Value due to lack of update Actuarial 
valuation report.

4.09 Inventories
Inventories comprising of Printing Materials, Stocks of Stationery and Stamps have been valued 
at lower of cost and net realizable value as outlined in IAS-2.

4.10 Taxation

Provision for taxation is based on taxable income determined under the Fourth Schedule of the 
Income Tax Ordinance on the basis of Actuarial Valuation Report and the Accounts.

Tax provision has not been made in the financial statements during the year due to business 
recession and no actuarial valuation has been conducted since 2017.

As the profits and gains from Life Insurance Business are determined under the 4th Schedule of 
the ITO, the Management feels it is not necessary to make estimate of deferred Tax Assets/ 
Liabilities at this stage as per provision of IAS-12.

4.11 Commission

Commission to Insurance Agents (less that received on Re-Insurance) represents First Year 
Commission, Renewal Commission and Group Commission. Allowance and Commission (Other 
than Commission to Insurance Agents less that on Reinsurance) represent Filed Officers Salary 
and Allowances including incentive Bonus.

4.12 Risk and uncertainties for use of estimates in preparation of Financial Statements

Preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with the Bangladesh Accounting Standards 
requires management to make estimates and assumption that effect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statement and revenue and expenses during the period reported. Actual result could differ from 
those estimates. Estimates are used for accounting of certain items such as long-term contracts, 
depreciation and amortization, employees benefit plans, taxes, reserves and contingencies.

4.13 Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared on Direct Method in accordance with IAS-7.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities have been presented under Direct Method as outlined in the 
Securities and Exchange Rules 1987.

Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, Cash at Banks including Fixed Deposits and 
other balances which were available for use of the Company without any restriction and it also 
includes Collection in hand which are fully collected subsequently.

4.14 Employees' Benefit Plans IAS-19

        ii)  Gratuity

According to management decision Gratuity Fund Payable Amounting Tk. 20, 
488,642/-will be transfer to Gratuity Fund near future.

4.15 Responsibility for Preparation and presentation of Financial Statements

The Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and presentation of Financial 
Statements under section 183 of the Companies Act. 1994 and as per the provision of The 
Framework for the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements issued by the international 
Accounting Standards Committee (IASC) as adopted by the institute of the Chartered Accountants 
of Bangladesh (ICAB).

4.16 Claims

Survival Benefit, claims and annuities are accounted for when due for payment. Death claims and 
all others claims are accounted for when intimated. Provision for outstanding death claims has 
been made based on the intimation of the death claims received up to 31 December 2023.

4.17 Reporting period

Financial Statement of the Company covers one Calendar year from January 01 to December 31, 
2023.

4.18 Comparative

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the previous years for all numerical 
information in the financial statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it 
is relevant for understanding of the current year Financial Statements.

Previous year’s figure has been re-arranged whenever considered necessary to ensure better 
comparability with the current year presentation without causing any impact on the profit and 
value of assets and liability as reported in the Financial Statement.

4.20 Reporting currency

The figures in the financial statement represent Bangladesh Currency (Taka). Figures have been 
rounded off to the nearest Taka.
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PADMA ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LIMITED.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited was incorporated on April 26, 2000 as a Public Limited 
Company under the Companies act 1994 and was registered with the Department of Insurance on 
April 30, 2000. The Company is engaged in Life Insurance Business.
The Company went for public issue in March 2012 and the Shares of the Company are listed in 
both Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd and Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

2.  COMPONENTS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
     The Financial Statements include the following Components:
 i) Statement of Financial Position
 ii) Life Revenue Accounts
 iii) Statement of Cash Flow
 iv) Changes in shareholder Equity and
 v) Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
 vi) Classified Summary of Assets (Form AA)
 vii) Statement of Life Insurance Fund

3.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The following underlying assumptions, measurement bases, laws, rules, regulations and 
accounting pronouncements have been considered in preparing the Financial Statements:

 • Going concern
 • Accrual unless stated otherwise (except branch office)
 • Historical cost Convention
 • The Insurance Act. 2010 as amended
 • The Insurance Rule 1958
 • The Companies Act. 1994
 • The Securities and Exchange Commission Rules-1987
 • The Income Tax Act 2023
 • The International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Bangladesh 
(ICAB)

 • Any other applicable legislation.

Application of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
The Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards that are applicable for the financial statements 
for the year under review, include the following:

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.01 Revenue recognition

The revenue in recognized after satisfying all the conditions for revenue recognition as provided 
IFRS 15: New business premiums are recognized once the related policies/First Premium Receipts 
(FPR) have been issued and the premiums received by the Company. Premium received before 
issuance of FPR are recognized as liability. Renewal outstanding premium under the policies are 
recognized as income within financial period of which premium are subsequently received.

4.02 Date of Authorization of Financial Statements

The Board of Directors has approved these financial statements 29 June 2024

4.03 Going Concern

The Financial statements of the company are prepared on a going concern basis. As per 
management assessment there are no material uncertainties related to events or conditions which 
may cast significant doubt upon company's ability to continue as a going concern. Besides, the 
management is not aware of any other material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon 
the company's ability to continue as a going concern

4.04 Investments

i) Investment in Govt. Securities

 Investments in Govt. Securities are recognized as per the guidelines of IFRS-39. Profit 
on investments is accounted for on accrual basis.

ii) Investment in Shares
  Investment in Shares is considered at cost price at Balance Sheet date. Unrealized loss 

due to fall of Market Price i.e.; Difference between cost price and market price is 
considered separately as Un- realized Gain/(Loss) on Investment.

4.05 Depreciation on Fixed Assets

Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been calculated adopting diminishing balance method on all 
classes and on the estimated useful life of Fixed Assets. Methods and rates of providing 
depreciation are consistently applied in relation to previous year (s).

4.06 Contingent Liability
The company has the following contingent liabilities as on 31st December 2023.

4.07 Bank Account
We have no bank Account except mentioned bank Account in the Financial position of the 
company.

4.08 EPS & Net Assets Value
we could not calculate Earnings per share and Net Asset Value due to lack of update Actuarial 
valuation report.

4.09 Inventories
Inventories comprising of Printing Materials, Stocks of Stationery and Stamps have been valued 
at lower of cost and net realizable value as outlined in IAS-2.

4.10 Taxation

Provision for taxation is based on taxable income determined under the Fourth Schedule of the 
Income Tax Ordinance on the basis of Actuarial Valuation Report and the Accounts.

Tax provision has not been made in the financial statements during the year due to business 
recession and no actuarial valuation has been conducted since 2017.

As the profits and gains from Life Insurance Business are determined under the 4th Schedule of 
the ITO, the Management feels it is not necessary to make estimate of deferred Tax Assets/ 
Liabilities at this stage as per provision of IAS-12.

4.11 Commission

Commission to Insurance Agents (less that received on Re-Insurance) represents First Year 
Commission, Renewal Commission and Group Commission. Allowance and Commission (Other 
than Commission to Insurance Agents less that on Reinsurance) represent Filed Officers Salary 
and Allowances including incentive Bonus.

4.12 Risk and uncertainties for use of estimates in preparation of Financial Statements

Preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with the Bangladesh Accounting Standards 
requires management to make estimates and assumption that effect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statement and revenue and expenses during the period reported. Actual result could differ from 
those estimates. Estimates are used for accounting of certain items such as long-term contracts, 
depreciation and amortization, employees benefit plans, taxes, reserves and contingencies.

4.13 Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared on Direct Method in accordance with IAS-7.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities have been presented under Direct Method as outlined in the 
Securities and Exchange Rules 1987.

Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, Cash at Banks including Fixed Deposits and 
other balances which were available for use of the Company without any restriction and it also 
includes Collection in hand which are fully collected subsequently.

4.14 Employees' Benefit Plans IAS-19

        ii)  Gratuity

According to management decision Gratuity Fund Payable Amounting Tk. 20, 
488,642/-will be transfer to Gratuity Fund near future.

4.15 Responsibility for Preparation and presentation of Financial Statements

The Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and presentation of Financial 
Statements under section 183 of the Companies Act. 1994 and as per the provision of The 
Framework for the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements issued by the international 
Accounting Standards Committee (IASC) as adopted by the institute of the Chartered Accountants 
of Bangladesh (ICAB).

4.16 Claims

Survival Benefit, claims and annuities are accounted for when due for payment. Death claims and 
all others claims are accounted for when intimated. Provision for outstanding death claims has 
been made based on the intimation of the death claims received up to 31 December 2023.

4.17 Reporting period

Financial Statement of the Company covers one Calendar year from January 01 to December 31, 
2023.

4.18 Comparative

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the previous years for all numerical 
information in the financial statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it 
is relevant for understanding of the current year Financial Statements.

Previous year’s figure has been re-arranged whenever considered necessary to ensure better 
comparability with the current year presentation without causing any impact on the profit and 
value of assets and liability as reported in the Financial Statement.

4.20 Reporting currency

The figures in the financial statement represent Bangladesh Currency (Taka). Figures have been 
rounded off to the nearest Taka.
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20222023
Amount in Taka

5.0 SHARE CAPITAL
 Authorized Capital
 100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10 each.  1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000
 
 Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up
 38,880,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10 each fully paid-up   388,800,000  388,800,000

 Distribution Schedule of Paid-up Capital

As per listing Regulations 20(2) of the Stock Exchange regarding shareholding position of different categories 
of investors and the number of shareholders and percentage as on 31 December 2023 is given below:
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6.0 As per decision of the 179th  meeting of Board of Directors held on 24 March, 2022 Padma Tower (14 storied 
Head Office Building situated in 115, Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue, Bangla Motor, Dhaka-1000) was revalued at an 
amount of tk. 1,445,208,625 as per valuation report (attached in Annexure-B) with effect from against book value of 
TK.  555,545,110 as on 31 December, 2021 posting a revaluation surplus of TK. 889,663,515.

7.0 LIFE INSURANCE FUND
 This consists of accumulated balance of revenue surplus
 Opening Balance   (2,338,901,845)  124,630,990 
 Add: Increase/(Decrease) in Life Revenue Account during the year  (205,218,234)  (2,463,532,834)

    (2,544,120,079)  (2,338,901,845)

8.0 SADAKA FUND (PADMA WELFARE FUND)
 Opening Balance   43,422,132  43,422,132 
 Add: Transfer from BGTB Profit   -  -   
    43,422,132  43,422,132 

9.0 AMOUNT DUE TO OTHER PERSONS OR BODIES CARRYING ON INSURANCE BUSINESS
The amount represents the balance due to Barents Reinsurance SA, Luxembourg Brance on account of share of 
re-insurance commission and share of claim after adjustment of re-insurance premium due to them. The balance 
to Barents Reinsurance SA, Luxembourg Brance has been accounted for the year ended 31 December 2022.

 Opening Balance   323,030  345,055 
 Add: Intimated during the year   -  71,514 
    323,030  416,569 

 Less: Paid during the year   323,030  93,539 
 Less: Prior year adjustment during the year   -  -   
    -  323,030 

10.0 ESTIMATED LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF OUTSTANDING CLAIMS WHETHER DUE OR 
INTIMATED

a) Death Claims       
 Opening Balance   6,845,750  23,681,449 
 Add: Claim intimated during the year   28,546,247  35,383,775 
    35,391,997  59,065,224 
 Less: Re-Insurance claim received  -  -   
    35,391,997  59,065,224 
 Less: Paid during the year   28,546,247  52,219,474 
 Closing Balance    6,845,750  6,845,750 

20222023
Amount in Taka
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b) Maturity Claims
 Opening Balance   2,091,967,819  330,781,407 
 Add: Prior Year Adjustment ( Under Provision of Claims)   -  1,895,422,169 
 Restated Opening Balance as on 01.01.2022   2,091,967,819  2,226,203,576 
 Add: Claim intimated during the year   174,828,501  333,321,628 
    2,266,796,320  2,559,525,204 
 Less: Paid during the year   161,059,916  467,557,385 
 Closing Balance    2,105,736,404  2,091,967,819 

c) Survival Benefit
 Opening Balance   151,245,750  2,776,170  
 Add: Claim intimated during the year   46,801,150  157,299,753
    198,046,900  160,075,923
 Less: Paid during the year   60,812,915  8,830,173
 Closing Balance    137,233,985  151,245,750
  
d) Surrender Claims
 Opening Balance   6,575,320  7,023,109 
 Add: Claim intimated during the year   1,006,215  659,177 
    7,581,535  7,682,286 
 Less: Paid during the year   773,035  1,106,966 
 Closing Balance    6,808,500  6,575,320 

 Total   2,256,624,639  2,256,634,639 

11.0 SUNDRY CREDITORS
 Audit Fees Payable   322,000  184,000 
  Reg. & Ren. Fees Payable   364,756  418,185 
` Telephone & Internet Bill Payable   30,189  30,189 
 Electricity, Gas & Water Bills Payable    564,146  239,390 
 Printing & Stationery Bill Payable   27,625  32,038 
 Office Rent Payable    721,096  2,228,601 
 Agency Commission Payable   6,187,228  1,326,710 
 Certificate & License Fee Payable   4,261,316  4,012,011 
 Staff Security Deposit Payable   6,226,428  5,938,428 
 Security Deposite for Motor Car   1,123,450  1,123,450 
 Security Deposit of Enlisted Supplier   294,379  294,379 
 Security for Office Rent   451,448  1,657,587 
 Other Security Deposit (Third Party) Payable   170,285  183,416 
 Travelling & Conveyance Bill Payable   68,677  68,677 
 Medical Expenses Payable  20,000  23,320 

20222023
Amount in Taka
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 Repair & Maintenance Bill Payable   35,518  38,151 
 Provision for Annual General Meeting Expense   50,000  50,000 
 Advance received against Higher purchase ( Car)    3,744,791  7,083,463 
 Tax at Source Payable    28,556,771  29,686,568 
 VAT at Source Payable   -  11,509 
 Office Expenses Payable   474,783  476,833 
 Gratuity Fund   20,488,642  22,988,642 
 Provision for Income Tax    15,510,000  15,510,000 
  S B Payable (Suspense)   4,032,787  2,163,705 
 Unclaimed Dividend   175,180  175,180 
 Actuarial Valuation Fee Payable   575,000  575,000 
 Provision for Salary (Dec-2023)   3,839,853  4,318,157 
 Commission Reserve (against 1st year commission)   4,821,585  2,387,766 
  Total    103,137,933 103,225,355 

12.0 PREMIUM DEPOSIT
 Balance break-up is as under :
 Opening Balance    -  -   
 Add: Addition during the year (1st year Premium)   -  -   
    -  -   
 Less: Realized & adjusted during the year   -  -   
 Closing Balance    -  -   

13.0 LONG TERM Borrowing (Non-cost Bearing)
 Unitex Petroleum Limited   308,000,000  298,000,000 
 Unitex LP Gas Limited   308,000,000  298,000,000 
 Crest Holding Limited   308,000,000  298,000,000 
 Pavilion Intl. Limited   308,000,000  298,000,000 
 Affinity Assets Limited   308,000,000  298,000,000 
  Total    1,540,000,000  1,490,000,000 

14.0 LOAN ON POLICIES
 This balance represent the amount sanctioned to  policy holders against  policies within their surrender value. 

 Opening Balance    255,656  342,445 
 Add: Payment during  the year   -  -   
    255,656  342,445 
 Less: Realized & adjusted during the year   32,489  86,789 
 Closing Balance    223,167  255,656 
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20222023
Amount in Taka

15.0 INVESTMENTS
 Investment in Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond (Note: 15.01)   238,300,000  237,700,000 

 Investment in Shares (At Cost /Market Price, which ever is Lower) 163,279,704  154,882,410 
 (Note: 15.02)

 Investment in Others   71,000,000  76,000,000 
 Al-Manar Hospital   21,000,000  21,000,000 
 Mutual Fund (UFS)   50,000,000  50,000,000 
 Nuvista Pvt. Ltd.   -  5,000,000 

 Total   472,579,704  468,582,410 

15.01 Investment in Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond   238,300,000  237,700,000 
 Statutory Deposit with Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond   222,700,000  222,700,000 
 Additional Investment in Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond   15,600,000  15,000,000 

"In compliance with section 23(1) of Insurance Act 2010, the amount of  BDT 8,00,000 has been deposited into   
Jamuna Bankwith interest  @ 7.89% dt. 22.07.2020  for 10 years  & BDT 1,38,00,000 has been deposited into   
Jamuna Bank  with interest @ 7.98% dt.27.04.2022 for purchase Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond and the amount of 
BDT 10,00,000 has been deposited into Bangladesh Bank for which the Bank has issued 15 years Bangladesh Govt. 
Treasury Bond dated 29.07.2015 in favor of the Company with interest @ 10.06% per annum.
In addition to an amount of BDT 22,27,00,000 has been Invested into Bangladesh Bank for which that the Bank has issued 
15 years Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond dated 27.04.2016  in favor of the Company with interest @ 7.79% per annum."

15.02 INVESTMENT IN SHARES
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20222023
Amount in Taka

15.02.01 Fair Value change Account 
 Market value as at 31.12.2023   163,279,704  154,882,410 
 Less : Book value at cost as at 31.12.2023   190,859,257  231,654,322 

 Unrealised Gain/Loss   (27,579,553)  (76,771,912)

16.0 OUTSTANDING PREMIUM
 Opening Balance    62,969,623  154,515,708 
 Add. Outstanding Premium for the year   40,681,478  62,969,623 
    103,651,101  217,485,331 
 Less. Realized & Adjusted During the year   62,969,623  154,515,708 
    40,681,478  62,969,623 

17.0 PROFIT, DIVIDEND & RENT ACCRUED
 Bangladesh Bank (BGTB)   12,960,889  12,724,605 
 MTDR   299,804  458,594 
   -  -   
 Re-Insurance Profit Commission   -  185,395 
 Office Rent Receivable   852,911  852,877 
 Total   14,113,604  14,221,471 

18.0 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
 Salary (Admin.)   96,000  50,000 
 Advance Paid against Office Rent   864,776  1,089,876 
 Adv.against  Income Tax (deduction at sources)   130,913,729  128,768,623 
 Receivable from Development Staff   27,161,835  27,131,878 
 Advance against Other Dev. Expenses (Agent Balance)   5,422,703  8,059,161 
 Advance Against Travelling & Conv. (Dev. & Admin)   2,346,843  1,077,707 
 Advance Against civil Works   196,522  5,296,500 
 Advance Against Padma Life Tower & other Fixed Assets   161,419,555  139,794,575 
 Advance Against Expenses   1,268,000
 Sundry Debtors   59,165,258  52,219,883 
 Total   388,855,221  363,488,203 

19.0 FIXED DEPOSIT WITH BANKS
 MTDR AGAINST GENERAL FUND     
 Social Islami Bank Ltd.   16,057,363  11,400,000 
 First Security Islami Bank Ltd.   14,855,537  14,165,609 

    30,912,900  25,565,609 
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20222023
Amount in Taka

20.0 SND/STD & CD ACCOUNTS WITH BANKS     
 Bank Balances   54,035,652  136,834,869
 Deposit with Securities Houses      4,771,669  16,951,351 
    58,807,321  153,786,220 

20.01 The bank balance consisting of  number of SND/STD and  number of CD Bank Accounts maintained with    
 different banks through the country.

21.0 PADMA LIFE TOWER & OTHER FIXED ASSETS SCHEDULE
 ( At Cost less Accumulated Depreciation)
A. COST:
 Opening Balance   2,135,407,573  2,134,616,258 
 Add: Addition during the year  6,897,045  4,461,315 
    2,142,304,618  2,139,077,573 
 Less: Disposal/Adjustment during the year  8,182,340  3,670,000 
 Closing Balance  2,134,122,278  2,135,407,573 

B. ACCUMULATED DEPRICIATION:
 Opening Balance   470,401,198  443,740,341 
 Add: Addition during the year   28,738,191  30,026,132 
    499,139,389  473,766,473 
 Less: Disposal/Adjustment during the year   7,274,979  3,365,275 
 Closing Balance   491,864,410  470,401,198 

 Fixed Asset (At cost less depreciation) (A-B)   1,642,257,868  1,665,006,375 
 Details are given in the fixed assets schedule (ANNEXURE - A).    

22.0 PRINTING,  STATIONERY & STAMPS IN HAND
 Printing Materials in Hand   1,059,327  699,717 
 Stationery in Hand   98,954  156,485 
 Stamps  in Hand   327,411  39,211 
 Total   1,485,692  895,413 

23.0 PREMIUM INCOME LESS RE-INSURANCE
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20222023
Amount in Taka

24.0 PROFIT, DIVIDEND & RENT
 Profit on Fixed Deposit with Banks   1,545,994  1,929,074 
 Profit on STD A/C with Banks  918,594  958,523 
 Profit on BGTB   18,945,535  17,348,330 
 Dividend Income   2,554,646  11,011,411 
 Income from Office Rent  30,408,726  32,160,966 
 Re-Insurance Profit Commission   201,817  127,895 
 Total  54,575,312  63,536,199 

25.0 OTHER INCOME
 Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets(Car) - Note : 25.01   3,728,802  1,745,275 
 Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (Furniture) - Note : 25.02   (400,408)
 Gain on Sale of Share  -  4,261,892 
 Service Charge   344,007  851,357 
 Printing Materials, Forms & Stamps   161,601  -   
 Miscellaneous   1,132,027  322,384 
 Total   4,966,029  7,180,908 

25.01  Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets (Old Car Sales)

25.02  Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets (Old Furniture)

      

26.0 COLLECTION FROM PREMIUM
 Gross Premium   211,169,545   
 Add: pevious year Outstanding Premium   62,969,623   
 Less: Current year Outstanding Premium   (40,681,478)  
 Total   233,457,690     

 Collection from Premium    
 Opening Balance of Outstanding Premium    154,515,708 
 Add: Premium Income    316,322,989 
 Less: Adjustment    (154,515,708)
 Less: Closing Balance of Outstanding Premium    (62,969,623)
 Total    253,353,366 
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20222023
Amount in Taka

27.0 INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME RECEIVED
 Opening Balance of Profit, Divedend & Rent Accrued   14,221,471  17,229,424 
 Add: Total Other Income   59,541,341  70,717,107 
 Less: Closing Balance of Profit, Divedend & Rent Accrued   (14,113,604)  (14,221,471)
 Total   59,649,208  73,725,060 

28.0 CLAIM PAYMENT
 Opening Balance of Estimated Liabilites in respect of Outstanding Claims  2,256,634,639  364,262,135 
 Add: Prior Year Adjustment ( Under Provision of Claim)   -  1,895,422,169 
 Restated Opening Balance as on 01.01.2023  2,256,634,639  2,259,684,304 
 Add: Provision of Claim  251,182,113  526,664,333 
 Less: Closing Balance of Estimated Liabilites in respect of Outstanding Claims  (2,256,624,639)  (2,256,634,639)
    251,192,113  529,713,998 

29.0 PAYMENT FOR MANAGEMENT EXPENSES AND OTHERS
 Payment for Management Expenses and others     
 Opening Balance of Creditor   103,225,355  97,637,027 
 Add: Expenses of Management During the year   129,238,306  189,352,219 
 Add: Adjustment   7,017,707  (4,070,299)
 Less: Closing Creditor   (103,137,933)  (103,225,355)
 Total   136,343,436  179,693,592 

30.0 PURCHASE/DISPOSAL OF FIXED ASSETS
 Increase /Decrease in Cost of Asset   (6,897,045)  (4,461,315)
 Total   (6,897,045)  (4,461,315)

31.0 PROCEEDS FROM SALE OF FIXED ASSET
 Disposal During the Year   8,182,340  3,670,000 
 Depreciation Disposal During the Year   (7,274,979)  (3,365,275)
 Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets   3,728,802  1,745,275 
 Loss on sales of Furniture   (400,408)  -   
 Total   4,235,755  2,050,000 

32.0 INVESTMENT MADE DURING THE PERIOD
 Decrease / Increase in Investment   (3,997,294)  91,132,537 
 Add: Adjustment Un-realized Loss on Investment   -  76,771,912 
 Less: Other Adjustment    -  -   
 Total   (3,997,294)  167,904,449 
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20222023
Amount in Taka

33.0 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENT
The Board of Directors of the Company in its 126th Board Meeting held on November 23, 2014 approved  for 
purchasing of 2 nos. of floors comprising ( 5831.73*2)=11,663.46 square feet @ Tk. 13,000 per square feet 
from the land owner of Padma Life Tower which comes to Tk. 151,624,980. Payment made Tk 130,000,000 up 
to 31st December, 2023 and the balance of Tk. 21,624,980 remains outstanding as on 31.12.2023.(Outstanding  
amount deposited to Bangladesh Bank dated 25.09.2023 but not received party ) 

34.0 CONTINGENT LIABILITY AND CONTINGENT ASSET - BAS-37
 There is no  Contingent Asset of the Company as at 31.12.2023

35.0 CREDIT FACILITY AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY
There was no credit facility available to the Company under any contract as on December 31, 2023 other than 
trade credit available in the ordinary course of Business

36.0 COMPANIES ACT 1994, SCHEDULE XI PART-II [NOTE 3 (P) (VI) 5]

 i) Number of employees drawing salary above Tk.3000 per month  247  280 
 ii) Number of employees drawing salary below Tk.3000 per month  -  -   

37.0 PAYMENT IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
 Payment for Re-Insurance Operation during the year.   41,560  370,362 

38.0 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
There is no significant event that has occurred between the Balance Sheet date and the date when the Financial 
Statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors.

39.0 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (IAS - 24)
As per International Accounting Standards (IAS) - 24 ''Related Party Disclosure" parties are considered to be 
related if one of the party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the party 
in making financial and operating decision.

 Related Party Transactions:
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40.0 PAYMENTS / PERQUISITES TO DIRECTORS / OFFICERS
The aggregate amounts paid/provided during the year in respect of Directors and Officers of the Company as 
defined in the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 are disclosed below:

     
 

 GENERAL
 (i)  Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Taka.
 (ii) Last year’s figures have been re-arranged wherever necessary to conform to the current year’s presentation. 
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Registered Office: Padma LifeTower, 115, Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue, Dhaka-1000.

I/We...................................................................................................................................................................................
of.......................................................................................................................................................................................
being a member of Padma Islami Life Insurance Limited do hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss .........................................
of.......................................................................................................................................................................................
as my/our Proxy to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the 24th Annual General Meeting of the Company to 
be held virtual by using digital platform on September 29, 2024 at 11.30 am. to transact the following business.
Signed this:................................day of ................................2024.

Signature of Proxy

I hereby record my attendance at the 24th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held virtual by using digital 
platform on September 29, 2024 at 11.30 am. to transact the following business.

Name of Member/Proxy....................................................................................................................................................

Number of shares hold

Proxy Form

Registered Office: Padma LifeTower, 115, Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue, Dhaka-1000.

SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDANCE SLIP

Signature of the Shareholder

Signature.......................................................        Dated..............................................

Dated.....................................................................                   Dated............................................................

Revenue
Stamp

Tk. 20/-

BO ID No

BO ID No

Note: The Proxy form should reach the Corporate Office of the Company not less than 72 hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

Signature Verified
Authorized Signatory

Padma Islami Life Insurance Ltd

Important:
(1) To facilitate registration formalities at the meeting place Members are requested to please fill in and bring the Attendance Slip at the Meeting.

(2) Member are also requested to note that the Annual General Meeting can only be attended by the honorable Members or properly constituted 
Proxy. Therefore any friend or children accompanying with honorable Members or Proxy can not be allowed into the meeting.





Please 
Provide
Photo
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